NOTICE OF 12™ (TWELFTH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 12" (Twelfth) Annual General Meeting of Snapdeal Private Limited
(formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) (“The Company”) will be held on Friday the 12
day of July, 2019 at 10:00 A.M at the registered office of the Company at Suite #181- TR-4, First
Floor, SproutBox Suryavillas, D-181, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1, New Delhi 110020, to transact
the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:-

ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, AUDITORS REPORT & DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19

To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the
Financial Year 2018-19 of the Company, together with the Reports of the Auditors and Directors
thereon.

TO TAKE NOTE OF THE TERM OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Shareholders are informed that pursuant to provisions of section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants (FRN 301003E) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at
the 10" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of the Company held on September 29,
2017 to hold office for a period of 3 years (subject to annual ratification of their appointment by
shareholders at every AGM), i.e. from financial year 2017-18 to 2019-20.

Further, the Shareholders are requested to take note that the requirement to place the matter
relating to appointment of Statutory Auditors for ratification by shareholders at every Annual
General Meeting is done away vide notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, New Delhi. Accordingly, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN
301003E) will continue as Statutory Auditors of the Company till the financial year 2019-20 at such
terms and conditions as may be fixed by Mr. Kunal Bahl and Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal, Directors of the
Company.

By the order of the Board
For SNAPDEAL PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS JASPER INFOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED)

oshni Tandon
{Company Secretary)

Place: %
P 10 06, 2.0!9




NOTES:

1.

A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND THE MEETING, IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF, AND SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A
SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY SUBJECT TO PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION. THE PROXY FORM IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DEPOSITED WITH THE
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR COMMENCEMENT OF
THE MEETING.

The explanatory statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of special business is annexed hereto and forms an integral part of the Notice.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting
are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution/ authorization letter,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Members are requested to notify any change in their address/ mandate/ other details
immediately to the Company at its registered office.

The documents, if any referred to in the resolution mentioned are available for inspection
during 10.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the Meeting except holidays at the Registered Office of
the Company and copies thereof shall also be made available for inspection at the venue of
Meeting.

Route map to the venue of the meeting is annexed.



ATTENDANCE SLIP
(TO BE SIGNED AND HANDED OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL)

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 12™ Annual General Meeting of Financial Year 2018-19
of Snapdeal Private Limited (formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) held at 10:00 A.M.
on Friday, the 12" day of July, 2019 at Suite #181- TR-4, First Floor, SproutBox Suryavillas, D-181,
Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1, New Dethi 110020

NAME(S) OF THE MEMBERS(S) Registered Folio No.

No. of Shares held

Name of Proxy/ Authorised Representative (in block letters)
(To be filled in, if the Proxy attends instead of the Members)

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

<



Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U72300DL2007PTC168097

Name of the Company: Snapdeal Private Limited (formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Registered office: Suite #181- TR-4, First Floor, SproutBox Suryavillas, D-181, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase 1, New Delhi 110020

Name of the Member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Clint Id:

DP ID:
I/ We being the member of ............, holding.....shares, hereby appoint
1. Name: ...,
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: ...........,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on Friday, July 12, 2019 at 10:00 A.M. at
the registered office of the Company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions
as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

1. Approval of Financial Statements of the Company for Financial Year 2018-19,
2. Take note of the term of Statutory Auditors of the Company.

Signed this ..... day of ...... 2019 Affix Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Sharehoider

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

DEAR MEMBERS

Your Direciors take pleasure in presenting the 12" Annual Report of the Company, along with Audited
Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of your Company Financial results on a standalone basis for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2019 are as follows;

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2013
Particular (Rs. in Crore} {Rs. in Crore)
Total Income 899.2 527.5
Loss After Tax 187.4 650.1

Consolidated Financial Statement of your Company includes the performance of its subsidiary and
associates. Preparation and presentation of such Consolidated Financial Statement depicts the
comprehensive performance of Snapdeal Private Limited and its group companies and is relevant for
understanding the overall performance of your company.

The Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 have been
prepared in accordance with IndAS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in india.

During the year, the total revenue of your Company, on a standalone basis has increased to Rs. 899.2
crore as compared to Rs. 527.5 crore in previous year recoding the growth of approx. 70%. The loss after
tax has substantially decreased from Rs. 650.1 crore to Rs. 187.4 crore in the Financial Year under
review.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Snapdeal is the targest, No-frills, Value-focused Marketplace in India with 68 million unique monthly
visitors. The platform has 200 Million product listings across 600+ categories like Apparel, Footwear,
Fashion Accessories, Automotive, Electronics, Kids, Health, Home & Kitchen, Sports and Books. With
over 20 million annual buyers and more than 350,000 registered sellers, Snapdeal continues to be a
significant player in India's e-commerce landscape.

This year we continued our focus on driving growth with a lean and capital efficient foundation in the
business. Our operating revenue increased 87% YoY basis with a significant reduction of the cost base.
The Company achieved a significant milestone by achieving cash break even in the month of June 2018
and also made the highest ever Net Revenue in its history in the month of October 2018.




The Company intends to continue to drive growth by investing its margins back into acquiring new
customers, while keeping fixed operating costs stable. The Company also intends to invest in new areas
of growth in FY 19-20.

There has been no change in the nature of business being carried on by the Company.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES

Your Company has following Subsidiaries, Joint Venture & Assaciates Companies at the end of financial
year 2018-19:

5. No. Name of the Company Nature of Ownership
1, E-Agility Solutions Private Limited" ~ Subsidiary
2. Unicommerce e-solutions Private Limited® Subsidiary

3, Unicommerce Selier Solutions Private Limited® Step Down Subsidiary
4, Tetra Media Private Limited Associate

The report on the performance and financial position of each of the Subsidiary, Associate and Joint
Venture and salient features of the financial statements in the prescribed Form AQC-1 is annexed to this
report as Annexure 2,

The Company has obtained a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming that the
Company is in compliance with the regulations on downstream investment under foreign direct
investment policy and other FEMA provisions.

WEBLINK FOR ANNUAL RETURN

in accordance with provisions of section 92(3) and 134(3){a) of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder the Annual Return of the Company is available at https://www.snapdeal.com/pase/about-us

DIVIDEND

In view of the losses incurred during the year, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the
year under review.

' E-Agility Solutions Private Limited is under the process of Voluntary liquidation since February 2018,

* The Share Purchase Agreement (SPA} entered between Snapdeal Private Limited {Company),
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited (UC) and infibeam Incorporation Limited was cancelled due to
non-fulfillment of condition precedent of SPA therefore UC remains subsidiary of the Company;

¥ Unicommerce Seller Solutions Private Limited is under process of Strike off from the records of
Registrar of Companies.



CHANGES iN THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the financial year under review, your Company has altered its Authorized Share Capital/ paid up
and issued Capital in the following manner.

Authorized Share Capital of the Campany - The Company has increased its Authorized Share Capital from
INR 6,18,48,200 { Rupees Six Crores Eighteen Lacs Forty Fight Thousand Two Hundred) to INR
15,00,00,000/- {Rupees Fifteen Crores) vide resolution dated August 06, 2018,

As an March 31, 2019 the Authorized Equity Share Capital stands increased from 10,00,000/- {Rupess
Ten Lacs only) to 8,91,51,800 {(Eight Crores Ninety One Lakhs Fifty One Thousand Eight Hundred)
comprising of 8,91,51,800 Equity Shares of face value of INR 1/- each

Paid up Capital of the Company- During the Financial Year under review vide resolution dated August 16,
2018, 4,93,359 Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series £, Series £1, Series F, Series G, Series H, Series
I, Series J and Series J1 Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Participating Preference Shares held by
various shareholders have been converied into 22,38,963 Equity Shares, which ranks pari passu with
the existing Equity Shares. The paid up equity share capital of the Company has therefore been
increased from INR 2,25,860 to INR 24,64,823,

CHANGE IN EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION

The Company has a Stock Option Scheme with the name Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016 (ESOS).
The details of ESOS as reqguired to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 12 (9) of the Companies {Share Capital
and Debenture} Rules, 2014 are mentioned in Annexure -1 and form part of this report.

During the Financial Year under review your Company has increased total Employee Stock Options pool
from 1,11,890 {One Lakh and Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred and Ninety) to 1,98,890 {One Lakh Ninety
Eight Thousand Eight Hundred and Ninety) vide resolution dated February 25, 2019,

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS

During the year under review, the Management of your Company decided to change the registered
office address from 68, Ground Floor, Okhla Industrial Estate, Phase — I, New Delhi - 110020 to
SproutBox Suryavilas, First Floor, D-181, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1, New Defhi 110020 vide
resolution dated August 11, 2018.

CHANGE IN THE NAME OF THE COMPANY

With a view to further fortify and capitalize its well-known registered brand “Snapdeal”, the
management of your Company decided to change its registered name. Pursuant to requisite
approvals by the Sharehelders, the Board of Directors and the Registrar of Companies (ROC) the
name of the Company stands modified from “Jasper Infotech Private Limited” to “Snapdeal Private
Limited” with effect from March 20, 2010.



PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the year under review, your Company has not granted foans and made investments under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review, the Company has entered into related party transaction which falls under
the scope of Section 188{1) of the Act and the Company has obtained necessary approvals from the
Board of Directors of the Company. Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements with related
parties referred to in Section 188(1) in prescribed Form AQC-2 is annexed to this report as Annexure 3.

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND AUDIT REPORT

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (ICAl Firm Registration Number 301003E) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company at the 10" Annual General Meeting of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of
13" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Report of the Statutory Auditors on the Financials of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31%
March, 2019 is self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further explanation or comments from
the Board.

[There are no gualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the report of Auditors provided for the
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019.]

INTERNAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,
the Company has appointed KPMG, Chartered Accountants as internal Auditor of the Company for a
period of 2 years at the meeting of the Board of Director held on March 9, 2018. KPMG has been
appointed to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company annually,

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY AND PRACTICES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE

Corporate Governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful commercial
enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business
strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate conduct and fairness to all stakeholders
including regulators, employees, customers, sellers, investors and society at large.

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have always been the focus of the
Company and hence the Company has built fair, transparent and ethical governance practices.

The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for its employees including its key management personnel.
The Company has in ptace a robust information Security Policy that ensures data protection and proper
utilization of 1T resources. The statutory auditors of the company.undertake audits of financial
statements of the Company every quarter and the same is reviewed by the Financial Advisory Group
{formed by the Board to review the guarterly and annual audited financials, internal controls, risk &
compliance management of the Company) and thereafter approved by the Board at the quarterly



meetings. It has implemented a comprehensive compliance management tool that is developed and
managed by PWC and a compliance report is reviewed by the Board on a quarterly basis. Additionally
the company has adepted a robust internal Controls Framework as per best industry practices and
internal audits are conducted annyally by KPMG.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

{a) DIRECTORS

During the year under review, Mr. Akhil Gupta, who was appointed as Director of the Company since
May 08, 2014, resigned from the Board of Director of the Company w.e.f July 02, 2018,

Mr. Akhil Gupta was appointed as Nominee Director of B2 Professional Services, LLP {Major Investor)
w.e.fjuly 03, 20118 on the Board of the Company.

Mr. Saurabh Jalan, who was appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f October 16, 2017
and whose tenure was expiring in the next Annual General Meeting of the Company was appointed as
the Director of the Company w.e.f. September 28, 2018,

(b) KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Vikas Bhasin has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of
the Company w.e.f. July 13, 2018.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, and save as otherwise
mentioned elsewhere in this Report, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, confirm
that:

a} in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards, have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material
departures;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year i.e. March 31, 2019 and of the losses
of the Company for that period;

c} the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d} the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern basis; and

e} the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.



MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE YEAR

Pursuant to the provision of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules thereunder, every Company requires
to hold a minimum of 4 {four) Board Meetings every year with a maximum gap of not more than 120
days between 2 (two) Board Meetings. Additional Board Meetings are convened depending upon the
needs and business to be transacted. Notice and Agenda far the Board Meetings are to be circulated in
advance to enable the Directors to understand the business to be transacted at the Meeting.

7 (Seven) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2018-19. The details of
Board Meetings are given below:

Date of Board Meetings Board Strength No. of Directors Present
May 06, 2018 5 4
July 13, 2018 5 4
August 11, 2018 5 5
August 28, 2018 5 5
November 30, 2018 5 5
January 04, 2019 5 5
February 15, 2019 5 5

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

In accordance with provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, every listed Company and such other class of Companies as may be prescribed under law
shall constitute the ”Cbmpensation Committee”. Since Snapdeal Private Limited {“The
Company”}doesn’t fall in the category of such other class or classes of Companies as prescribed under
law, the Company is not abide by law to constitute such Committee. However for improving efficiency
and transparency in the management, your Company has voluntarily formulated a “Compensation
Committee” of the Board which shall not he deemed or otherwise construed as a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as required to be maintained under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the relevant rules made thereunder. The said “Compensation Committee” is comprised of the
following members:-

i. Mr. Kunal Bahl; and
2. Mr. Saurabh Jalan
The “Compensation Committee” shall be supported in its functioning by the following Special Invitees:

1. Chief Financial Officer of the Company; and
2. Head of Human Resource functions of the Company.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBHITY {CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility is a core value of the Company since its inception. The Company strives
to positively impact the lives of the communities around its areas of operation, minimize impact on the
environment and address concerns of communities in a mutually beneficial manner. The Company’s
overall vision is to actively contribute to the social and economic development of the community and
therefare, build a better, sustainable way of fife for weaker and marginalized sections of the society and
raise the country’s human development index. In this regard, the Company has formulated its CSR policy
pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules and any other statutory
modification thereof. The CSR Committee is comprised of the following members:-

1. Mr. Kunal Bahl;
2. Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal; and
3. Mr. Saurabh Jalan

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy} Rules, 2014, requires mandatory spend of 2% of Average Net Profit on the CSR
Activities as identified by the Company during the financial year under review, based on the applicability
criteria given under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The Board would like to
apprise that the aforesaid provisions are not applicable on the Company as the Company has not earned
any profits during immediately preceding 3 financial years. In the view of the losses the Company is not
required to spend on CSR activities.

The absence of profits has not been an impediment in the CSR activities of the Company and the
Company has voluntarily undertaken CSR initiatives in the form of ‘Snapdeal Sunshine’. Snapdeal
Sunshine program facilitates Snapdeal users to contribute products for social causes via Snapdeal
platform. Contributed products are directly delivered to partner NGOs which help them in their ongoing
programs to support social cause. Here's list and brief description for several programs which were
conducted over the last year -

Food for Education: Meals for Kids

Brief - Customers purchase daal which is delivered directly to The Akshaya Patra Foundation for
supporting mid-day meal program.

Daal contributed ~ 2500 + Kg

Partners - The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Supporting education of underprivileged kids: Stationery Kits Donation

Brief -Customers contribute stationery which is directly delivered to NGOs working in field of education

Stationery kits contributed ~ 80,000+ stationery kits



Partners - Hindustan Pencils (Nataraj brand), 20+ NGOs including Dakshana Foundation, Shiksharth
Trust, ete.

tnitiative link - https!//www snapdeal.com/offers/donate-stationery-kits

Supporting menstrual health & hygiene: STOP the SPOT

Brief - Customers contribute sanitary pads, and NGOs working in field of menstrual health and hygiene
management distribute these among underprivileged girls and women

Pads contributed ~ 6,00,000+ sanitary pads

Partners - TCIEXPRESS ({logistics partner), Around 10 NGO partners inclduing Goonj, Habitat For
Humanity, etc

Initiative link - https://www.snapdeal.com/offers/stop-the-spot

Recognizing soldiers of The Indian Army & Navy: India Says Thank You
3000+ Thank you Cards to the indian Army

Brief - Customers contribute Thank You box which is delivered to soldiers of The Indian Army via our
partner 21Fools

Contents of Thank You box - Rakhi, Thank you letter, photo frame, efc.

Thank you box contributed for 6,000+ soldiers, delivered to locations including Leh, Uri, Jaipur,
Ludhiana, Kargil, etc

Partners - 21Foaols, The Indian Army

initiative link - hitps://www.snapdeal.com/offers/india-says-thank-you

An annual report on the CSR activities in prescribed format has been attached as Annexure- 4 to this
Report.

ADMINISTRATIVE CONTROL COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company has decided to formulate a committee of the Board for
deciding the matters which does not require specific board approval. The Company has
constituted an “Administration Control Committee” for the said purpose with Mr. Kunal Bahl
and Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal as its members on August 28, 2018 to consider and approve
following matters for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company:

1. Authorization matrix for Banking transactions;
2. Opening or closing of a Bank Account;
3. Authorization for handling legal matters;



4, Authorization for execution of contracts, MOUs, NDAs etc.;
5. Authorization for DEMAT account of the Company

CORPORATE COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

In order to make a robust compliance system and follow the best corporate governance practices
in the industry, the Company has constituted a committee namely “Corporate Compliance
Committee” comprising of Mr. Vikas Bhasin, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Smriti Subramanian,
General Counsel of the Company w.e.f November 30, 2018, The Committee shall be responsible
to ensure!:

@

The compliances under various corporate laws;

Efficiency of internal control system;

e Service rules viz. code of conduct, HR manual are made as per law and amended as and when
required in compliance with changes made under various legislature time to time;

e Compliances required under Prevention of Sexuat Harassment of Women at Workplace

{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”} and the rules made

thereunder.

@

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined under Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
ouUTGO

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo are as under:

Conservation of Energy:

Steps taken for conservation Since the Company is not engaged in any
Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of manufacturing activity, lssues relating to
conservation of energy are not relevant to its
energy - - functioning. However, energy conservation
Cap!tal mv?stment ON energy CONSeIVation | . .ives attention at all levels. All efforts are
equipment's ' made to conserve and optimize use of energy.
Technology Absorption:
Efforts made  for  technology | Snapdeal is an online marketplace where the buyers,
absorption ‘ sellers and customers are the key stakeholders. On the
Benefits detived buyer side, technology stack is maostly open source
Expenditure on Research | including the applications, the database and the
&Development, if any NoSQL. The company uses both its own and third party
Details of technology imported, ifany | Cloud services to help in being agile to launch the
Year of import setup in a fe\iv hours. The Company downioaf:is
- community versions and purchases a few commercial
Whether imported technology fully




absorbed

Areas where absorption of imported
technology has not taken place, if any

versions of databases and NoSQL to come up with a
stable stack that will be helpful in both day-to-day
operations of online marketplace transactions and
scaling at the time of festive seasons for the online
promotions. The Company is always testing new
technologies with muitiple Proof-Of-Concept (POC)
exercises. Also, the Company is always innovating on
the security technology too. The Company’s page load
time, auto-scaling to handle 15-20 times more traffic
of the buyer platform for the front-end and back-end
are the best in industry due to all the technology
absorptions done. The Company has innovated a lot on
the Seller flow, where thousands of seliers are on-
boarded. The innovations in logistics and supply-chain
and the technology stack has automated good
percentage of courier collection, drop-shipment and
optimizing on the land distance, etc. resulting in cost
saving to the Company.

Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo:

Earnings INR 2.7 Cr
Outge INR 11.9 Cr
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The provisions of Section 187 {12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appoiﬁtment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time is not
applicable to on your Company and thus doesn’t forms part of this report.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

The Company has Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto covering all
aspects as contained in Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal} Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Committee (hereinafter referred to as the 1CC) has
been constituted for timely and impartial resolution to complaints of sexual harassment. It consists
of following members comprising of senior employeses of the Company:

The Internal Complaints Committee comprises of following members:

bl A .

Rasika Mathur

Smriti Subramanian— Presiding Office (Chairperson for the committee)
Sanjana Kapoor - Member
Sandhya Tandon-Member




v

¥

5. Santosh Rao- Member
6. Sandeep Singh Sachdev-Member
7. Arti Chaudhry (independent Member)

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

The Board does not propose to transfer any amount 1o any reserves,

Except as mentioned as part of this Report, no material changes and commitments occurred
between the end of financial year 2018-19 and the date of this report which may affect the
financial position of the Company. .

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulator/court/tribunal which may
impact the going concern and company’s operations in future.

The Company has laid down adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting to be
followed by the Company and such internal financial controls were operating effectively.

The Company has a robust, enterprise risk management process to identify, assess, monitor and
mitigate key financial, operational, business & compliance risks. There is an established risk
phifosophy that guides risk taking within the Company & the risk management activities are
suparvised by Internal Controls & Risk Assurance Team.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the members, investors, suppliers, seller,
customers, bankers, government departments and other stakeholders of their invaluable support
te Company.

The Directors also wish to extend the heartiest gratitude to the employees of the Company at all
levels for their hard work, dedication and commitment, which have enabled the Company to grow
at an unprecedented pace.

By the Order of Board
For Snapdeal Private Limited
(Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

MW B S e

Kﬁnal Bahl Rohit Kumar Bansal
Director Director

{DIN 01761033) (DIN 01884522)
Date: O . 2019

Place: Gurugram



Annexure ~ 1

Details of Employee Stock Option Plan

{Pursuant to section 62{1})(b) read with rule 12(3} of Companies {Share Capital and Debenture) Rules,

2014)

aj | Options granted 46,293

b) | Options vested 3,308

c) | Options exercised 0

d) | The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option 0

e) | Optians lapsed 664

f) | The exercise price INR. 1/- per share.

g) | variation of terms of options No

h} | Money realized by exercise of options 0

i) | Total number of options in force 103,720

i} | Employee wise details of options granted to -
Key Managerial Personnel ;

. . 90
{i} | Roshni Tandon 6900

Vikas Bhasin

(i) Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option
amounting to five percent or more of options granted during that year:
Anubhav Goyal 3369
Jason Kothari 5418
Mayank Jain{User Growth) 5191
Mayank fain (Supply Chain) 2506
Rajesh Rudraradhya 2708
Vikas Bhasin 6900
Vishal Chadha 2869
Identified employees who were granted option, during any cne year, equal to or

(it} | exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and N.A.

conversions) of the company at the time of grant




Annexure-2

Form AOC-1
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section {3} of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part A: Subsidiaries

{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl | Panticulars 1 2

No.

1. | Name of the subsidiary Unicommerce eSolutions  Unicommerce Seller
Pvt. Ltd. Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

2. | The date since when subsidiary is acquired iay 04, 2015 June 22,2015

3. | Reporting period for the subsidiary NA NA

concerned, if different from the holding
company’s reporting period

4. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as iNR ) INR
on the last date of the relevant Financial
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

5. | Share capital 18,87,800 30,00,000
6. | Reserves & surplus 25,23,50,608 (30,00,000)
7. : Total assets 31,51,36,740 0

8 Total Liabilities (includes Equity) 31,51,36,740 0

9. | Investments ' 0 -

10, | Turnover 25,66,08,615 -

11. | Profit before taxation 3,83,74,461 (16,53,861)
12. | Provision for taxation 1,30,19,984 -

13. | Profit after taxation 2,35,45,246 [16,53,861)
14. | Proposed Dividend NIL NIL

15. | Extent of shareholding {in percentage) 100% ~ 100%

Note:

1. Names of the Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NIL
2. Names of the Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

a) E-~ Agility Solutions Private Limited is under the process of voluntary liguidation;




Part B: Associates and foint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 128 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and loint Ventures

S$No. | Name of associates/ioint Ventures Tetra Media Private Limited
{Associate)
1. | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2019
2, | Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was February 13, 2015
associated or acquired
3. | Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end
No. Class B Equity Share- 1,54,358
Class C Equity Share- 3,20,532
Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Rs. 15,00,00,000
venture
60.61% in Shareholding and 40% voting Rights as per
Extent of Holding {in percentage) the terms and conditions mentioned in the Share
Purchase Agreement entered between Snapdeal
Private Limited (formerly known as Jasper Infotech
Private Limited) and Tetra Media Private Limited.
4. | Description of how there is significant influence Since the shareholding of Snapdeal Private Limited is
more than 20% hence it is considered that Snapdeal
Private Limited has significant influence over the entity.
5. 1 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not Not Applicable
consolidated
6. | Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest | Rs. 12,98,04,666/-
audited Balance Sheet
7. | Profit or Loss for the year Rs. 4,76,85,020/-

i} Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 1,92,69,517/-

ii)Not Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 2,84,15,503/-

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NIL.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NiL

By the Order of Board
For Snapdeal Private Limited
{Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

W L

WWW?W«—-

Kunal Bahi Rohit Kumar Bansal VikasBhasin
Director Director hief Financial Officer Comipany Secretary
DIN:01761033 DiN: 01884522

Ros M andon




Annexure -3

FORM NO. AOC 2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to In sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section {3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014)

1. Detalls of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis : NA
{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship —
(b} Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions —
(e} Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions -
{(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any -
{e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
{fi Date(s) of approvat by the Board
{g) Amount paid as advances, if any -
{

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as reguired under first
- proviso to section 188-

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship - Mr. Akhil Gupta, Norﬁinee Director
of B2 professional Services, LLP {Major Investor)

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Financial Advisory Agreement
{c} Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions- 12 Months

{d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any- As
per the Financial Advisory Agreements entered between the Company and Mr. Akhil Gupta.

{e) Date(s} of approval by the Board, if any- June 7, 2019

{f) Amount paid as advances, if any- NIL
By the Order of Board
For Snapdeal Private Limited
{Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

L 0bd ) st B

I(Jna’l Bahl Rohit Kumar Bansal
Director Director
{DIN 01761023) (DIN 01884522)




Annexure — 4

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities to be included in the Board's report
for the financial vear 2018-189.

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs:

The CSR Policy of the Company broadly takes into account the following measures:

a) Welfare of the rural areas by spreading Education and distributing Food, Books and

Stationary kits etc, to the underprivileged kids.

b} Supporting menstrual health and hygiene.
¢} Recognising the efforts of Indian Soldiers and thanking them.

The link to the CSR policy is http://www.snapdeal.com/page/csr

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee, Mr. Kunal Bahl, Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal and Mr.
Saurabh Jalan.

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

No profit has been earned by the Company during last three financial years.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure {two per cent. Of the amount as in item 3 above): NiL

As the Company does not have any profit during the last 3 financial years. Therefore, the
Company is not required to make any CSR expenditure.

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

{a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year; N.A.
{b} Amount unspent, if any; N.A
{c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detaiied below.

4

1 2 3 5 & 7 8
SNo | CSR Sector Projects or Amount Amount Spent Cumulative | Amount
praject | in which | programs (1) outlay on the project expenditur | Spent: Direct
or the Local area or {budget) | or programs: e uptothe | or through
activity | project | other(2) project or | Sub - heads (1) reporting implementin
is Specify the program | Direct period i.e g agency™
covered | state and wise expenditures on | 2015~ 16
district where projects or
projects or programs. {2)

program was
undertaken

Overheads




[t [N NiL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

*Give details of implementing agency

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last
thre financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending
the amount in fts Board report: N.A.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring Policy
is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with the CSR objective
and policy of the Company. Further, as the Company does not have any profit during the last
three financial years so the Company is not required to make any CSR expenditure.

By the Order of Board
For Snapdeal Private Limited
(Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

LM —gipy.

Kunal Bahi Rohit Kumar Bansal
Director Director
{DIN 01761033) (DIN 01884522)
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Chartered Accountants Gurugram - 122 002, Har vanag, india

Tel 1191 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Snapdeal Private Limited (formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Snapdeal Private Limited
(formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance
sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information. :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the *Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

S Bathbon & Co L1, 2 imited Uil ty Paris
Read, Office 20 Camac S
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the [Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specitied under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going coricern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. :

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

[ Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in’ agreement with the books of account,

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended: '

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1,2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “*Annexure 2" to this report;

(8) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 3 1. 2019;
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(h) With réspect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements; :

il. The Companyb did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Nil%shu Katriar
Partner
Membership Number: 058814

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 07,2019
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Annexure 1

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even
date .

Re: Snapdeal Private Limited (formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) (*the Company”)

() (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
identified on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable properties,
included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the requirements under clause 3(i)(c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause 3(ii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership firm or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a), (b) and
(¢ of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon, ‘

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013
are applicable and hence not commented upon.

W) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained by the management, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of the Company.

(vii)(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund , employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax . service tax, duty of custom , duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no dues of income tax, service
tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture
holders. '
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(ix)

*x)

{xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

For S.R.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any money
way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix)
is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable
and hence not commented upon. .

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions.of clause 3(xii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The
provisions of Section 177 the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
the Company and hence not-commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. '

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Nil
Partne
Member

ip Number: 058814

Place of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: June 07,2019
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ANNEXURE I TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SNAPDEAL PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Interna] Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the interna financial controls over financial reporting of Snapdeal Private Limited (formerly
known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of March 3 1,2019 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that Were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of jts business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to €Xpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controlg over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financia] Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about Wwhether adequate interna] financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting Wwith reference: to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a materia] weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal contro] based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of materjal misstatement of the financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financia
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountin g
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financjal reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: )
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit Preparation of financial. ., .
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statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control.stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Per Nilaﬂﬁhu Katriar

Partner
Membership Number: 058814

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 07,2019



Suapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as asper Infotech Private Limited)
Standainne Balance Sheet as at March 31,2019
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Asat Asat
Notes March 31,2019 March 31,2018
e et LCN 01, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets R
Property, plant and equipment 3 543 7.7
Capital work in progress 3 00 0.0
Other Intangible assets 4 '?‘3 (_"4
Investment in subsidiaries and associates 3 125.0 125.0
Financial assets N
Investments 6 93 93
Other financinl assets 6 14-3 0.0
Prepayments 7 6.5 -
Other non-current assets 8 342 73,3
2557 278.7
Current assets i
In in subsidiaries and i 5 - 74.0
Financial assets o
Investments o 3003 4183
Trade receivables 9 9.2 4.8
Cash and cash equivalent 0 9.1 :/0,6
Bank balances other than above i1 261.0 254.1
Other financia} assets G 278.1 1863
Prepayments 7 34 7.9
Other current assets 8 44.4 304
1.105.4 1,075.1
Total assets . 1361.1 1,353.8
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 12 0.2 0.0
Other Equity
Equity component of compulsory convertible cumulative participating preference shares 12 - 4.0
Money received against share warrants 40.3 255
Share premium 13 11,0280 11,0248
Retained earnings i3 (10,684.8) (10497.4)
Other reserves 13 281.8 2832
Total equity 666.1 840.1
LIABILITIES
Non-Cutrent liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 4 - 133
Provisions 15 0.1 -
Net einployce defined benefit liabilities 16 : 7.6 74
77 20.7
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
'Borrowings 14 13.6 44.1
Trade and other payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and smal} enterprises 17 15 -
Total outstanding dues of credlitors other than micro and smal} enterprises . 17 3934 403.1
Other financial liabilities 18 04 -
Deferred revenue 9 473 16.0
Provisions . 15 14.0 18.9
Net employee defined benefit habilities 16 6.8 48"
Other current liabilities 20 83 4.1
687.3 493.0
Total liabilities 695.0 5137
Total equity and liabilities ) 1361.1 1.353.8
The accompanving notes are.an intezral part of the standalone financial statements,
As per our report of even date.
For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLp For and on behalf of board of divectors of

Chartered Accountants
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Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31,2019
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otheriwise)

Notes For the year ended Tor the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Revenue from operations 21 813.83 436.1
Other income 22 15.5 24.7
Finance income 23 69.9 66.7
Total income 899.2 527.5
Expenses
Marketplace expense 24 894.2 505.4
Employee benefits cxpense 25 136.7 193.8
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 217 47.2
Finance expense 27 25 43
Othier expense 28 32.5 33.4
Total expense 1,087.6 784.1
Loss before exceptional items and tax (188.4) (256.6)
Exceptional items 29 0.0 395.4
Loss before tax (188.4) (652.0)
Income tax expense - -
Loss for the year {188.4) {652.0)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not te be reclassified to profit or loss in subscquent years:
Re-measurement gain o defined benefit plans 1.0 1.9
Income tax effect . -
1.0 1.9
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years 1.0 1.9
Other comprehensive gain for the year, net of tax 1.0 1.9
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (187.4) (650.1)
Loss per equity share [nominal value of share Re. | (March 31,2018: Re 1)
Basic and Diluted computed on the basis of loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the 34 (1,159.5) (28.867.6)

Company [ In Rs.]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartercd Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Nila 1 Katriar
Partner

Membership Numnber: 058814

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 07, 2019

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as
Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

‘Rohit Kumar Bansal
Director

L

Comyfany Secretary / fef Financial Officer

Kunal Bahl
Director
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Snapdeal Private Limited {Formerly known as Jusper Infotect Private Limited)

Standalane St of Changes in Equity for the year caded March 31, 2019
(Al amonuits in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated othenwvise)

2. Eguity Share Capital;

No. Rs.

As at April 01, 2017 2,93,060 0.0
Buv Back of shares : 67.200 0.0
As at March 31,2018 2,25,860 0.0
Conversion during the vear (refer note 12) 22.38.063 8.2
As at March 31,2019 24,64,823 0.2
s
b. Other Equity:

Compulsory convertible Money received Reserves and Surplus Other reserves

cumulative parficipating | against share Tatal equity

preference share capital warrants m Retained earnings Omexr ::’::lﬂl

resery:
. e

As at April 01, 2017 X 5.8 11,0248 (9,823.7) 3034 1,534.0
Shared based compensation of previous vear . - - - {23.6) - (23.6)
Loss for the vear - - - - (632,0) - {652.0)
Other comprehensive income - - - 19 - 1.9
Tatal Comprehensive Income . - - {673.7)
Share based compensation

As at barch 31,2018 {10,497.4) ZBiZ 840.1
Loss for the vear . - - (188, 4) - (183.4)
Other comprehensive income

- 1o
Total Cumnfehensive Income

Conversion during the vear (refer note 12)

Share based compansation .

Monex received against share warrants during the vear (refer
note 45}

As at March 31, 2019

As per our.report of even date

For 5. R. Batliboi & Cp, LLP

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Snnapdeat Private Limiteq
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 e, (Formerly known aspfa: Infotech Private Limited)
E : -
Pt
) E S
\lU s // \/ \/LL/ / e \‘% &f-»- [H/\/)
. i /(L/ L/ —’j‘%g&‘ / . '
per Nilangshn Katrinr &

{ o . Kunai Baht Rohit Kumar Bansal
Partier L. Director Director
Membership Nmber 038814 .

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 07. 2019
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Snaptieal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Standalone Cash Fiow Statement for the year ended March 31,2019
(Al amounts in INR C'r, except per share datn and as stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Net cash flow from operations

Loss before tax for the year (188.4) (632.0)
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax for the year to net cash flows:

Depreciation and impainnent of property, plant and equiptent 17.9 38.3
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 38 8.9
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (6N)] (53.3)
Bad debts / advances written off 2.4 24.6
Impairment of non-current assets - 181.3
Share-based payment expense (14 (20.8)
Impiainment allowance no longer required (net) (1.2 -
Other non-operating income (1.2)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibles - 0.1
Tipainment of fixed assets - 31.3
Finanice costs 23 30
Profit in liew of Investment - 0.3)
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (3.6) (14.0)
Net gain on sale of current investinents .7 n
Interest lncome on bank deposits (33.3) (18.1)
Unwinding of discount on financial assets at amortised cost (1.5) [e )]
Mark to market gain on current iuvestments 0.0 (15.8) -
Provision for balance with statutory /government authorities - 170.1
Dividend income - (0.6)
MTM gain on fair value of derivatives through profit and loss 0.4 @
Interest income on foan given to related parties - (13.0)
Vorking capital adjustments:

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1974 (147.7)
Decrease in provisions and net employee defined benefit liabilities (1.6) (2.3)
Increase in other liabilities 356 6.3
(Increase)/deerease in trade receivables 29 9.3
(Increase)/decrease in other recievables, and prepaymeats (67.8) 1573
Cash used in operations (80.5) (319.3)
ncome tax refund (net of taxes paid ) 38.1 36.6
Net cash flow used in operuiing activities {A) (42.4) (282.8)
Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities

Purchase of property, plant aud equipment (19.3) {0.4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32 6.6
Sale of current investments (net) (72.0) (58.4)
Proceeds from liqudation of the subsidiary 75.0 (749.9)
Sale of investment in subsidiaries 1.2 409.7
Profit in lien of investment - 0.3
Dividend received - 0.6
Repayment of equity - 2.6
Purchase/(Redemption)/(maturity of bank deposits) (having original maturity of more than three (1.7 104.2
months} {net)

Loans given to/ (repaid) by subsidiaries (net of provisions) - 5493
Itergst un loan to refated parties - 85.5
Interest received on bank deposits 234 234
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 32 3735
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (43.4) (16.5)
Interest paid @7 (5.0)
Money received against share warrants 14.8

Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (31.3) (21.5)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (70.5) 69.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 79.6 104
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9.1 79.6




Snapdenl Private Limited (Formerly kuown as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year énded March 31, 2019
(All amounts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Far the year ended For the year ended
Pdrticulars v March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand - -
Cheques on hand

Balances with banks;

~ on current account . 91 79.6
~on deposit account

Total cash and cash equivalents 91 . 796

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

1. The above cash flow statemient has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Ind AS 7 on Cash Flow Statements notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate affairs,

2. The above cash flow statement has been compiled from and is based on the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019 and the relateq Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that
date,

3. Figures in brackets indicates cash outflow.,
4. Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confonn to the current year classification.
As per our report of even date,

For S. R. Batliboi & Co, LLP For and en behalf of board of directors of

Chartered Accountants Snapdeal Private Limited
CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E390005~- W

{Formerly known as Jagpef Tnfotech Private Limited)
»ﬁ,@ 5@/[ ;. J
i ~ LA Tond

Kunal Ball Rohit Kumar Bansal
Director Director

per Nilangshe Katriar

Partner

fumber: 058814

r)‘ N
K"’J\
Place of Signature; Gurnugramn 8 antlon Vikas Bhgsi
Date: June 07, 2019 (umpuy/.‘;uecremry 4c}biv:f{imﬂz-:cial Officer
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Suapdent Private Limited (Formerly knowat as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Nates to ¥al ial

2

-
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Corporate information

Snapdzal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Tnfotech Private Limited) (herein after referred 10 as "the Campany”) was incorporated on September 12, 2007 as.a Private Lumited Company under the Companies Act,
1956. The Coinpany is engayed in-the bust of establishing, developing, designi producing and conceptualizing direct marketing solutions through web and non-web based platforms. The registered office of the
Company is situated at D-181, Suite 181-TR4, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Dethi - 110020,

The staridalone financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Diregtors on June 07, 2019.

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation
The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance \with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate affairs.
The standatone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

- Derivative Financial Instruments

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financia instruments)

The dalone financial ts are | 1in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest crores (INR 00,00,000), except when othenwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cursent/ non-éurrent classification. An asset is treated as current when it ist
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold of consumed in normal-operating eycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be reatised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Casli or cash equivalent unless jcted from being exch d or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-cusrent.

A liabifity is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operaling cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Jtis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the sextlement of the liability for at least twelve rmonths after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other Tiabilities as non-current,

The opetating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their (ealisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company pas identified tvelve manths A its operating cyele.
b. Foreign currencies

The Company's dalone financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's fanctional eurrency.

Transpctions und balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are nitially secorded by the Company at the spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. g

Manetary assets and linbilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or transiation of inonetary items afe recognised in profit or loss with the exception of the following:

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net i in a foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financinl statements of the reporting entity or the
individial financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that inctude the foreign operation and the reporting entity (2.4, lidated financial when the foreign operation
is asubsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCL. These exchange dilterences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment,

- Exchange diiferences arising on monetary items that are designated as pari of the hedge of the Company’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCT until the net investment is disposed off, at
which time, the lative amount is reclassified to profit of loss.

- Tak charjzes and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL
Non-monetary items that are measured i terms of historicat cost in a foreign currency are (ranslated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at far value in a foreign

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when te Tair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on lation of non- ary items 1 at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
wzain or loss on the change ity fair-value of the item (i.e., translation ditterences on items whose fair value gain or foss is recognised in OCI or profit or Joss are also recognised in OCY or profit or loss, respectively).

¢, Fair value measurement

“The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Kability in an orderly transaction between market
presumption that the wransaction ta sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place eithet.

- Tn thee principal market for the asset of linbility, or

- In the absence of a principnl market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability

iciy at the 1 date. The fair value measurement is based on the

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair vatue of an asset or a liability is d using the ptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fuir value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by nsing the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses val hni that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to fair value, maximising the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimising the use of
unubservable inputs. ’
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial ts are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as Tollows, based on the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair

valite measurement as a whole:

-Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Vahiation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is signiticant to the fair value measurement is divently or indirectly observable
. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Far assets and liabilities that ace recognised in the fi inf st on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether wansfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financinl assets, and significant abilities, such as contingent consideration.

| v signif For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the
company has determined classes of assets and linbilities on the basis of the uature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the le

vel of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset_or, liahility and the level of the fair value

explained above. "\\ e
PRI
) <

hierarchy as




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jdasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to { fi inl

d. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recogrized to the extent that it is probable that the econamic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably d regardless of when the-pay is being made. Revenue is measured at
the fair vahie of the ideration received or receivable, taking into accaunt contractually defined terms of payinent and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of yovernment,

The specific recognition criteria described below are followed before revenye is recognized:

Revenue from marketing fees
Revenues from operating an internet portal providing all sorts of infarmation about various deals for products and sérvices are recognised upon rendering of services and measured on delivery of products, The Company

collects service taxes on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not ecoromic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Revenues from products shipped are deferred titf it is
delivered to the ultimate and is disclosed as deferred revenue, Revenues from advertisements are recognised as and when displayed in the integnet portal.

Other eperating revenue

Revenues. from ancillary activities e.45. providing services for cofection, Rilfilment centre, packaging facilitation, courier facilitation and freight charges recovered from the S elc. are recognised upon rendering of

services and measured on delivery of products. Service leve penalties for delay, faulty deliveries, stock out etc. recovered from the sellers are recognised once right to recover is established and it is reasonable to expect
lti llection. R from reverse ship €.4. caurier fees, payment collection fees ete, are recognised upon delivery of products to sellers and it is r ble to expect ulti llection.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated fiiture cash Ppayments or receipits over the expected fife of the fnancial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 1o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company esti the exp d cash flows by consideri g all the ¢ ctual terms of the financial i {tor ple, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included under the head finance income in the statement of profit and lvss.

Unbilled revenue
Receivables are generally carried at the original invoiced amonn, fess an allowance for dovbifisl receivables where there is objective evidence that balances will not be recovered in fusll, Unbifled receivables is fecognised to
the extent for the services not billed at the period cnd,

e. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected fo be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India ond tax laws prevailing in
the respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, ar the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to iteins recognised outside profit or foss is recagnised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are ised in correlation to the winds lying
" )

transaction either in OCI or directly in eoquity, M; peri y tes positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjzet to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their casrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the feporting date,

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary ditferences, except: .

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initia) recognition of goodwill or an asset or linbility in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss )

- In respect of taxable emporary differences inted with investments in subsidiari 3 ciates and interests in jeint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary difterences can be controlled and itis
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresesable fiture .

Deferred tax assets are ised for alf deductibl porary ditferences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it js probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forwaed of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utifised, except:

~ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difterence arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respest of deductible temporary differences iated with iny in subsidiaries, iates and | ts in joint veninres, deferred tax assets are recagnised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that suflicient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 1o
be utifised. Unrecognised deferred 1ax fssets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deterred tax nsset to be recovered;

Deferred 1ax asséts and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the linhility is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, :

Deferred tax relating to items recognised owtside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or foss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCJ or directly in'equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set oft current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority;

Tax benefits acejuiredd as part of a business combination, but not satistying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are wnised subsequently if new infe ion about facts and circumstances change. Acquired
deferred tox benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. [ the
carrying amount of goodwill js 2eto, any remaining deferred tax benelits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains, All other acquired tax benefits realised are
recognised-in profit or loss,

(This space has beep left blank ihtemional!y)




Suupdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to falone finaneinl

f: Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainnent losses, if any. Such cost inclndes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant
and equipment and borrowing costs if the recogaition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required 10 be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based an their
specific usefil lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. AN ather repair
and mai costs are ised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated wseful lives of the assets as follows

Category of assets Estimated useful life
Computers and data processing units 3 -6 years

Vehicles 8 vears

Flectric aaiinment ) 10 vears

Furniture and fittings 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Depreciation on assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata basis from the date of purchase of fixed assets.
Leasehold Improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the lower of lease term or usefil life of the respective assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon fisposal or when no future ecanomic bengfits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecoynition of the nsset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equi ace reviewed at each ial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are 1 on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition, Followiny initial recognition,
intangible assets nre carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated i ibl ccluding capitalised development costs, are not capitafised and the related
cxpenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful fives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite fives are aiortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impainnent whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amottisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting peiiod. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattemn of e ption of future

benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and ar¢ trented as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.Technology cost includes all the manpower expenses associated with development, acquisition,
L Lo ;

3 ion, deploy 8 of technology. Further capitalisation of technology cost is doe based on 2 years assessment performed.

{ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impainment annually, either individually orat the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable, If not, the change in uselul life from indefinite 1o finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses atising from derecognition of an i
when the asset is derecopnised.

asset are d as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss

h. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of ah asset that necessanily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
assel, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entily incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowiny cost also
inclides exchange differences to the extent regarded as on adjustment to the borrowiny costs.

i. Leases

| £ il

The determination of whether an acrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the of the arr at the incey of the lease, The arrang is, ar ins, a lease i
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not expliciily specified in an arrangement,

of the arrany is

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2015, the Company has determined whether the asrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circimstances existing un the date of transition.

Conipany uis o lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, A lease that transfers substantiafly all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified os a finance lease,

Finance Jeases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the mini lease pay Lease pay are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining baance of the liability. Finanice charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit.and
loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualitying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs (See note 2.2:h). Contil réntals are ised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred,

A leased asset is depreciated over the usefuil life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lense tenm, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated usefill life of the asset and the lease term,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Company as alessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rentat income from operating leasé is recopnised on a stralght-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in neyotiating and arrangini an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Lenses arc classified as finance leases wien substantially all of the risks and rewards of awnership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company’s net investment in the leses. Finance leass incom is allocated to accounting periods 50 as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return an the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(This space has been lelt blank intentionally)
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i- Impairment of nou-finnncial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assct’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in uge, Recoverable amount is determined for an individyal
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Companys uf assets.

When'the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is wiitten down to its recoverable amount.

In ing value in use, the esti futire cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessiments of the time value of money and the risks specitic to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an Appropriate valuation model is used, These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly. rraded panies or other available fair value indj X :

The Company bases its impairment caliulation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated, These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-ten growth rate is calculated and applied to praject finture cash flows after the fih year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budyets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using 1 steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justitied. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average urowth rate for the products, industrics, or country or countries in which the €ntity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment an inventories, are recognised in the statement of prafit and loss, except for properties pireviously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to-OCI. For
sueh properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to'the amount of any previous revaliation surphs.

For assets excluding g ill, an is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is on indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amonunt, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been p change in the assumptions used 1o detennine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset docs not exceed its recoverable #mOUnL, nor exceed the carrying amount. that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case,
the reversal is treated o5 a revaluation increase.

Gooduwill is tested for impairment annually near year end and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired,

Impairment is determined for soodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its canying amount, an
impaiment loss is recognised, Impainment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future perivds,

Ie Provisions

General

Pravisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of o past event, it is probablé that an outflow of resources embodying ezonomic benefits will be required to settle the
abligation asid a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of o provision to be wimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbutsement js
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement js virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a corrent pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropiidte, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of'time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provision for sales return
Provision townrds Sales Return is made on th busis of best estimate of expected product returms subsequent to the period end based on historical experience,

Provision for bonus
Provision for honus is recognised on time proportion basis over the period of service,

Provisions for onerous contracts .

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the fiture obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expested cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contret, Before a provision is established, the Company recognizes
any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract,

L Retirement and other employee benefits

the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contibution already paid, the
id exceeds the contiibution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then

In accordance with Indian law, the Company provides for grawity, n defined benefit reticement plan (the "Gratuity Plon™) covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a hunp sum payment to vested employees on
retirement or on termination of employment for an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the years of: pl with the Company.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method based on an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary.

R 2 prising of ial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the balnce sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they oceur. Remensurements are not reclassified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

- The date that the Company recognises related 1estructuring costs

Net interest s caleutated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benetit obligation as an expense in the consolidated
statement of profit and Joss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non routine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income

m. Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remunerstion in the forn of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity Settles transactions .

The cost of equity-settied transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model,

That cost is recognised, together with a corr ling increase in share-based i nt (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employes henefits expense,
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each Teporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to shich the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The staterent of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the iovement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employer benetit expense,

Service and non-marker performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelilwud of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that wilf ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are rellected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions, Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lcad to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions,

No expense is recognised for awards thar do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a inarker or non-vesting condition, thie transactions nre
treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or noti-vesting condition is satistied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satistied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are moditied, the minimun expense recognised is the expense had the tenms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expen
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payiment teansaction, or is othenwise beneficial to the employee as measured a1 the aw’u‘g_n{(;;!ﬁm jon \Where an award is cancelléd by
by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss. .\/ ? I/,q ()\ :

is recognised
the entity or

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additionat share dilution in the compitation of dituted earnings per share,
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n. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initiul recognition und measurement

1 1

Financial assets are ified, at initial recognition, as (uently measured at amortised cost, fair vahue through other comprehensive income (OCK), and fair value through profic or loss. The chssification of financial

assets at initial r i ds on the financial ssset’s I cash flow characteristics and the Comy t model for ing:. them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component-or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the casc of a financinl asset not at fair vatue through profit or loss,
transaction costs, Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are i at the ion price detennined wnder Ind AS 115.

Refer to the accounting policies in seetion (d) Revenue recognition.

Inorder for a financial asset 10 be classified and measured at amortised cost of fair value through OCH, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest'(SPPIY' on the principal amount
outstanding, This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level,

The Companies business model for managing financial assets refers 1o how jt manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model detenmines whether cash tlows will sesult from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the matket place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the
Coimpany commits to purchase or sell the asset. :

Subsequent measarement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost

_ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

- Debt instruinents, derivatives and equity instuments at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

~ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A *debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting countractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After jnitial such $i ial assets are quently v 1 at amotised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integrat part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or foss. The losses arising from impairment are vecopnised in the profit or loss. This categary
generally-applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FYTOCI

A *debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTQCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractunl cash flows and selling the financint assets, and
b) The asset’s | cash flows rep SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value m are r ized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the

Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange pain or loss jn the PXL. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative yain or loss previously recognised in OCLisr lassitied from the

equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method

Debt instrument at FYTPL

FYTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL, is classified as at FVTRL.

In addition, the Company may elect ta designate a debt instrument, which othenwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI ciiteria, a5 at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if dolng so reduces or efiminates a
or ition i i y (referred to as ‘accounting mi h'). The Company has not designated any. deht instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments inchided within the FVTPL category are ieasured at fair value with atl changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 100 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in & business combination to which Ind AS103
applies ate classitied as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other compreh income changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on asi instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrament as at FVTOCI, then all fair value chanues on the instrument, exchiding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from 0CI 1o PXL,
even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a finuncial asset or part afa Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

- The rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has asswmed an obligation 16 pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferved
contro! of the asset.

Whien the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it ovaluntes if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The wransferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the sights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaraniee over thie transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maxi amaunt of ideration that the Company could
be required o repay.

Impairment of financial assets

[n aceordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies-expected credit loss (ECL) model for measureiment and recognition of impairment loss on the followiny financial assets and eredit risk exposure:
a) Finoncial assets that are measured at amortisad cost e.g., foans, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Available for sale financial assets

c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

&) Trade receivables of any contractual right to seceive eash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impatrment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
- All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does’ not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recogaises impainment Joss allowance based on fifetime ECLs at each reporiing date, right from its initial
recoynition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been 2 significant increase in the credit risk since initial secognition. 1 credit tisk has not
ey X

increased significantly, 12-month ECL is vsed to provide for impaimment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, tifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsedaft |‘eﬁrfd\}r\ it quality of the ins nent.improves s';uélk
that there is nio longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to r ising impail loss all based on 1250k ECL. } e e 3
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting {rom all possible default events over the expected lite of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is » portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible withinn 12 months aRter the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and ol the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the ariginal
EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: :

- All | terins of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected: life of the financial
instnement cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining conteactual term of the finangial instrument

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolic of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on ils historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for torward- king esti At every reparting date, the historical dbserved default rates are updated and changes in the forward-tooking estimates are analysed. On
that basis, the Company estimates the following provision matrix at the reporting date:

. 0-15 days past due 16-30 days past due | 31-60 duys pustdue | 61-90 days past due | 90-120 days past due | 120-180 days past due Above lfl?l:nys past

Trade receivables 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 100% 100%

COD receivables (Open Shipment) Nii Nil Nil 50% 100% 100% 100%

COD receivables (Delivered Shipment) Nil 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Product Sellers (Debit Balances) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Insurance Receivables Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit 100%

[ i 0-180 pust due | 181270 pastdue | 271-365 past dug | _Above 365 past due
{Bank Receivables | Nil | 25% ] 0% | 100% !

ECL impaitment loss alk {or reversal) 1 ized during the period is recopnized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L.

The balance sheet j ion for various financial i s is described befow:

- Financial asscts measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenne receivables and lease receivabless ECL is presented as an allowance, ie., as an integral part of the menstirement of those assets in the halance sheet, The
allowance reduces the net earrying amount. Until the nsset meets write-ofFcriterin, the Company does not reditce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

- Available for sale financial assets: Since Financial assets are already reflectad at fair value, impairment allowance is niot further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impainment amount’
inthe OCL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or of iginated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit paired on purchase/ origination,
Financial liabilities

Tndtial recognition and measurement

Financial fiabilities are classified, at initial ition, as financial liabilities at frir value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables asapproptiate,

All ial liabilities are recogised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

‘The Company's financial liabilities inchide trade and other payables, loans and borrowings inchuding bank overdrafts and derivative financinl instrumentg.~

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Subsequent measurenent
The of fi ial liabilities d ds on their classification, as described below:

P
Financinl liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for tradiny if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasiug in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedginy instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated crubedded derivatives ate also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial linbilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initinl date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ fosses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These yains/ loss are not subsequently transterred to P&L. However, the Cormpany may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit orloss: The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value thraugh profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recogaition, interest-bearing loans and horrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Aumortised cost is calculuted by taking into account any di or fum on acquisiti

I and fees or costs that are an integral part-of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

1

Derecognition

A financial iability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial fiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a-new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is n camponent of a hybrid (combined) instnument that also inclutles a non-derivative host contract - with the effeet that some of the cash flows of the combined instrament vary in a way similar to a
standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instument price,
commadity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific (0 a party to the contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial dssetout of the fair value through
profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109
to the cntire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as derivatives and ded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or desiunated at fair valite though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair vahue with changes in fair valie recognised in profit or loss,
unless designated as effective hedging instruments,

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassilication is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial labilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the husiness model for managing those assets. Changes to-the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s
senior management determines change in the business model #s a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the
business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant 1o ils operations. I the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively fiom the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (inctading impsirment gains
or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financia assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intentivn to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities simultaneously. '

0. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term depasits with an origiml maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-tenm depasits, as defined abuve, net of autstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company's cash management,

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New nnd amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of ad ption of these new ing standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, bt do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 way issued on March 28, 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and fnd.AS 18 Revenne and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from cantracts with its customers. Ind AS
115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an 2mount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,

Ind AS 115 requirs cntities to exercise judygement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying cach step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specities the
accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract

In addition, the standard requires extensive discl s. The Company adopted modified retrospective approach for Ind AS 115 in the current year and assessed that there is tegligible impact from the previous standard.

{Thix space has been lefi blank intentionally)
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Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements
(Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

5. Investment in subsidiaries and associates
~ayestaent in subsidiaries and associates

As at
March 31, 2019

Asat
March 31,2018

Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in preference instruments (Imqndlerl)
Investment in subsidiaries:

16,597 (March 31, 2018: 16597) 0.001% Compulsorily
Unicommerce e-Solutions Private Limited (notc A below)

convertible Prefcrence shares of Rs, 100 each - folly paid-up in

Investment in equity insiruments (unquoted)
Investment in subsidiaries:
Nit {March 31, 20 18:92,500,000) Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up in E-Agility Solutions Private Limited.

22,810 (March 31, 2018: 22,810) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Unicommerce e-Solutions Private Limited (note
A below)

Investment in associates:

474 890 (March 31, 2018:474,890) Equity shates of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Tetra Media Private Limited (note B befow)

Total

Investment on account of ESOP cost for employees of Subsidiaries ;
= Unicommeree e-Solutions Private Limited (note C below)

Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of Investments
- Tetra Media Private Limited (note B below)

- E-Agility Solutions Private Limited {note D below)

- Uniconnmerce e-Solutions Private Limited

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Current
Non-current

1316 1316
- 925
138.7 138.7
15.0 15.0
285.3 377.8
0.4 04
0.4 0.4
(15.0) (15.0)
. (18.5)
(145.7) (145.7)
(160.7) {1792)
125.0 199.0
- 74.0
125.0 125.0
125.0 19,0
1290

Note A : During the previous year , the Coﬁnpany has invested Rs 24 cr in Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited thereby raising its sharcholding to 100%.,

Note B : The Company acquired 60.601% shareholding in Tetra Media Private Limited during the financial year 2014-15 wherein it has 40.41% voting rights and economic benefits to the

extent of its shareholding. The Company has made a provision of Rs. 15.0 cr in diminution in value of investment in Tetra Media

Private Limited,

Note C : The Company has issued stock options to various employees including employees of the Unicommnerce e-Solutions Private Limited. The total employee stock option cost accrued
pertaining to the employees of the Unicommerce e-Solutions Private Limited upto March 3 1, 2019 has been transferred to respective Unicommerce e-Solutions Private Limited in

accordance with para 43A of Tnd AS 102 “Share Based Payment",

Note D: The Company in its wholly owned subsidiary E-Agility Solutions Private Limited had created the itmpairment provision of Rs 18.5 ¢r during
Company has volumtary liquidated its wholly owned subsidiary E-Agility Solutions Private Limited and received a sum of Rs. 75 Cr from E-

the reversai of impairment provisions created it the previous years,

(This space hax been lefi blank intentionally)
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Snapdenl Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

Notes to standalone fi ial stat

(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

6. Financial assets

As at

March 31, 2019

Asat
March 31,2018

Investments

Investments at fair value through profit & loss (fully paid)

Unquoted mutual funds

Nil (March 31, 2018:756,203) units SBI Mutual Fund

Nil (March 31, 2018: 127,93,949) units of ICIC] Prudential Mutual Fund
30,605 (March 31, 2018 :Nil) units of Tata Liquid Mutual Fund

Nil (March 31, 2018: 108,998 ) units of Kotak Mutual Fund

Nil (March 31, 2018: 200,00,000) units of DSP Black Rock Liquidity Fund
Nil (March 31, 2018: 80,32.970) units L&T Mutual Fund

Nil (March 31, 2018: 200,00,0001) units of HDFC Mutual Fund

Total investments at fair value through profit & loss

Commercial Paper/Bonds

Kotak Mahindra Investment Limitcd

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Aditya Birla Finance Limited
Bajaj Finance Limited

Cliolamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

HDFC Limited
LIC Housing Finance Limited
Mabhindra & Mahindra Limited

Tata Capital Finance Services Limited

HDB Financial Services Limited

Total investments at fair value through profit & loss

Agprepate value of unquoted investments

Investments in other entities

Invesiment in preference instruments (unquoted) at cost
4,152 (March 31, 2018: 4,152) 0.001% Preference shares ot Rs. 100 each- fully paid-up in Nuvo Logistics Private Limited,

1111 (March 31, 2018: 1.111) 0.01% Compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in

Smartprix Web Private Limited.

The Company shall have the right at any time to convert all or some of the preference shares held by it into equity shares (1
share per CCPS). Such shares, however are campulsorily convertible on 19th anniversary from the date of issue.

Investment in equity instruments (unquoted) at cost

Investment in other equity instruments: ) :
10 (March 31, 2018: 10) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Nuvo Logistics Private Limited.

Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of Investments

-~ Smartprix Web Private Limited

- Nuvo Logistics Private Limited

Total investments

Current
Non-cutrent

(Thix spuce has been lefi blank intentionally)

. 185.3
- 772
9.0 .

- 254
- 2.2
- 3.2
. 20.1
9.0 I5L4
495 26
49.6 232
50.0 .
24.9 .
250 -
25.0 .
1085 -
250 -
138 -
30.1 -
70.1 20.1
4915 66.9
500.5 4183
92.9 929
0.6 0.6
02 02
(0.6) 0.6)

(83.8) (83.8)
93 93

509.8 427.6.

5005 4183
93 93

509.8 2716




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial stat ts
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and us stated otherwise)

Other financial assets

Security deposits

Considered good 47.6 34.4
Considered doubtful - 1.1
47.6 35.5
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits - [¢R}]
47.6 344
Nen Current bank balances .
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 montbhs (note 11) 0.1 0.0
Margin money deposit (note 1ty 0.7 0.0
0.8 {10
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Considered good ) 1722 1091
Considered doubttul 153.7 153.7
325.9 262.8
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (133.7) : (153.7)
172.2 109.1
Recoverable from related party
Considered good - 0.1
Considered doubtful : - -
- 0.1
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - -
- 0.1
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 422 12.3
Restricted cash held in separate accoumts * 204 304
Total other financial assets 2922 186.3
Total Current 278.1 186.3
Total Non-current ' 14.1 0.0
292.2 186.3

* Pursuant to the directives of the Reserve Bank of India, the Company received amount in its nodal account towards all transactions happening on its portal through debit/ credit cards and
net banking. From such nodal account, the Company transfers the respective amount ta seller/customer, This balance lying in such nada account as at March 31, 2019 and March 31,2018
is disclosed as Restricted Cash held in separate accounts’ in the financial statements,

[nvestments at fair valye through Profit & Loss (fully paid) reflect investment in quoted and unquoted equity securities and quoted debt securities ( Refer note 32),

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost:

Trade receivables (note N 9.2 4.8
Cash and cash equivalents (note 10) 9.1 79.6
Other financial assets (note 6) 292.2 186.3
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 310.5 270.7
a1

(This space hay heen Lefi hlank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly knpwn as Jasper Infotech Private Limited}
Naotes to standalone financial statements
(Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

7. _Prepavments

Asat As at
March 31,2019 NMarch 31, 2018
Considered good 9.9 19
Considered doubtful 24 2.7
12.3 10.6
Less: Provision for doubttul advances 2.4) 2.7)
Total prepayments 9.9 7.9
Current 34 7.9
Non-current 6.3 -
9.9 1.9
. _Other assets
As at As at
Mareh 31,2019 March 31,2018
Adyance income-tax 34.2 723
Advance to employees 0.1 0.0
Balances with statutory/govemment authorities 214.1 220.2
248.4 292.5
Less: Provision for doubtfui advances (170.0) (170.1)
Total other assets 78.3 122.4
Current 44.1 50.1
Non-current 342 72.3
78.3 122.4
. Trade receivables
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Trade receivables
Trade receivables 9.2 438
Total trade receivables 9 4.8
Breakup for security details:
Trade receivables
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivables considered pood - Unsecured 92 48
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 22.1 235
Trade Receivables-credit imparied . .
313 283
Impairment Allowance {allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Receivables which have significaut increase in Credit Risk 22.H) (23.5)
{22.1) (23.5)
Total trade receivables 9.2 4.8
Current 92 4.8
Non-current - .
9.2 4.8

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the comnpany either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from finns or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a meiber.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

(This space has heen left Blank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known ay Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

10. _Cash and cash equivalent
As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Balances with banks:

~ On current accounts 9.1 1.6

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 0.0 78.0
Cash on hand 0.0 0.0
9.1 79.6

Casl at banks carns interest at tloating rates based on daily buuk deposit rates. Short-tern deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Balances with banks:

~ On current accounts ) ) 9.1 L6
—Deposits with originai maturity of less than three months 0.0 78.0
Cash on hand 0.0 0.0
9.1 79.6
L1 _Bank balances other than above
As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months . 50.6 0.9
Deposits with original maturity for more thah 3 months but less than 12 months 145.1 789
Margin money deposit* 66.1 174.3
261.8 254.1
Less: disclosed under other non-current financial assets (note 6) 0.8) 0.0)
i 2l t t ¥ 1 4

Total bank balance other than above 261.0 254.1

. * Margin money deposits given as security :
Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 0.65 cr (March 31,2018 Rs 0.65 Cr) are subject to lien to secure comorate credit card limit from a bank.
Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 0.0] ¢r (March 31, 2018: Rs 0,01 Cr) is subjeet to lien for bank guarantee given to Income tax authority,
Margin money deposit with a cartying amount of Rs 0.22 ¢r (March 31, 2018: Rs 0.25 Cr) is subject to lien for bank guarantee given to VAT authority.
Margin money deposit with a carmrying amount of Rs 0.75 or {March 31, 2018: R5 0,75 cr) is subject to lien for bank guarantee given against business travel agreements.
Margin money deposit with a carrying amotint of Rs 1,05 ¢r (March 31, 2018: Rs 10.75 cr) is subject to Hen for bank guarantee given against services from India Post.
Margin money deposit with o cartying amount of Rs. 13.4 cr (March 31, 2018: 61.9] Cr) are subject to lien for bank Buarantee given against borrowing facilities from CISCaQ.
Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 40,0 cr (March 31, 2018: Rs 100,02 Cr) are subject to lien for overdraft facility taken from HDFC.

Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 10.0 or (March 31, 2018: Nil} is subject to lien for bank guarantee given 10 liqudator of wholly owned subsidiary E-Agility Sohitions
Private Limited ,

(This space has heen lefi hlank intentionally)




Snapdenl Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial sta t
(All amounts in INR Crore, cxcept per share datn and as stated vtherwise)

12. Share Capital

Asat Asat
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Authorized share capital

89,151,800 (March 31, 2018: 1.000,000) Equity Shares of Re. 1 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 1) each 8.9 0.1
20,000 (March 31, 2018: 20,000) compulsory convertible comulative series A preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,000 (March 31, 2018: 25,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series B prefecence shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,000 (March 31, 2018: 25,000) compulsory convertible lative series C preft shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,000 (March 31, 2018: 25,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series D preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.3 03
25,000 (March 31, 2018: 25,000) compulsory convertii:le cumulative series E preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.3 0.3
3,000 (March 31, 2018: 3,000) compulsory convertible cumulntive series E1 preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.0 0.0
34.500 (March 31, 2018: 34,500) compulsory convertible lative series F prefi shares of Rs. 100 each 03 03
80,000 (March 31, 2018: 80,000) compulsory convertible lative series G prefi shares of Rs. 100 each 0.8 038
20,000 (March 31, 2018: 20,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series H preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.2 02
400,000 (March 3 1, 2018: 400,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series { preference shares of Rs. 100 each 4.0 4.0
105,000 (Murch 31, 2018 105,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series J preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.1 0.1
17,410 (March 31, 2013: 174 10) compulsory convertible cumulative series J1 preference shares of Rs, 20 each . 0.0 0.0
14.9 6.1

Issued Share Capital

2,464,823 (March 31, 2018:225,860) squity shares of Re. 1 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 1} each fully paid-up 0.2 0.0
Nit (March 31, 2018: 16,132) comy {sory convertible cumulative participating series A preference shiares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 22.344) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series B preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 13.852) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series C preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nilv(March 31,2018: 15,749) compulsory convertible lative participating series D pref ence shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.2
Nil (Macch 31, 2018: 21,843) compulsory canvertible cumnulative participating series E preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.2
Nil (March 31, 2018: 2,068) comp Isory convertible ltive padticipating series E1 preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nit (March 31, 2018: 14,674) compulsory convertible cwmilative panic.ipming_ series F preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.1
Nil (March 31, 2018: 75.514) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series G preference shares uf Rs. 100 cach fully paid-up - 08
Nit {harch 31, 2018: 11,780) compulsory convertible cumulative participating serics H preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.1
10,370 (March 31, 2018: 263,711) compulsory convertible Intive particiy series 1 p shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up 0.1 2.6
44,348 (March 31, 2018: 73,000) comy Isory convertible Iative participating series J preference shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up 0.0 0.1
Nil (March 31, 2018: 12,410) compulsory convertible cumulative series J1 preference shares of Rs. 20 each - 0.0
Total issued share capital 6.3 4.1
Subscribed & fully paid up shares

2,464,823 (March 31, 2018:225,860) equity shares of Re. 1 each fully paid-up 02 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 16,132) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series A preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 22,344) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series B preference shares of Rs. 10 eachi fully paid-up B 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 13,852) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series C preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up . - 0.0
Nit (March 31, 2018: 15.749) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series D pref shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.2
Nil (March 31, 2018: 21,843) compulsory convertible lative participating series E prefe shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.2
Nil (March 31, 2018: 2,008) compulsory convertible lative participating series E1 preft nee shares of Rs, 100 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 14.674) compulsory convertible lative participating serics F pref: shares of Rs. 100 euch fully paid-up ) - 0.1
Nil (March 31, 20(8: 75.314) compuisory convertible cumulative participating series G preft shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.8
Nil(Marchi 31, 2018: 11.780) compulsory couvertible lative particiy series H prefi shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.1
Nil (March 31, 2018; 253,341) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series | preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up ’ - 2.6
Nil (March 31, 2018: 28.652) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series J preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 17.410) compulsory convertible cumulative series J1 preference shares of Rs. 20 each - 0.0
Total Subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 0.2 N A (]

(This space has been left Mank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited ( Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
ind state

o

Nates to standal
{Allamounts in INR Crore

s xcept per share data and ns stated otherwise)

{a) Reconcilintion of the sh

ares ontstanding at the beginning

and at the end of the reporting vear

Equity shares
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

No. Rs. No. Rs.
At the beginning of the Year 225860 - 0.0 2.93.060 0.0
Conversion during the vear 22.38.963 2 - 0.0
Buv Back of shares - - {67.200 -0.0
Outstanding at the end of the yenr 24,64,823 0.2 2,25,360 0.0
Preference shares

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

No Rs. Ne Ry
At the beginning of the vear
Compulsony convertible ive series A prefe shares of Rs 10 each 16,132 .0 16.132 00
Compulsory conventible ltive series B preference shares of Rs 10 each 22344 a0 22.344 0.0
Compulsory convertible lative series C preference shares of Rs 10 each 13,852 0.0 13.852 0.0
Compulsory conveible lative series D pref: shares of Rs 100 eachy 15749 0.2 15,749 0.2
Compulsory ible ive series E preference shares of Rs 100 each 21443 0.2 21843 0.2
Compulsory entibl lative series E} p nce shares of Rs {0 ench 2.068 0.0 2.068 0.0
Comy v conventiblé lative series F pref: shares of Rs 100 each 14.674 0.1 .674 0.1
Comp v conventible lative series G pref: shares of Rs 100 each 73.514 08 EARTE] 0.8
Compulsory convertible lative series H prafi shares of Rs 100 each 11.780 0.1 H.rgo 0.1
C Isory convertibl lative series 1 pref; shares of Rs 100 each T 2.53341 2.6 2.53.341 2.6
Ci v convertible lative series J praf; ¢ shares of Rs 10) each 28,652 0.0 28.652 0.0
Comy v convertible series J1 prefe shares of Rs 20 sach 17410 0.0 17.410 00

during the 1! ayy]
Comy ¥ converlible lative series A profe shares of Rs 10 each (16.132) 0.0) - -
Comy v convertible lotive series B prefe shares of Rs 10 each (22.344) [(iXD)) - -
C Isory ible ive saries C prefi shares of Rs 10 each (13.852) (0.0) - -
Compul v convertible series D preference shares of Rs 1) each (15.799) 0.2) -
Compulsory & ibl lative series B prefe shares of Rs 100 each (21.843) (0.2) - B
Compulsory bl lative series E} prefe shares of Rs 1000 each (2.068) [(XD)) - -
Compulsory le lative series F prefe shates of Rs 100 sach (14.679) o.1) - -
Comp \ cumulative series G pref: ¢ shares of Rs 100 each (75.514) (0.8) - -
Compulsory Intive series H prefe 1ee shares of Rs 100 each (11.780) .1y . -
Compulsory convenible curila series I prefirence shares of Rs 00 each (2.53.341) {2.6) - -
Compulsory bl series I preference shares of Rs 10 each (28.652) (.n) - ‘
Compulsory ibl series )1 pref: shares of Rs 20 each 741 .0y - -
af the the vear

C v convertible Intive series A preferenca shares of Rs 1 each - - 16.132 0.0
Compuisory ible cumulative series B preference shares of Rs 10 each - - 22344 0.0
Comy v convertible Iative series C pref shates of Rs 10 each - - 13.852 LX)
Comyp ¥ convertible series D prefe e shares of Rs 100) ench - - 13749 0.2
Compulsory convenible lative serics E praf; shares of Rs 100 each - - 21843 2
Compulsory ¢ ibl [ series El prefi shares of Rs 100 wach - - 2,068 e
Compulsory converible ive series F prefi shares of Rs 141} each . - 14.674 [iX]
Compulsory convenible ive series G pref: < shares of Rs 100 each - - 75.514 08
Compulsory converfible I series H pieference shaes ol Rs 100 gach - - 11,780 0.1
Compulsory ibls Iative series I prafe ¢ shares of Rs 100 each . - 253344 2.6
Compulsory: convertibla Iative serjes § prefe shares of Rs 10 each - - 28,652 00
Comyp v convertible lative series J1 preforence shares of Rs 20 each - 17.410 00

Outsinncﬁng t the end of the year

+4,93,359

+.0

* The Company has during the vear has undertaken the conversjon of Series A. B. €, D, E,
accordance with provisions of the Anticle of Association, ¢ Ivthe entire

HLJ&n compulsory convertible

has been left hlank intentiopallyy

preference shares into equity shares. pursuant to
onverted into equity shares.

the change in control jn




Snandest Private Limited (Formesdy known as Jusuer lnfotech Private Limitedy
Notes to standulone financial statements
(Al nmounts in INR Crore, exgept per shivre duta it s stated otherwise)

(M) Ayregute number of shures bought hick duriny the period of fve yeary fnedintely preceifing the rupurﬁm{ date:

Particulars Durch 31, 20119 March 31, 2014 March 31,2017 Blarch 31,2016 Darch 31, 2018
Nux Nos Nos Nos Neis
Exquity shares bought bk by the Company - 6H7.200 - - -

(¢) Details of sharcholdurs holdinge mors thin 5% shares in thy Company,

Particulars Murch 31,2014 Murch 3{, 2088

Nog, <% Holdinit Noy % Holdine,
Eauity shares of Re, 1 euch fully paid-un
Kunal Bahl L0773 44% LO3 . R6Y 46.9%
Rohit Bausat 320 3439 29.4%
Nexus fudia Dircet Tnvestments 1 235,160 - 0%
Ebav Sinzanore Senvices Pre Lid 1A0N50 - A%
Stuefish [ Pre. Lid. . R4 - 00%
B2 Professionat Servicestm LLP 2.53.480 - 0k
Outario Teachers' Pension Plan Board 0872 11462 4%
Kenueth § Gluss e Anpel Venturs Capital 27,44 15, (KID RO
Preference sliares .
Compulsors convertible cumulative nreference shares
Starfish | Pte. Ld. - B L3yt DA%
Wounderful Stars Pre. Lid. - 00%% RLOBG 16.7%
Alibaba.com Singmpore E-Commerce Privite Limited 0irs R2OHD 16.7%

As per records of the Compaty. tnchuding its register of sharcholtlers/ members the above stinreliolding represeats tegal ownerstiips of shares, ARl the shiareholders huve legal ow nrship it the shares.

(1) Details of shareholders halding more than 3% shared for cuch class of preference shayes in the Canpany.

Particulars _ Mareh3t2019 Mapsh3lL 28
03, o% Holiling. Nos, % Holdinie,

Series A= C tsorv convertible ive preference shures of Ry 14 each fully maid-un

NEA-IndoUS Venture Capital, LLC - 0.0%% 30z

Starfish 1 Pte, Lid. - LX) 4258

Keaneth S Glass representing Angel Tovestment Ventare Capital ) - 00 KO3

Series B - Comnulsury convertitile cumulative nreference shares of Rs 1 each fully naid-un

Nexus India Direct Investents It - Q0% 16390 2.3%
NEA-hloUS Veuture Capital, LLC - 0n% 4367 19.5%
Starfish 1 Pte. Ltd. - 0% 1787 RV
Series € - Compuisors convertihle cumulutive preference shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up

Starfish 1 Pte. Ltd: : - 0% 421 30.3%
NEA-ludoU$ Venture Capital. LLC - [ 324 23.2%
Nexus India Direct Investment 1 - 00% 3480 25%
Bessemer Venture Partuers Trust - DAY 2358 170%

Series D - Comnulsery convertible cumulative ureference shures of R« 100 each fully nauid-uin
nore Serviees Pre Lid . [IX) $090 206.0%

1 Dircet Imvestents It - 0.0% 2980 18.9%
Intel Cantial Corporution - D0% 2360 15.0%
NEA-IndoUS Venture Capital. LLC . - X 1012 0.2%
Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan Board - (U 944 6.0%
Lemuik Investinents Linited - 0% YhR 6.1%
Series E - Camnulsory convertible cumulative nreference shares of Rs 104 each fully puitkun
EBay Singpore Services Pie Limited - WA 9919 A5.4%
Nexus Onportunity Fund limited - ({7 2671 12.2%
Wouderful Stars Pre, Lid. - [ 2967
Besseter Venture Partiers Trust - nwh 1246

Alibaba.com Sinexpore E-Comnierce Private Limited - [IX1323 2967 13.6%
Series EL- Comnulsory canvertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 109 each fally paitnn

Calanri Capitat Partners 11 LLC - . % LR 06.9%
Nexus India Ditect Ivestnztiis B - D% i 17.9%
Besseter Venture Partners Trust - 0.0% a7l 17.9%
Intet Capital Corporation - i 27% 13.4%
Shati Mavritins Private Linsited - 0.0% 183 K%

BacenSnapdenl Mauritius Prisate Limitsd - %, B3 B%

Series F - Commdsory convertibte cumuintive preference shaves of Ry 100 ench fuliv naid-un

Duncatn imestmeats (Mauritius) Pre Lid - 0 $402

Mvrind Qonortunitics Master Fund Limited - [V EREX] 2l

Aquila Investinents 1 - 220 1547

PI Opportunities Fund 1 - 2200 13.0%

Pan Asin Opportunltics Master Fund Lid. - w24 3%
Rock 1 fonal O iics Portfolio . A% 20 5.0%

Series G - Compulsory convertible cumulative nreference shares of Rs 100 cuch fully paid-up

Starfish ] Pre. Lid. - D0% (OREEY 92.6%
Series H - C sory convertible ive nreference shares of Rs 108 each fully paid-un
Ontarié Teacheta® Perision Plan Board - 2523 2t¥%
Secuoia Capital fndia HI Ltd - 1386
Valiant Mauritins Parers FDI Limited - 1230
Ru-Net South Asta - [BEL]
Aauili Investinents T (Mauritius) Lid. - LIOR
Kuml Skah - 130
M L Tandon & Sons HUF - AR3
Kersiwood South Asia - 673
Mitestone Trusteeship Services Limited - 0% 1850
Series | - Comauhsory comvertible annplative reference shares of Ry 108 cuch fully naid-un
Wonderful Stars Pe. Ltd. - 0o%, ™S 31.2%
Strfish 1 pre. Ltd. - 0% JEALES L%
Alibaba.cam Simapore E-Commerce Private Limited - 14155 .13 3L2%
Seriex J - Comnulsory convertible camuiative arefereace shures of Ry 100 cach fullv paid-n
Brother Fortune Appatel Pie. Lk, - 00% 20208 70.5%
Clouse SA - 0% ‘8440 29.5%
Series J1 - Comniilsory convertible cumutative wreference shures of Rx 20 cach fully waid-un

us Vewures 1 Limited . DO 14810 83.1%
Kllle\l Bald - 00% L300 1.35%
Rulit Bapsil - B Lo 7.5%.

Shares reserved for ixsue under antions .
For details of shares reserved for issue under the ewployee stock option and Fonnders stock option plan of the Company. please refer note 30 and 31 respectively.
For details of shares reserved for issne on comsersion of CCCPS. please refer nbove. ding: terins of sion ion of CCCPS.

Shares reserved for issue under Tan aereement
For details of shares reserved for issuc wider the loan agrecient with SVB India Finance Private Limited. o non banking finance Company please refer note 1.

(This spuce has heen lefi blank mtentionally)



Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

13. Other equity

Share preminm Rs.

At April 01, 2017 11,024.8

Increase because of issuance of share capital . -

Decrease due to transaction costs for issued share capital -

At March 31, 2018 . 11,024.8

Increase because of conversion during the year (refer note 12) 38

Decrease due to transaction costs for issued share capital -

At March 31, 2019 11,028.6
e

Share option schemes /Share base payment reserve (SBP Reserves)

The Company has share option schemes under which options to subscribe for the Company’s shares have been granted to certain executives and emplayees.
‘The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-setiled share-based payments provided to employees, including key management
personnel, as part of their femuneration. Refer note 30,

Share based payments Rs.
At April 01, 2017 : 303.4
Add: Compensation cost for options granted (20.3)
Less: transterred to general reserve on exercise of stock options (72.3)
At March 31, 2018 ’ 275.6
Add: Compensation cost for options granted (1.4)

Less: transterred to general reserve on exercise of stock options (2.5)
At March 31, 2019 271.8
) e L0

General Reserve
The Company recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to general reserve.

——
General Reserve Rs,
At April 01, 2017 0.1
Add: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock options 7.3
At March 31, 2018 7.

. N . . . M_
Add: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock options 2.5
At March 31, 2019 10.1

M
Other reserves
As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L
SBP reserve 271.8 275.6
General reserve 10.1 1.6

Total other reserves 281.9 283.2




Snapdenl Private Limited (Forme
o .

Ay known its Jasner Infotech Private Limited)

Notes to standal 1 st
(Al amounts in INR Crore, excep

14. Borrowings

t per share data and as stated otherwise)

Effective interest Maturity As at March 31, As at March 3%,
rate 2012 2018
%
Non-current borrowings
Term Loan
From financiu! institutions
Secured term loan from financial institution 9.83%/8.31% 12 equal quarterly instalments - 3.3
Total non-current borrowings . - 13.3
Current borrowings
Current maturity of long term loans
. Secured term loan from financial institution 9.83%/8.51% 12 equal quarterly instalments 134 07
Interest accrued and not due o secured term foan from financial 0.2 06
institution
Loan repnyable on deuiand {from bank}
Bank Overdraft (secured) FD mate + 0.5% On demand - 138
Total current borrowings 13.6 44.1
Current 13.6 441
Non Current - 133

Secured cash credit fucility

During the yeor ended March 31, 2016, the Company had obtained tern loan amounting Rs 30 Cr from Cisco Systems Capitel (India) Private Limited at the interest rate of 9.75% p.a.,
repayable in 12 equal yuarterly instalments and the same is secured by hypothecation of fixed assets of the Company to the extent of the loan amount and has been entirely repaid by the

Company.

Further during the year ended March 31,2017, the C has obtained additionat term loan in Rs 62 Cr from Cisco Systems Capital (India) Private Limited at the interest rat¢ of

0.83%/ 8.51% p.a., repayable in 12 equal quarterly instalments and the sane is secured by hypothecation of fixed assets of the Company to the extent of the loan amount.

Bank Overdraft (secured)

The bank overdrafls are secured by a portion of the Company’s short-term denosits.

(his space has heen lefi Blurik inteiionatly)




Snandeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

15._Provisions

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for bonus {3.5 16.9
Provision tor sales return 5.6 2.0
Total 14.1 18.9
Current 14.0 18.9
Non-current 0.1 -
141 18.9
Provision for bonus Provision for sales
return
As at April 01, 2017 19.2 1.3
Created during the year 23.0 20
Utilised (19.9) (1.3)
Unused amount reversed (5.4) -
Asat March 31,2018 16.9 2.0
Created during the year 133 3.6
Utilised {20.9) 2.0)
Unused amount reversed 08) -
Asat March 31,2019 8.5 5.6
Provision for bopus
A provision is recognised for the bonis payable to the employees on time praportion basis over the petiod of service,
Provision for sales return
A provision is recognised for the expected product retumms subsequent to the period end based on historical experience.
16. Gratuity and other vost-cmployment benefit plans
Asat As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Provision for gratuity 9.0 8.0
Provision for compensated absences 54 4.2
14.4 12.2
Current 6.8 4.8
Non-current 7.6 74 "
14.4 122

In accordance with applicable laws, the company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement (subject to completion of five years of cominuo

(“the Gratuity Plan”) covering cligible employees, The Gratuity Plan provides for 3

. deatli, incapacitation or termination of employment of amounts.that

are based on salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard 1o the Gratity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the feporting date,

(This space has been left hlemke intentionallyy




Snandeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial t:
(All amaunts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the income statement and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plan:

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

Rs.
Defined benefit obligation at April 01,2017 8.5
Current Service cost 2.1
fnterest cost on benefit obligation 0.6
Bengfits paid (b
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture (0.2)
Actuarial gain/loss (1.9),
Defined benefit obligation at March 31, 2018 8.0
Current Service cost 1.9
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.6
Benefits paid T (0.5)

" Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture -

Actuarial gain/loss (1.0),
Defined benefit obligation at March 31, 2019 ?_D_

Expenes recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (Excluding tax) for the year ended March 31, 2019 and for the vear ended March 31,2018

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Opening amount recogmized in OCI outside P&L account -
Actuarial srin/(loss) on liabilities 1.0 1.9
Actuarial gain/(loss) on assets - -

1.0 1.9
The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Corpany's plans are shown below:
As at Asat
March 3§, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 6.6% 7.2%
Salary escalation rate : : 112% 11.0%
Withdrawal rate 30.0% 21.1%

Dueto its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed to following significant risk :-

Change in Discount Rate : A decrease in discount rate will increase plan liability.

Satary Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to {he future sataries of the plan participants. As such , an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase tha plans liability.

Withdrmwal Rate : A decrease in withdrawal rate will increase plan liability.

Demographical Assumption used

Assumption repulating future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality table (IALM (2006-08))

Retirement Age : The employees of the company are assumed to retire at the age of 6O years.

Sengitivity Analysis

lBtem o March 31,2019 Impact (Absolute)
ase Liability 9.0

Incréase discount rate by 0.5% (0.2) 0.2
Decrease discount rate by 0.5% ) 0.2 8.9
Increase salary inflation by 0.5% 0.1 8.9
Decrense salary inflation by 0.5% 0.0 92

The Sensitivity Analysis have been determined based on a method that extrapolated the impact of declined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable change in key assumptions oceurring
at the end of the reporting period. '

(This space has been lefi blenk intentionally)
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Notes to standalone financial statements
(Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and ag stated otherwise)

17. Trade and other payables

As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Trade payables .
Trade payables 408.3 279.0
408.3 279.0
Other payables
Payable to sellers 183.% 122.4
Book overdratis 0.5 -
Payable to creditors for capital goods 0.0 0.0
Statutory liabilities payable . 4.9 34
Accrued salaries and benetits ) 0.0 0.1
Lease equalisation reserve - 0.2
188.6 126.1
596.9 401, 1
Bifurcation of aboye:
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 36) Ls -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 595.4 405.]
596.9 405.1

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60-day terms as agreed.
- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of upto six months

- For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 39,

18._Other financial Habilities

. As at As at
Blarch 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Financial liabilities atfair value through profit or loss

Derivatives not designated as hedges

Embedded derivatives 0.4 -
Total financial liabilitios at fair value through profit or loss 0.4 -
Total other financial liabilities 0.4 -
Current 0.4 -
Non-current - -

0.4 -

Embedded derivatives

The Company had in the financial year 2012-13 taken a tenn loan of Rs.8 cr from SVB which was entirely repaid in the same year. As per the terms of sucl; loan agreement, the lender has a
right to subscribe to 699 1os preference shares (series D) amounting to Rs, 0.8 cr to be issued by the Company at SVB's option within a period of 7 years from the issue date. The
embedded derivative has been Separated and is cairied af fajr value thiough profit or loss,

As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Borrowings (non-~current) (note 14) - 13.3
Borrowings (current) (riote 14) 13.6 44.1
Trade and other payables (note 17) 595.4 405.1

Other financial Kabiljties (note 18) 04 -
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 609.4 462.5

19, _Deferred revenue

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
As at beginning 16.0 10.7
Deferred during the year 47.3 16.0
of profit and loss

Released to the Statement (16.0) (10.7)
As at closing 47.3 16.0

Current 473 16.0
Non-current : . .
47.3 16.0

Revenues from products shipped are deferred till it iy delivered 10 the ultimate customers and is disclosed a5 deferred revene,

20._Other liabilities
As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advances from customers 8.3 4.1
83 4.1
)
Current 83 4.1

Non-current

3 8.3 4.1




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

21. Revenue from operations

For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2019 March 31,2018
Revenue from operations :
Revenue from marketing fees 2114 1309
Otber operating revenue 602.4 305.2
Revenue from operations 813.8 436.1
22, Other income

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2019 Mareh 31, 2048
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 5.0 14.0

Impairment allowance no tonger required (net) -
Other non-cperating income 8. 107
Total 15.5 24.7

Other non operating income primarily includes credit card fees, courier lost income, penalty from sellers and other misc income.

23. Finance income

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2019 March 31, 2018
Interest income on bank deposits/Commereial paper/Bonds ' 533 18.1
Interest income on loan given to refated pacties - 13.0
Interést income on tax refund 54 [
Net gain on sale of current investments . 9.7 77
Mark to market gain on current investinents ) 0.0 158
Unwinding of discount on financial assets at amortised cost 1.5 27
MTM gain on fair value of derivatives through profit and loss - 31
Total 69.9 66.7
24. Marketplace expense
Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
e 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Freight and collection charges 340.0 2838
Product wrapping charges 6.9 1.1
Compensation expenses ’ 12.6 45.5
Hosting charges 13.4 232 ’
Content writing charges 1.4 13
Software expenses 48 254
Marketing and business promotion expense 515.1 {183
Total 894.2 505.4
25. Employee benefits expense
For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2019 March 31,2018
Salary, wages and bonus 1311 : 207.2
Contribution to provident and other funds 35 3.1
Gratuity expense T as 23
Employee stock option scheme (L4 (20.8)
Staff welfare, recruitment and training expenses 1.0 2.0

Total 136.7. © 1938




Sunandeal Private Limited {Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

26. Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended March For the year ended
31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Depreciation of tangible assets (note 3) 17.9 38.3
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 4) 3.8 8.9
Total 21.7 472
27. Finance expense
For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2019 March 31, 2018
Bank charges . 0.1 0.2
Interest charges 23 5.0
Exchange differences (net) 0.1 (0.9)
Total 2.5 4.3
28. Other expense
Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2019 March 31, 2018
Insurance 1.6 8.1
Sub-contracting expenses 6.3 12.8
Bad debts / advances written off 2.4 24.6
Provision for doubtful debts and advances : 6.7 (53.3)
Communication charges 35 31
Legal and professional fees . 5.1 10.8
Loss on sale of fixed assets /written off - 0.1
Impairment of fixed assets - €0.0)
Liquidation Expense 0.1 -
Payment to auditor (Refer note A below) 0.5 0.5
Poer and fuel ' 1o 2.0
Rates and taxes _ . 0.2 0.7
Rent 7.8 132
Repair & maintenance:
Building 3.3 6.2
Plant & machinery 2.8 235
Travelling expenses 12
Provision for sales retum ' 0.5 -
MTM loss on fair value of derivatives through profit and loss 0.4 N
Miscellaneous expenses 0.7 1.3
Total 32.5 33.4
A, Payment to auditor
For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2019 March 31, 2018
As auditor:
Audit fee 0.4 04
Tax audit & Other tee 0.1 0.1
Out of pocket expenses 0.0 0.0
Total 4.5 0.5
29. Exceptional items
Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2019 March 31, 2018
tmpairment of non current investment & Other assets - 1813
Balances with statutory/government authorities - 170.1
Legal & Protessional Fee - 12.7
Impainment of fixed assets - 313

Total
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Notes to standalone financial statements
(All amounts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

30. Employce stock option plan

The Company provides share-based payment schenes 10 employees of the Coinpany and its subsidiaries. During the year ended March 31, 2019, an employee stock option plan
(ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and grant are as below.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting held on February 7, 2011 approved the grant of ESOP exercisable into not wore than 3.223 nos equity shares of Rs. 10 each
to the employees of the Company, its Subsidiaries and its Holding Company and granted the authority of designing, implementing and achninistering such a schere to the Board.

The Board in its meeting held on February 7, 2011 had resolved to issue to employees under ESOP 2011, employee stock options exercisable iito not more than 3,223 nos, equity
shares of Rs. 10 each, with each such option conterring a right upon the employee to apply for one equity share of the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions of such
issue, The Company with the unanimous consent of all the shareholders, modified such ESOP scheirie on March 13, 2013, April 29, 2014 and August 12, 2014, amony other things, to
incrense the number- of shares of equity shares reserved for issuance under the Plan to 4,108 nos, 5,528 nos and 9,209 nos, respectively. Later on in February 09; 2015 with the
unanimons consent of all the sharcholders, such ESQP scheme was further modified, and in lien of such modification increased the number of equity shares reserved for issuance under
the Plan to 11,189 nos. equivalent ta 111,890 nos post considering the impact of share spilt.

As per the modified tenus, all the option holders are entitled to exercise their vested options in case of resignation / retirement / penmasient incapacity / death and unvested options in
case of permanent incapacity / death within a period of 10 years from the date of last working by self / nominee / legal heir, which earlier was 6 months from the date of last working.
Further the vesting period was also modified for ESOP 2016 whereas the option holders are entitled to exercise their vested options in case of resignation / retirement / penmanent
incapacity / death and unvested options in case of permanent incapacity / death within 2 period of 3 months from (he date of last working. However such modification did not have any
impact on the fair value of the options or is not otherwise beneficial to the employee. On October 6, 2015 ESOP Scheme was further modified in order to restate the definition of the
Investor Director and delegate the power 10 and authorize the Chief Executive Officer for administration of ESOP Scheme 2011 and also fo empower and delegate the authority to
Chicef Executive Officer to further delegate his power to administer ESOP 2011 to a senior competent emplayee of the Company.

Further on August 24, 2016, ESOP 2016 Scheme was introduced whereby total number of options reserved for issuance under both the plans combined together shall be restricted to
111,890 (23,230 no of options for ESOP 2016 Scheme), other conditions remaining the same. Later on March 10, 2017 with the unanimous consent of all the shareholders, such ESOP
scheme was further modified, and in liew of such moditication incrensed the number of employee stock options that may be granted under the ESOS 2016, from 23,230 10 29,916 stock
options exercisable into Equity Shares of the Company of Re. 1/- each through transter of 6,680 stock options cancelted unider ESOP 201 1.

The Company with unanimous consent of all sharcholders on Februry 25, 2019, increased Employee stock options from 111,890 to 198,890 that may granted under ESOP Scheme
2016 by addition of 87,000 options excercisable into equity shares of the Company of INr 1 each/-.

The net compensation expense arising from equity settled share based payment {ransaction is March 31, 2019 Rs. (I 4er) (March 31, 2018 Rs. (20.1 cr). The Company has given
stock option to certain employees of its subsidiaries and the corresponding compensation cost for the same is bone by the Company,

The relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Company wise ESOP cost :

Entity For the year ended For the year ended
. N pMarch 31, 2019 March31; 2018
Snapdeal Private Limited (LH €20.8)
Accelyst Solutions Private Limited - 83
Eagslity Solutions Private Limited : ) - 02
Freecharze Technologies Private Lumited - .
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited 0.0 (0.6)
Vulcan Express Private Limited - 0.7)
Snapdeal Inc . - -
Total (1.4 20.1)
Vesting period 0.1 - 4 Years
Exercise period 0.25-10.25 Years
Exercise price (Rs /=) Rs 1 - 12,700
Contractual life . 10.1 - 14.25 Years
The details of activity under the ESOP 2011 and ESQP 2016 Scheme is as follows:
March 31, 2019
No. of options Weiglted average exercise
price
O ding at the beginning of the year 66,191 2,443
Granted during the year 46,293 1
Forfeited during the year 8,100 1
Lapsed during the year 664 1
Exercised during the year = =
Outstanding at the end of the year : 1.03.720 1.560
Exercisable at the end of the year 57,258 2.824

pMarch 31, 2018
Weighted average exercise

No. of options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year . 84,329 B 21751
Granted during the year S ; . 24,219 1.0
Forteited during the year ~ 'Q RIVas ' . 41,303 5259
Lapsed during the year .%*\// ’"‘“‘“,q)\ R 1,052 1.0
Exercised during the year {4y d\ \) . -
Outstanding at the end of the year (] i } 66,191 2,443
‘ - 0o =
Exercisable at the end of the year A;?/ \;‘ 54,753 2.954
* €3®//
R -
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The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2019 is 8.89 years

(March 31, 2018 is 8.33 years). The weighted average share price

at the date of exercise for stock options exercised during the pericd was Rs.Nil (March 31, 2018 Rs. Nil. The range of exercise price for options outstanding at the end of the year was

Re. 1 toRs. 12,700 (March 31, 2018: | to 12,700).

The expevted life of the stock is based on current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that m

velatility, in the absence of any history, over volatility of listed comparable companies.

31

—

Founder's stock option plan

ay occur. The Company has chosen to use a near zero

The Company had provided share-based payment scheme to its promote During the year ended March 31, 2019, Founder's Stock Option plan was-in existence. The relevant details of

the scheme and the grant are as below.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting held on September 28, 2012 approved Founder's Stock Option Scheme 2012, wherein, it reserved 3,392 nos of equity shares
for the benefit of the promoters of the Company. On the same day with the unanimous consent of all the shareholders of the Company, 3,392 nos of options with each such option

conferring a righit upon the promoter to apply for one equity share of the Company, in accordance with the tenns
Company. Subsequently, 2120 vested faunder's stock options and 126 unvested founder’s stock options were cancell
1,146 options remained ouistanding equivalent to 11,460 nos of options post considering the impact of share split v

equity settled share based payment transaction is Rs Nil (March 31, 2018: Nil).
The relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting Period

Exercise Period

Exercise Price

Contractual life

The details of activity under the 2012 Scheme is as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning of the vear
Granted during the period

Forteited during the period

Cancelled during the period

Exercised during the period
Outstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the period

Outstanding at the bepinning of the year
Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Cancelled during the period

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

and conditions of such issue, were granted to promoters of the
ed by the Board at their meeting on April 29, 2014 and a total of
v.e.f. July 23, 2015. The net compensation expense arising from

0 year
5 Years
Rel
5.5-10 Years
March 31, 2019
No. of options Weighted average exercise
price
11,460 1.0
11460 1.0
11,460 1.0

March 31, 2018

— Weighted average exercise
No. of options ighted average exercise

price
11,460 1.0
11,460 Lo
11,460 ) 1.0

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options-outstanding as at March 31, 2019 is 2.39 years (March 31, 2018 : 3.39 years). The range of exercise price for

options outstanding at the end of the year was Re. | (March 31, 2018: Re. [),

No options were granted under the plan during the year.

(This space has heen left hlank intentionally)
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Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limiteq)
Notes to standalone financial statements
(Al amounts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

33 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprises of loans and borrowims. trade and other payables. The purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance & suipport its
operations. The Company's principal financial assets jnclude trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. Further the Company also
holds FVTPL investiments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management is supported by a financial advisory group that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate Tinancial risk govemance framework. The management assures that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, d and ged in 1 with the Company's policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by the teams
that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. In accordance to the Company's policy, no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes way be undertaken, The Board of

Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

a) Market risk

Market visk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becanse of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate rigk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, FVTPL iny and
derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2019 and 3 | March 2018,

The analyses exclude the impaet of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions: and the non-financial assets and
linbilities of foreign operations. The analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 35,
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effest of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018 including the effect of hedge accounting,

i) Interest rate risk :

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. There are no interest rate risks for the
Company-us the borrowings done by the Company are at fixed rates.

ii) Foreign curreiiey risk

Foreign curency risk is the risk that the fair valus or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's opcrating activities (when revemue or expense is denominated in a toreign cummency),

The Company current does not hedge any receivable or payable in foreign currency. Refer note 38,

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's loss
before tax is due to changes in the fair value of inouetary assets and labilities including non-desi ! foreign currency derivatives and embedded derivatives, The Company's exposure to
foreign currency changes for all other currenciss is not material,

Sensitivity )
Particulars : Change in Effect on profit
USD rate before tax
March 31. 2019 3% 0.0
NMarch 31, 2019 -3% -0,0
March 31, 2018 4% 0.1
Margh 31, 2018 4% 0.1
Particulars Change in Effect on profit
EURO rate __|before tax .
March 31, 2019 5% 0.0
March 31, 2019 -5%)| 0.0
March 31, 2018 4% Nil
Mareli 31, 2018 ~4%)| Nil

iii) Equity price risk
The Company's non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties abont future values of the investment securities, The Company mansges the equity
price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions,

(This space has been left blapk intention Y it
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Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements
{All amounts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

b} Credit risk

Credit visk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed 1o credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities. including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments. The Company only deals with parties which has good credit rating/worthness given by ekternal rating agencies or based on groups internal assessment,

Trade receivables and contract asset

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, pro and coutrol relating to customer credit risk mnanagement. Outstanding customer

receivables are regulasly inonitored. .
An impainnent analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of futuie economic conditions.. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 32,
The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are-located in
several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company trade receivables and contract asset using provision matrix.

March 31,2019 Finaneial Assets Trade receivables
Less than 1 year More than | year Total Less than 1 |Morethan 1 [Total
year year
Estitnated total gross cattying amount at defaule 431.8 14.1 4459 93 221 313
ECL- simplified approach (133.7) - (153.7) - {22.1) (22.1)
Net carrying amount 278.1 14.1 292.2 9.2 - 9.2
March 31,2018 Financial Assets Trade receivables
’ Less than f year More than | year Total Less than 1 [Morethanl [Total
year © Jyear
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 339.9 0.0 340.0 4.8 2335 28.4
ECL- simplified approach (153.7) R (153.7) - (25.5) (23.3))
Net carrying amount 186.3 0.0 186.3 4.8 - 4.8
Financial insty and cash d

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Compauny's treasury departmient in accordance with the Company's policy. livestments of sirplus-funds are
made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty eredit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board. of Directors on an annuat
basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2019 and 3t March 2018 is the canying amounts as mentioned in Note 9. The
Company's maximum exposure relating to financial guarantees and financinl derivative instruments is noted in note 32 and the liquidity table below.

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract asset:
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach

Impainnent allowance as on 1 April 2017 ’ (218.1)
Add/ (less): asset origi 1 or acquired ) 40,9
Impairment allowance as on 31 March 20(8 ©(177.2)
Add/ (less); asset originated oracquired : 4.4
Impairment allowance a5 on 31 March 2019 (175.8)

¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds, The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility.

The table below summarises the matwrity profile of the Company financial liabilities based on contmctual undiscounted payments.

On demand Less than { year 1t05 >5years Total
. years

Year ended

3t-Mar-19

Borrowings - 13.6 - - 13.6
Other financial liabilities - 11 - - 1.1
Trade and other pavables - 370.3 226.6 - 596.9
Year ended

31-Mar-18

Borrowings - 43.8 13.0 - 574
Trade and other payables - 249.1 156.1 - 405.2
Other financial liabilities - : - - - -

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similardy affected by changes in econamic, political or other conditions. Conceutrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's
perfonnance to developments affecting a particular industry.

fn order to avoid excessive voncentrations of risk, the Company's policies and p d include specific gnidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. SE




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formeriy known as Jasner Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone fi inl st
(All amounts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated othenvise)

d) Capital management :

For the purpose of the Company capital , capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, securities premium and all other equity. reserves attribntable to the
equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the C npany’s capital is to ensure that it maintains an cfficient capital structure and healthy capital atios in order to
support its business and maximise sharéholder value, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as
loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Borrowings ' 13.6 574
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 9.1 79.6
Net debt (A) ; 4.5 (22.2),
Equity Share Capital 3 0.2 0.0
Equity component of compulsory convertible cumnlative - 4.0
participating preference shares

Other Equity G65.9 836.1
Total Capital (B) 666. 1 840.1
Capital and net debt C (A+B) 670.6 817.9
Gearing ratio (C/A) 0.7% 2.7%

T order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

Further there have been n1o breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and barrowing in the current year.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

(This space hus been lefi blank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements

(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

34 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted EPS nmounts are calculated by dividing the foss attributable to 2quity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year phus the
weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ¢nded For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Lass for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company (188.4) (652.0)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS (No.s) ) 16,224,445 2,253,860
Basic and diluted eamning per equity share (Rs) (A/B) (1.159.5) {28.867.0}
35 C i and g
. Leases

The Company's leasing arangements are in respect of operating leases for office premises. Some of the leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on a periodical
basis according to prevailing market conditions.

The Company tas paid Rs. 7.8 cr (March 31, 2018: Rs. 13.2 cr) dusiny the year towards minimum lease payment.
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Within one year 3.3 4.4
After one year but not more than five years 5.0 -
More than five years - -
b. Commitments
AtMarch 31, 2019, the Company has commitments of Rs. 0.15 net of advances { March 31, 2018 : Nil) relating to capital contracts.
¢. Contingencies
Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:
- March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Dividend in arrears and not declared on convertible cumulative participating series A, B,C, D, E, EL, F, G, H, I, J and J! preference - 0.0006
shares
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts* 13.1 25

* Clatms against the Company not acknowledged as debts comprises of:

Rs.0.4 ( March 31, 2018: Rs 0.3) represents claim made by the customers due to delivery related issues, which are contested by the Company and are pending in varions District Consumer
Redressal Forums in India. The management does not expect these claims to succeed and accordingly no provision has been recognised in the financial statements.

Rs. 12.66 ( March 31,2018: Rs 1.6) represents claim made by Amway (pending before High Court), Spacewood Furnitures Pvt. Lid. (Pending before high court), Oakley Inc. (Pending before
high court).

Nil { March 31, 2018: Rs 0.5) represents claim made by M/s Dream Merchants for a commercial dispute related sponsor of event for ‘Bangalore Fashion Week' / ‘Bangatore Intermational
Fashion Weel’.

Rs 0,01 (March 31, 2018 : 0.06 ) represent the compoundinng fee to be paid in respect for legal meteorology matters.

o




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known us Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial stutements
(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

36. Amounts due to micro and small enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 aggregate to Rs. 1.5 Cr (March 31,
2018 ~ NIL) based on the information available with the Company:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 1.5 -
accounting year

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amounts 6.0 -
of'the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed dny during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006,

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; 0.2 -

e} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disalowance as-a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

37. Earnings and expenditure in foreign currency ( on accrual basis)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Earnings:
Revenue from advertisement income 2.7 0.0
Expenditure:
Advertisement and publicity expenses 36 1.5
Legal and professional fees : - 0.1
Hosting charges 0.2 -
Software expenses : 8.1 31,1
Miscellanequs expenses 0.0 -
Total - 1.9 32.7
38. Unhedged foreign Turrency exposure

Particulars of unhedged foreipn currency exposure as at the reporting date;
Particulars Amount
Unhedged foreign currency payable 0.60 (USD 0.01 @ closing rate of t USD = Rs 69.71)

(March 31, 2018: 1.20 (USD 0.01 @ closing rate of | USD =Rs 65.04)

0.10 (Euro 0.001 @ closing rate of 1 Euro = Rs 80, 14}
(March 31, 2018: Nit (Euro 0,01 @ closing rate of | Euro = Rs 80.62)

Unhedged foreign currency receivable 0.61 (USD 0.01 @) closing rate of 1 USD =Rs 69.71)

(March 31, 2018: Nil (USD 0.01 @ closing rate of 1 USD =Rs 65.04)
No derivative is taken by the Company to hedge these foreign currency payables and receivables,

(Thiy space hus been loft hlunk intentionally)




Snandeal Private Limited { Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
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All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Related Party disctosures

Names of related parties und related party relationship

Naries of related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken piace during the year

Subsidiaries Unicomunerce eSolutions Private Limited
Unicommerce Seller Solutions Private Limited
E Agility Solution Private Limited (upto Feb 15, 2019)
Suapdeal INC {upto February 26, 2018)
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited (upto October 06, 2017)
Accelyst Solution Private Limited (upto October 06, 2017)
Vulcan Express Private Limited (Upto February 02, 2018)

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period
Associates Tetra Media Private Limited

Key management personnel Kunal Bahi (Director)
Rohit Kuinar Bansal (Director)
Vikas Bhasin {Chief Finaucial Officer w.e.f April 19, 2018)
Roshni Tandon (Company Secretary w.¢.f March 9, 2018)
Anup Vikal (Chief Financial Officer) (upto November 09,2017}
Raijiv Mangla (Chief Technology Officer upto December 15, 2017)
Jayant Sood (Chief Customer Experience Officer upto February. 02..2018)
Sachin Gupta (Company Secretary upto January 12, 2018)

Enterprises for whom reporting entity is an associate Starfish I Pte. Ltd

‘Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Qutstanding balances if any, at the year-end are unsecured and interest
free and settlement occurs in cash, There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2019 the Company

has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2018: Nil). This assessment is undertaken cach financial year through examining
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

(Thix xpace has been left blank intersionally)
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Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial stitements
Il amounts in INR Crore except per share dat

4 and as stated otherwise

Related party transactions ) ) ’ )
The following table provides the total amount of tranzactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year/period:

From April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 From April 1, 2017 to March 31,2018
Subsidiary | Associates Key management Subsidiary | Associates Key management
personnel personnel]

Transactions during the year:
Reimbursement of expenses
Vulcan Express Private Limited - - - [ - -
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - - - 163 - -
Accelyst Solutions Private Limited - - - ©0.7) - -
E Agility Solution Private Limited 02 - - 0.7 - .
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited 0.3 - - 04 . -
Sales of Fixed Asset
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited 0.0 - C - - . -
Loans repaid
Accelyst Solutions Private Limited - - - 4144 - -
Vulcan Express Private Limnited - - - 134.9 - -
Other income
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - - - 0.0), - -
Vulcan Express Private Limited ' . - - 4.7 - -
Accelyst Solutions Private Limited - - - 8.3 - -
Cross charge of ESOP cost
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - - - (24.8) - -
Vulcan Express Private Limited - - - 31 - -
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited - - - 0.6) - -
E Agility Solution Private Limited - - - 6.1 - -
Accelyst Solutions Private Limited - . - (24.1) - -
Non-current investments
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - - - 22.0 - -
Accelyst Solutions Private Limited - - - 549.6 - -
Vulean Express Private Limited . - “ - 2159 - -
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited ~ - - 240 - -
Software Expenses & Others
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited - - . . 1.1 - .
Freight and Collection Charges
Vulean Express Private Limited - - - 1212 - -
Freecharge Payiment Technologies Private Limited - - - 0,1 - .
Amount received (Non Current Investments)
E Agility Solution Private Limited 75.0 - - - . -
Salary, bonus and coyn(ributiun to PF* - - 16.9 - - 19.1
Balance as at the year end:
Trade Payables
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited - - - 0.7 s .
Provision for bonus - - 6.4 - - 35
Non Current Investments (Refer note 5)
Tetra Media Private Limited - 15.0 - - 150 -
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited 2702 - - 270.2 - -
E Agility Solution Private Limited - - - 92.5 - .
ESOP Linbility (Refer note 5)
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited 0.4 - - 04 - -
Loans and advances Others
E Agility Solution Private Limited = - - (0.0) . .
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited - - - 0.1 - -

* Note: The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisjons made for gratuity
as a whole,
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The Company has changed the classification of the inv ts held in Uni e-Solutions Private Limited, from assets held for sale to Investments in subsidiaries.

The Campany had in the financial year 2012-13 taken a term loan of Rs 8 ¢r from SVB which was entirely repaid in the same year. As pér the terms of such loan, the lender has-a right to subscribe
{0 699 no.s of series D preference shares now converted into equity of the Company amounting to Rs 0.8 cr to be issued by the Company at SVB's option within a period of 7 years from the issue
date.

The Company's primary busi is establishing, developing, designing, producing and conceptunlizing direct marketing solutions through web and non-web based platforms. Accordingly.

] E

there are no other repurtable business or geagraphical seyments to be disclosed as per notified Ind AS - 108 *Operating Segments”.

The Company has changed its nane from Jasper Infotech Private Limited to Snapdeal Private Limited w.e.f March 20,2019 approved by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

During the financial year 2013-2016, the Company had issued up to 17,000 warrants to Bennett, Coleman & Co. Lid. (BCCL), convertible into Series J preference shares of R, 10 /- each, now
converted into equity, During the year the Company allotted 15,368 share warrants to BCCL as per warrant subscription agreement diited Jan 25, 20106, at a warrant.price of Rs. 16,592.92 /- per
warrant aggregating to Rs. 25.5 Cr as warrant subscription amaunt. T] he warrants carsies an expiration term of 66 months from date of allotment and are exercisable at Rs. 149,336.23 /- per
warrant, The warrants that are not exercised by the holder on or before the expiry date shall lapse and shall be void and of no further force or offect. The warraat subscription amount is the
consideration for issuance of the warrants shall not be refindable under any circumstanees irrespective of whether the warcants are exercised or not.

The Company has made the payment of Rs. 25.5 Cr to BCCL 4s an interes! free security deposit in consideration for the line of credit provided by BCCL towards the relcase of the advertisement
by the Company. Pursuant to the advertisement agreement entered with BCCL, the Company has entered into the long-term credit facility up to an agpregate amounting to Rs, 255 Cr. Whereas the
Company shall make the down payment 1o BCCL or the relevant media entity, the agreed percentage to the value of the advertisement reteased, the balance pagable (net of down payment) as the
case may be, of the value of advertisement released shall constitute a part of and be counted towards the Un-utilised credit amount. The Line of Credit shall be avaitable to the Company from
BCCL shall continue to be so available for a period of 3 (three) years, further extended to 1 (one) year, hence the balance payable towards the services of Rs. 234.7 Cr rendered by BCCL or the
relevant media entity been part of line of credit has classitied under Trade and Other payables.

During the current year, the Company has allotted 99 share warrants to Hindustan Media Ventures Limited (HT), as per warrant subscription agreement dated February 16, 2019, ata wasrant price
of Rs. 15,00,000 /- per warrant aggregating to Rs 14.8 ¢r ns warrant subscription amount. The swarrants carries an expiration term of 84 months trom date of allounent and are exercisable at Rs.
13,500,000 /- per warrant. The warrants that are not exercised by the holder on or before the expiry date shall lapse and shall be void and of no further force or effect, The warrant subscription
amount is the consideration for issuance of the warrants shall not be refundable under any ci irrespective of whether the warrants are exercised of not.

The Corapany has made the payment of Rs. 14.8 Cr to HT as an interest free security deposit in consideration for the Tine of credit provided by HT towards the release of the advertisement by the
Company. Pursuant to the advertisement agreement entered with HT, the Company has entered into the long-term eredit facility up to an aggiegate smounting (o Rs. 148.5 Cr. Whereas the
Company shall make the down payment to HT or the relevant media entity, the agreed percentage to the value of the advertisement released, the balance paynble (net of down payment) as the case
ay be, of the value of advertisement released shall constitute a part of and be counted towards the Un-utilised credit amount. The Line of Credit shall be available to the Company from HT shati
continue to be so available for a period of 7 (seven) years, hence the balance payable towards the services of Rs. 7 Cr rendered by HT or the relevant media entity been part of tine of credit bas
clagsified under Trade and Other payables.

Customer contract balances

“The Cotmpany has adopted IndAS 1 15 on Revenue from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective approach, The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are ot
comnpleted as at the date of initial application and comparative information is not restated in the statement of profit and loss. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact on the
recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial statements/results.

Particnlars As at]
March 31,2019

Trade Receivables 9.2

Contract Liabilities 57.6

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on tenms of 30 10 90 days and are conditioned to be recovered purely on passage of time. Hence contract assets have been considered to
be Nil.

Contract Lisbilities includes deferred revenue and advance from customers.

Other disclosure as specified under IndAS 115 are not required to be made as a matter of praciical expedient, since the performance obligation Is part of contract that has an original expected
duration of one year or less,

Contract liabililies are primarily from deferred revenue and customer advance for which services are yet to be rendered on the reporting date either in fll or in parts. Contract liabilities are
recognized evenly over the period, being performance cbligation of the Company.

Set out below is the t of revenue recognised from:

Particulars : ' [Mareh 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 1
“Amount inchded i contract fiabilities at the begnining of the year - t 21.8 t . 13.8 }

Right of refund liabilities

Particulars Asat As at]
_ March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
]Ansinu from rights of return 12.0 44

{This space has been feft blank ml)r i1 ﬂlﬁ‘}
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Suaneal Private Limited (Formerly kaown s Jasper Infotech Privafe Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements

Al amounts in INR C
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except per share data and as stated gtherwise)

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), issued but not effective :

(i) Ind AS 116 Lenses

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 20\9 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the i L pr ion and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model
sienifar to the accounting for ﬂmuce leases under Ind AS 17, The dard includes two it ptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-vaiue® assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-tern
leases (i.e., leases witl a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a linbility to make fease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the undetlying usset during the lease term (i.e., the right-ofuse asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company intends to adopt these standards from 1 April 2019. Upon adoption the Company expects that there would not be any material change other than disclosure and presentation. A

reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements will euly be possible once the impl ion project has been completed.

{ii) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertnim\ over Income Tax Trentment

The Intery i { the y for income taxes when tax treatinents involve uncertainty that affects the 1pphumon of Ind AS 12 and does not apply ta taxes or levies outside the
scope of' Ind AS 12, nor does it spcciﬁcnlly mdudu. r:qmrcmems rel.ntmp, to interest and penalti with uncertain tax The Intery ion specifically addresses the following:

= Whether an entity id tax

* The assumptions an entity makes about the exanunatmn of tax trentmenlx by taxation authorities

« How an entity determines taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax ercdits and tax rates

« How an entity considers-ck in facts and ci ances

An enlity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately.or togelhe: with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution
of the ungertainty should be followed. In determining the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, an entity might ider, for ple, (a) how it prey its income tax
filings and supports tax treatments; or (b) how the entity expects the taxation authority to make its examination and resolve issues that might arisc from that examination.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2019, hut certain transition reliefs are available. The Company will apply the interpretation from its effective
date,

(iil) Amendments te Ind AS 19: Plan A d Curtail or Settl

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan d il or settl ocewrs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment,

curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity s required to:

= Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or

liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that-event.

+ Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan d curtailment or using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and thie plan assets afler that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or & wain of loss on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in

profit or loss.

An entity then detenmines the effect of the asset ceiling nher the plan amendment, curtailment ot settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised

in other t.mnp(chensxvc income.

The apply to plan d curtail or settlements occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 Apeil 2019. These

d -t 1

amendments will apply énly to any future plan curt or of the Company.

1 1

using the actuar ptions used to the net defined bencfit

1

There are no subsequent events to report after balance sheet date.

Tnccifnd

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / where Y, to conf

to this year's classification.

As per our report of even date

. For S. R. Batlibei & Co. LLP ’ For and on behall of board of directors of

Snapdeal Private Limitcd
{Formerly kyoyvn as J.ns &+ Infatech Private Limited)

Chartered Accountants
‘AT Firm Registration Number: 30}003}3/!‘130000\

Rohit Kumar Bansal
Director

Place of Signature: Guairam

Date: June 07, 2019 X 4 Secrehr})le hnnncml Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Snapdeal Private
Limited (Formerly Jasper Infotech Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™),
its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and its
associates comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group and its associates as at March 31, 2019, their consolidated loss including other comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the * Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the "Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. )

Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors Report., but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is to
read the other information and. in doing so, consider whether such other information i$ materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
- fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Group and of its associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company. as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates and
joint ventures/joint operations.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is'a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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* The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section [43(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates of which we are the independent auditors
and whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Hold ing Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit/ of Rs.
1.9 cr for the year ended March 31,2019, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. in respect of one associate, whose financial statements, other financial information have
not been audited and whose unaudited financial statements, other unaudited financial information
have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and
disclosures included in respect of the associate. and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such unaudited



financial statement and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other
financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books;

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, is disqualified as on March 31,2019
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls aver
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies and associate company, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 17 to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries, and associates for the year ended March 31, 2019;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on

its consolidated financial position of the Group. and its associates in its consolidated Ind
AS financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

Gt
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ii.  The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 3 1,2019;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, and its associates

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants -
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

TR

per Nilangshu Katriar
Partner

Membership Number: 058814
UDIN:

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date; June 07, 2019
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUD[TOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SNAPDEAL PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) :

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Snapdeal Private Limited (formerly
known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of Snapdeal Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company™) and its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
ITOr.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of tinancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
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reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statermnents to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31,2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India).

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number-: 301003E/E300005

o el

Per Nilangshu Katriar
Partner

Membership Number: 0588 14
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 07, 2019




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
(All amounts.in INR Crore, except per share data mnd as stuted otherwise)

Notes Asat Asat
o Viarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plait and equipment 3 343 72.0
Capital work int progress 3 - 0.0
Goodwill 79.3 793
QOther Intangible assets 4 12.4 0.7
1 in subsidiaries and 5 - -
Finaucial assets
fnivestment 6 923 93
Cther financial assets [} 282 191
Prepayments 7 65 -
Other non-current assets 8 310 74.1
2272 2345
Current assets
Financial assets
[nvestments 6 5003 4911
Trade receivables 9 114 16
Cash and cash equivalent o 14.4 823
Bank balances other than above il . 266.0 2547
Other financial assets 6 2793 186.2
Prepayinents 7 3.7 82
QOther current assets 8 4.4 50.5
11197 1,080.6
Total assets - 13469 1,335.1
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 2 0.2 0.0
Other Equity
Equity component of compulsory convertible cumulative participating preference shares 12 - 4.0
Money received apainst share warrants 403 255
Share preminm 13 11,0286 11,0248
Retained eamings 13 (10,537.6) (10:351.8)
Other reserves 13 113.8 152
Total equity 643.3 817.7
LIABILITIES
Non-Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14 - 134
Provisions 15 0.1 -
Net employee defined benefit linbilities i6 8.7 80
8.8 214
Current Habilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14 3.0 44.1
Trade and other payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 17 1.6 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 17 398.3 405.6
Other financial liabilities 18 0.4 -
Deferred revenue 19 477 16.0
Provisions 15 . 14.4 19.0
Net employee defined benefit liabilities it 74 52
Other current liabilities 0 9.7 6.l
692.83 496.0
Total liabilitics 7016 517.4
Total equity and liabilities 1.346.9 1.335.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated fi ial st
As per our report of even date.
For §. R. Batlibei & Co. LLP For and on behalf of board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 Infotech Private Liglited)

L VT T

atik Tl
Kunal Bahl KRnhit Kum:xr/Bnnsal
Director J‘;J Director

R¥shni Pandon X\%:{s

Company Secretary tef Financial Officer

Membershig Number: 038314

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 07, 2019



Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Revente from operations : 21 839.4 455.5
Other income 22 14.5 254
Finance income 23 714 35.0
Total income 925.3 5359
Expenses
Marketplace expense 24 898.5 389.6
Employes benefits expanse 25 1529 198.7
Depreciation and mnortisation expense 26 220 477
Finatice expense 27 25 43
Otlier expense 28 376 37.8
Total expense 1,113.5 678.1
Loss befure share in associate, exceptional items and tax from continuing operations (188.2) (I42.2)
Share of profit of an associate 1.9 1.3
Loss before exceptionalitems and tax from continuing sperations {1R6.3) (140.9
Exceptional Hems 29 0.0 (250.1)
Loss before tux from continuing operations {186.3) (391.0)
Income 1ax expense (1.3) (L.O)
Loss for the year from continuing eperations (187.6) (392.0)
Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year from discontinued 43 1.0 (220.9)
operations .
Profit/{Loss) for the year frem discontinued operations 1.0 (220.9)
Loss for the year {186.6) {6129
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 0.8 1.9
08 1.9
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years 0.3 1.9
Other comprehensive gain for the year, net of fax 0.8 1.9
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (185.8) {611.0)
Loss per equity share [nominat value of share Re. 1 (March 31,2018 : Re 1)
Basic and Diluted (loss) per share computed on the basis of (loss) from continuing operations for the year 34 (1.154.8) (17.354.3)
attributable to equity halders of tie Company [ In Rs.}
Basic and Diluted profit/(loss) per share computed on the basis of protit/(loss) from discontinuing operations 34 6.2 (9,781.4)
for the year atributable to equity holders of the Company [ In Rs.]
The nceompanying notes are an intepral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even dote
For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Snapdeal Private Limited {Formerly known as
ICAE Firm Registeation Number: 301003E/E300005 Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

% @@ etk Paansd

per Nilan}th Katriar Kunal Bah! Rohit Kumar Bansal
Partner 4 Director Director
Membership Jumber: 058814 “.

Place of Signature: Gurugram i PAndon
Dages: June 07, 2019 Comygnv Secretary

hef Financial Officer
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Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ¢énded March 31, 2019
(Altamounts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulary March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Net cash flow from operations
Loss before tax for the year (187.6) (392.0)
Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year from discontinuing operations 1.0 (220.9)
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax for the year to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of praperty, plant and equipment 18.00 383
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment- discontinuing operations - 12.6
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 4.0 8.9
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets- discontinuing operations - 0.3
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (3.3) (33.3)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances-discontinuing operations ©.2) 25
Bad debts / advances written off 24 24.6
Bad debts Fadvances written off-discontinuing operations - 0.1
Provision for balance with statutory /sovernment authorities - 170.1
Impairment of non-current assets - -
Share-based payment expense (1.4) (24.5)
Share-based payment expense-discontinuing operations - (2.2)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibles - 0.1
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibles--discontinuing operations - 2.0
impairment of property, plant and equipment - 67.8
Impairment allowance no longer required (net) 0.2) -
Other non-operating income (1.2) -
Finance costs 2.3 3.0
Liabitities / provisions no longer required written back (3.5) (14.0)
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back- discontinuing operations - (3.6)
Net gain on sale of current investments ©.7) 7.7}
Net gain on sale of current investroents- discontinuing operations 24) 3.1
Interest Income on bank deposits (54.8) (18.1)
Interest Income on bank deposits- discontinuing operations - (2.0}
Unwinding of discount on financial assets at amortised cost (1.5) 2.7)
Mark to market gain on current investments (0.0 (15.8)
Mark to market gain on current investments- discontinuing operations 0.9 -
MTM gain on fair value of derivatives through profit and loss 0.4 3.1)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 200,0 (215.3)
Decrease in provisions and net employse detined benefit liabilities (1.1) (6.4)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 354 (50.3)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables {2.3) 902
(Increase)/decrease in other recievables and prepayments (64.6) 309.7
Cash used in operations (73.4) (304.5)
Income tax refund (net of taxes paid ) 37.0 42.9
Net cash flow used in operating activities {A) (36.4) (261.6)
Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (19.4) 2976
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.3 6.6
Sale/purchase of current investments (net) 1.8 (104.3)
Amount received against the sale of subsidiary 1.2 -
Purchase/(redemption)/(mnturity of bank deposits) (having original maturity of more than three (11.3) 1276
months) (net)
Interest received on bank deposits 243 256
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) 0.1} 333.1
Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities

" Repayment of borrowings.(net) (43.5) (16.4)
Interest paid 2.7 B.1)
Money received against share warrants 14.8 -
Purchase of shares from NCt - (24.0)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (3L4) (45.5)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() (67.9) 46.0
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 82.3 18.2
Cash and cash equivalents of discontinuing operations at the beginning o?@ - 18.1

L

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14.4 82.3




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2019
(All amounts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Balances with banks:

~ ot current account 14.4 82.3
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations 14.4 82.3
Tatal Cash and cash equivalents 144 82.3

The uccompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method® as set outin the Ind AS 7 on Cash Flow Statements notified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate atfairs.

2. The above cash flow statement has been compiled from and is based on the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019 and the related Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended on that date.

3. Figures in brackets indicates cash outflow.
4. Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year classification.

As per our report of even date.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known
JCAI Firm Registration Number: 301003£/E300005 as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

. . ) (£ ¢

per Nilingshu Katriar Kunal Bahl Rohit Kumar Bansal

Director Director
Membersh p Number: 058814

. At '
Place of Signature: Gurugram oshnt Tandon \ll\. ¢ RBhasi

Date: June 07, 2019 ‘ompany Secretar hief Financial Officer




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited})
Notes to lidated A inl stat
{AH amounts in INR Crore, except per shure daia and ag stated otherwise)

L. Corporate information

Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) and its subsidiaries, associate and joint venture (hereinafter collectively referred 10 as ‘the Group') are mainly engaged in
the business of establishing, developiug, designing and puualizing direct marketing and sales promotion solutions through web and non-web based platforms. The Group is also involved in
providing various kinds of warehousing solations, The principal activitizs of the Group are disclosed in Note 2.2,

The Group constitutes of the Private Limited companies incorporated and domicited in India, The holding company Jasper Infotech Private Limited has its registered office sitated at D-181, Snite 181-
TR4, Okhla Industrial Aren, Phase-1, New Dellii - 110020,

The consolidated financiat are anproved for issne by the Grouo's Board of Directors on J une 07. 2019,
2.1 Basis of preparation

The lidated fi ial nts of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notificd under the Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read
with Companies (Indian ing Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate affairs,
The consolidated i ial have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been messured at fair value or revalued mnount:

- Derivative Finaucial Instruments
- Certain financial assers and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments),

The lidated fi inl are p tted in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest crores (INR 00.00,000, except when otherwise indicated,

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at March 3 1, 2019, Comrol is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
feturns. from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returs through its power over the fnvestee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give it the cusrent ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

- Exposure, or rights, to variabl retunis from its involvement with the investee, and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to-affect its retums

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of au investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

~ The contractuat arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

- Rights arising from other contractual arangements

- The Group’s voting Tights and potential voting rights

- The size of the group's holding of vating rights relative to the size and dispersion of the boldings of the other vating rights holders

The Group hether or not it controls an fuvestee if facts and circumstances indicate thae there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control gver the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, fiabilities, income and expenses of 3 subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the period are included iy the consalidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control urcil the date the Group ceases to control the stbsidiary,

Consolidated financial st are prepared using unifonn accounting policies for like trmsactions and other evemts in similar circumstances, if n member of the group uyses accounting policies other
than thosé adopted in the consolidated i inl stat for tike tr: ions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group ber's fi al st: in
preparing the lidated fi fal stat to enswre conformity with the Boup’s accounting policies,

The financial statements of alf catities used for the purpose of consolidution are drawn Up to same reporting date as that of the parent Group, i.e., period ended on March 31, 2019, When the end of the
reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information 2s of the sume date as the financial statements of
the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial infonmation of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Censolidation procedure;

() Combine like items of assets, Habilities, equity, income, expenses and cash fows of the parent with thost of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the

amounts of the assets and Habilities recognised in the consolidated £ ial st at the isition date,
(b Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the pareat’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each suhsid; y. Busii combinations policy plains how to for
any related goodwill.

(<) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and linbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup wransactions
that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in fult), Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated fi
Ind AS)2 licome Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each p of other comprehensive income (OCT) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the nhon-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance, When hecessary, adjusinents are made to the financial st of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting
policies, All intro-group assets and liabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to tra ions between bers of the Group are efiminated iu full on consolidation,

A change in the ownership interest of o subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses conirol over a subsidiary, it:

- Derecopnises the assets (including goodwilt) and liabikities of the subsidiary

- Derecognises the carying amount of any non-controling interests

- Derecognises the lative trauslation differences recorded in equity

~ Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

- Recopnises the fair value of any investment retained

- Recopuises any surplus or deficit in profit of foss

- Reclassifies the pareat’s share of components previously recognised in OC] to profit or loss or retained earnings. s appropriate, as wonld be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infutech Private Limited)
Notes to lidated fi ial stat

(Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stuted otherwise)

238 ¥ of significant g policies
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4. Business combinatiens and goodwill .

Busi binatious are d for using the acquisition method. The cost of an neyuisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fiiir valie and
ihe mmount of any noncontrolling interests in the acquirce, For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the noncontroiling interasts in the acquiree at fair valug or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incured.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the linbilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the lisbilities assuined inclnde contingent Habilities
repr ing present obligation and they are | at their isition fair values imrespective of the fact that outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefifs is not probable. However, the

A

following assets and labilities acquired in « busi combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

- Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities refated to employee benefit armangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively.

- Liabilitics or equity instruments refated to share based payment armangements of the acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangzements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date,

- Agsets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontimied Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

- Reacquired rights are measured at & value determined on the basis of the remainitiy contractual tenn of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider pofential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and Jinbilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractus) tesms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includ the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combiuntion is achieved in stages, any previously hield equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCl as
appropriate,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. C ing ideration classified as nn asset or liability that is a fluancial instrament
and within the scope of Ind AS109 Financial lustrments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recoguised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS
109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate lud AS. Contingent consideration that is elassified as equity is not re-ineasured at subsequent reporting dates imd subsequent its settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred aud the amount recognised for non-controlfing interests, aud any previous interest held, over the
et identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is i exvess of the apgregate consideration transferred. the. Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets nequired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be gnised at the. acquisition date. If the ¢ still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCT and accumulated in equity a5 capital reserve, However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recogniscs the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCYL

After initial recoymition, poodwill is menasured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impainment testing, goodwill acquired in a busitiess combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-penerating upits that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acqnirge are assigned to
those nnits.

A cash gencrating unit to which goodwill has been ailocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
the cash generating upit is less than its carrying amouut, the impainnent Joss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocited to the unit and then to the other assets of tiie unit
pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Ay impainment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

11 1

Where goodwill has been { to n cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill jated with the disposed operation is included in the canying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill Jisposed in these cir is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of
the cash-g ing unit 1 d

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports. provisional amounts for the itens for which the
aceonnting is incomplete,

Those provisional are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized af that date. These adjustinents are called as pediod adj The
measurement period does not exceed one period from the acquisition date.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited {Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements
{ANl nmounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

b. Investment in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate In the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not contral
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have Joint control of the arangentent have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint contro) is the contractially agresd
shariug of cofitrol of an arrgement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require wanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in detemmining whether significant influence or Joint control are similar to those liecessary to determnine control over the subsidiaries,

The Group’s investments in its associnte and joiut venture are accounted for nsing the equity method, Under the equity method, the invesnent in o associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at
cost. The carrying amount of the investmient is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s: share of et assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwil) relating to the
associate or joint venture is included in the cartying amount of the investment and is not tested for inpainment individually,

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture, Any change in OC! of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate o joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in
cquity, Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint veature are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or Jjoint venture,

If an entity’s share of losses of ag associate or a joint venture equnls or excceds its interest in fhe associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substauce, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinnes fecognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
Tegal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venttire. If the associnte or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of
those profits onfy after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised,

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The fi ial st of the iate or joiit venture are prepaced for the same reporting period as the Group, When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of the Group,

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impainnent loss on its investment in its associate or Jjoint venture, At ench reporting date, the Group
determines whether there js objective evid that the i in the iate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group caleulates the amount of impninnent as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its camying value. and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture” in the statement of profit or

foss.

Upen loss of significant influenice over the assaciate or joint control over the joiut venture, the Group measures angd recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or Joiut vénture upon loss of siguificant influence or Joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposai is recognised in profit or loss.

c. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and Habilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated a5 current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended 10 be sold or consumed it normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be renlised within nvelve mouths after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchauged or used to settle a linbility for at least twelve wonths affer the reporting period

All other assets are classified ns non-enirrent,

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be suttled iy nommal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

~ There is no unconditionnt right to defer the settlement of the liability for at lenst twelve months after the reporting period

The Group clnssifies all other liabilities as nop-current,

The opemating eycle is the fime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reatisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

d. Forcign currencies

The Group's consolidated fi il st are pr 1in INR, which is nlso the Group’s functional currency. For each entity the Group detennines the functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are medsured using that functional currency, The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation the gain or loss that is
rechassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method,

(This space has been Jef) blank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Nates to lidated fi ial st (
(Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Transactipns and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at the spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Howeves, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average
rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreiwn currencies are translated at the fimcional currency spot mtes of exchiange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or transiation of imonetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of the following:

. Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the sepiarate financial statements of the
reporting entity or the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the foreigm operation and the reporting enfity (.8 consolidated
smancinl statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary), such exchauge differences are recoguised initially in OCL These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the net in t

- Exchange differenices arising on monetary items that are designated as past of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of 0 foreign operation, These are recognised tin OCT until the net investment is
disposed of, at which time, the lative nmount is reclassified to profit or loss.

- Tax charges and credits attributable © exchange differences on these monetary items are also recorded in OCL

1

Non-monetary items that are measured in tenms of historical cost in a foreign currency are & d nsing the ge rates nt the dates of the initial tv ions. Ni tary items d at fair
value in a foreign currency are lated using the ex ss rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on teanslation of non-monetasy items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., trauslation diffrences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in ©OC1 or profit ar loss are
also recognised in OClor profit or loss, respectively).

1

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and labilites of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactious. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate o translate income and éxpense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCL On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OC! relating to that
particalar foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business combination of a foreign operation on or afier 1 April 2015 and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any goodwilt or fair value adjusments arising in business combinations/ acquisitions, which eccurred before the date of transition to Ind AS (1 April 2015), are treated as assets and liabilities of the
entity rather than as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are non-monetary items already expressed in the functional currency of the parent mxd no further
translation differences oceur.

ive currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of transition, viz., 1 April 2015. Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation
exclud lation diffe that arose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the transition date.

(This space has been left blank intentionally}




Suapdeal Private Limited (Fovmerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to tidated fi ial stat
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e. Fair value measurement
The Group meastires financial instruments. such as. derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement dats, The fair value measuretnent is
based on the ption that the iott to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the nsset or liability, or

- b the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or fiability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be zceessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is { using the ptions that market parti ipants would use when pricing the asset or liabitity, assuming that market participants act in their ecosotmic
best interest.
A fair value of a noi-financial asset takes into account 2 market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation techuiques that are appropriate in the cireumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair valwe, maximising the use of relevant observable. inpiits and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and fiabilities for which fair value is meastred or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described s follows, based on the lowest fevel input that
is significant to the fair valye measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Cuoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techmiques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly abservable

- Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest Ievel input that is significant to the fair value medsurement is unchservable

For assets and Habilities thar are n pmsed in the f on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Tevels in the hierarchy liy re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value ineasurement as a whole) at the end of ench reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valtuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant labilities, such as contingent consideration,

f. Revenue recognition ‘

Revenue is recognized to the extentthat it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is being made, Revenye
is measured-at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractual defined tenns of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of government, The
speeific recoguition criteria deseribed below mnst also be met before revenne is recopnized:

Revenue for marketing fees

Revennes from Operating an internet portal providing all sorts of infonnation about various deals for products and services are recognised upon rendering of services and tmeasured on delivery of
products. The Gronp collects service taxes oit behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence, they are excluded from reveune. Revenies from
. )

I hipped are deforred till it s delivered to the ultimats customers and is disclosed as deferred revenme, Revenues from adverti are ised as and when displayed in the internet portal,

Other operating revenye

Revenues from ancillary activities e.y. providing services for collection, fulfilment centre, packaging facilitation, conrjer facilitation and freight charges recovered from the cust S e, are recoghised
upon rendering of services and measured on delivery of praducts. Service leve] penalties for delay, faulty defiveries, stock out ete. recavered from the sellers are recognised once right to recover is
established and it is rensonable to expect ultimate collection. Revenue from reverse shipments e.g, courier fees, payment collection fees etc. are recognised npon delivery of products to sellers and it is

reasonable to expect ultimate callection,

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest incame is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that
exactly disconnts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instmunent or n shorter period, where appropriate. to the yross carmying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a-financial liability. When calcutating the effective jnterest rate, the proup estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example. prepayment, extension, calt and similar optionsy but does ot consider the expected credit losses, Interest income is jucluded in finance income in the Statement of profit and
loss.

Unbilled reventie

Receivables are senerally carried at the original invoiced amount, less an allowance for doubtfil receivables where there is objective evidence that balances will not be recovered in full, Unbilled
receivables is recomnised to the extent for the services not billed at the vear end,
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g. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective 1ax
jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rutes and tax Inws used to compute the amount are {hose that are enacted or substautively snacted, at the reporting date.

Curreit income tax relating to items recoguised outside profit or lass is recognised outside profit or toss {cither in other comprehensive income ot in equity). Current tax items are ecoguised in
correlation o the underlying wansaction cither in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evatuates positions taken in the tax retims with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regnlations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the fiability method on temporary differences benween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. except:

. Wiieit the deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset o Hability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction, affects ueither
the accounting profit nor tuxable profit or loss

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with in ts in subsidiaries, iates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and itis probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred 1ax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry fonward of unused tax credits and unused tax fosses can be utilised, except:

~Whei the deferred tax asset relating © the deductible temporary difference arises from the inital recopmition of an asset or linbility in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the wransaction, affects neither the accounting prafit nor taxable profit or toss ’

- In respect of deductible temporary differences fated with in ts in ries, iates and interests in joint ventures, Jeferred tax assets nre recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresegable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The catrying mmount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allowall or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and linbilities are measured at the tax mtes that ars expected t© apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is setded, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
endcted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income ot in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OC1 or directly in equity.

Deferred tox assets and deferred tax fiabilitics arc offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current 1x liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sune taxable
entity-aid the shme taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change, Acquirsd deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and eircumstanees
existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of yoedwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCY capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain
purchase gains. Al other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or toss.

h. Property, plant and equipment

Propérty, plantand equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of ac tated depreciation and inted impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
e property. plant and equipment and borrowing costs if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are'req ired to be replaced at intervals, the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful Jives. Likewise, when o major inspection is performed, its cost is recopnised in the carrying amount of the propesty, plant and cquipment as a
replacenment if the recognition criterin are satisfied. All other repair and mai costs are recogmised in profit or loss as incurred,

Depreciation is calenlated ona straight-line basis usiny the rates arrived at based on the useful lives esti d by the & t. The Group has used the following useful lives 10 provide depreciation
on its fized assets.

Category of assets Estimated usefoi fife
C and data prc ingz units 3 ~ 6 periods
Vehicles 8 periods

Electric equinment 10 perieds

Furniture and fittinys 10 periods

Office equipment 5 periods

Depreciation on assets purchased during the period is provided on pro rata basis from the date of purchase of fixed assets.
Leasehold hiprovements are amortised on a straight line busis over the lower of lease term or useful life of the respective assets.
An ftem of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecoguised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain

or loss arising on derecaynition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunt of the asset) is included in the income statzmnent wheit the asset is
derecoguised.

The residual .\'nlues, usefial lives aud methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each finaucial period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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i. Intangible assets

hitangible assets acquired sep Iy are d on initial recoguition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a busi bination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost fess any accwnulated amortisation and aceumnulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding apitalised devel costs,

are not capitalised and the refated expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred,

The useful lives of i ible assets are 1 a5 either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impaiment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortsation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reparting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of fiture cconomic benefits embodied in. the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or metliod, as appropriate, and are treated as chaniges in acconnting estimates, The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such cxpenditure forms part of camrying value of anather asset. Technology costinciudes
all the manpower expenses associated with development, acquisition, implementation, deployment, mai of technology. Further pitalisation of techmology cost is done based on 2 years
assessment performed.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful Jives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment anuunlly, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
aunually to d ine whether the indefinite life conti to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite 10 finite is made on @ prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible esset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or foss when the asset is derecopnised,

- Borrawing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributab] to the isition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to et ready for its imtended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset; All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
berrowing of funds, Borrowing cost also inicludes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowiny costs,

k. Leases

The determination of whether an ars is (ur contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangerment at the inception of the lease. The amangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfitinent of the
amangement is dependent on the use-of 1 specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right 1o use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangenient,

For amrangements entered into priorto { April 2015, the Group has determined whether the arrangemeit contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition,

Group as 1 lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 10 ovwawrship to the Group is classified as a
finance lease.

Finance leases are 1 at the of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or. if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payinents
are apportioned behveen finance charges and reduction of the tense liability so as to acltieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recoymised in finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Gronp's general policy on the borrowing costs
(See note 2.1Lh). C ontingerit rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred,

A leased asset is depreciated over ihe useful Tife of the asset. However, if there §s no reasonnble certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful Jife of the asset and the lease term,

Operatiug Tease payinents are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and logs on a straight-line basis over the Jease tenn
Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Gronp does not transfer subistantially nll the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leages. Renml income from operating lease is recognised on o
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotisting and aranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recogised over
the lease rerm on the same hasis as rental income.

Contingent rents nre recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earmed.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substastially all of the risks and rewards of ownership wansfer from the Group to the lessee, Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect 4 constant periodic rate of retum on the et investment autstanding in
respect of the lease.
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1. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group essesses, at ench reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annua! impainnent testing for an asset is- required, the Group
estimiates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in nse, Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are Jargely independent of those from other assels or Groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of au asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futnre cash flows are disconnted to their present value using a pre-tax discomnt rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent narket transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, au approgiriate valuation model is
used. These catculations are corrobarated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fhir value indicators.

The Group bases its impainment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleutations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allgcated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a perdod of five periods, For longer periods, a fong-term growth rate is cateulated and applied to project fiiture cash flows after thy fifth period. To
estimate cash flow projcctim'\s heyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrpolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent periods, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which
the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impnirment on inventories, are recognised in the starcment of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus
taken to OCIL For such properties, the impainment is recognised in OCT up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For asséts excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at ench reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that praviously recopnised impnirment losses e longer exist or have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impainment loss is reversed only if there has been o change in the assumptions vsed to
determine the nsset’s recoverable amount since the last impa loss was gnised, The reversal is limited so that the carrying mnownt of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amoty, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been detenmined. net of depreciation, had no impairment Joss been recognised for the asset in prior periads. Such.reversat is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss unless the assetis carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impainnent annnally near year end and when circunstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

TIinpairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU {or Group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates, When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impainnent logses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite uscful Jives are tested for impairment annuatly at the CGU level, as appropriate. and when circumstances indicate that the carrying valne may be impaired.

m. Provisions

Gengeral

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some of all of a provision to be birsed, for ple, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtmally certain. The expense relating to 2 provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net
of any reimbursemnent.

If the effect of the time value of money is materinl, provisions are discounted using a current pre-fax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the Tiability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recoy ised as a finance cost.

Provision for sales return
Provision towards Sales Retrn is made on the basis of best estimate of expected product returs subsequent to the period end based on historical experience.

Provision for bonus
Provision for bonus is recopnised on time proportion basis over the period of service.

Provisions for enerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of ing the future oblig

under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of tenminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a
provision is established. the Company recognizes any impainnent loss on the assets associated with that contract.

1. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation. other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes
confribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense. when an employee renders the related service. [f the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before tlie balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the schene is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution airendy paid exceeds the
contcibution due for services received before the batance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

I aceordance with Indian law, the Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan {the "Gratuity Plan”) covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lninp stun payment to vested
employees on retirement or on termination of employment for an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the periods of employment with the Group.
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The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method based on an actuadal valuation performed by an independent Achuary,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial pains and losses, sxeluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit linbility, are recognised immediately in the balance sheer with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through OCT in the period in which they oceur, R cments are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier oft
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment. and
= The date that the Group gnises related restr ing costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asser, The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss:

~Service costy comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non routine settlements; and

- Net interest-expense of income

0. Share-based payments

Enmployees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as cousideration for equity iustruments {equity-
settled transactions),

Equity Settles transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model,

That cost is guised, together with 2 co ponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the perfonmance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefits expense, The cumulative expense recopnised for equity-settled transactions at sach reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group®s best estimare of the munber of equity insmunents that will uit ly vest. The of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement jn cumulative expense
recoguised as ar the beginning and end of that preriod and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and nop-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estitmate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an inted service requi 4, are considered 10 be non-vesting conditions, Non-vesting conditions are teflected in the fair value of an award and fead to an immediate experising
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions,

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because ton-market performance and/or serviee conditions have not been met. Where awards include a inarket or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vested drrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition js satisfied, provided that all other perfonmanee andfor service conditions are satisfied,

When, the tenmns of an equiity-settled award are modified, the mini expense recognised is the expense had the tens had not been modified, if the original terms of the award e met. An additional
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment tr; ion, or is otherwise beneficinl to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value uf the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The diliutive offect of outstanding options is reflected as additional shace dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

p. Financinl instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives risc to a financial asset of onc entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Finaucial nssets are classified. at initial recognition. as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss, The
classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristis and the Group business model for managing them. With the exception of waile
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures o financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of 2 financial asset not at fair value through profit or Inss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS [15. Referto the accounting policies in section {B) Revenue recopnition,

In order for a finangisl asser to be classified and measured at mnortised cost or fair value through OCY, it needs to give rise 1o cash flows that are *solely payments of principal and interest (SPPD)' on the
principal amotmt outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is perfonned at an instrument level,

The Companies businiess model for managing financial assets refers to how jt manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows, The busi model d ines whether cash flows will resul
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, ar both,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of nssets within a time frame established by regulation or convention i the market place (vegular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,
L., the date that the Comp Y its-to purchase or sell the asset,

Subseyuent measurement

For purposes of sut i , financial assets ace classified in four categories:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost

- Debt instruments at fair vahie through othier comnprehensive income (FVTOC 1)

= Debt instiunents, derivatives and Bquity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity instnuments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
&) The asset is held within a business nodel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows. and
b) Contrmenal terms of the assct give rise on specificd dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SEPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial . stich fi ial assets are sul quently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment.arc
recognised in the profit or loss, This category generally applies o trade and other receivables.
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Deébt instrument at FYTOCI

A ‘debtinstrument’ is classified as at the FVT OCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business iodel is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPLL

Debt instnnments included within the FVTOCT caiegory are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair valoe, Fair value movements are recounized in the other comprehensive income

(OCT). However, the group recognizes interest income, impainnent losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset. comulative gain of loss previously
recoguised it OCT is reclussified frow the equity to P&L. [nterest earned whilst folding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residusl category for debt instruments. Any debt instrament, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOC! criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliininates & measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to 2s ‘accounting rmismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instnuments included within the FVTPL catepory are meastred at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments
Al equity investinents in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acq mat bi
to which Tnd AS103 applies are classificd as at FYTPL. Tor all other equity instauments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comp i income subsequent changes in

the fair value, The Group makes such glection onan instrument-by- instnunent basis. The clussification is made on initial recognition and is irrevacable,

If the Group decides to classify an squity instnunent as at FVTOCL then all fair value chianges on the instrument, excinding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OC to P&L, even on sale of investent. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair valug with all changes recognized in the P&L.
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of 2 financial asset or part of @ Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's batance sheet) when:

- ‘The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under  ‘pass-
through' arcangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially afl the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Whn the Group has ransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownersliip. When it has neither ferred nor retained sub intly all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset. the Group i 10 pnise the ferred asset to
the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associnted linbility. The transferred asset and the associated liability are mensured on a basis that reflzcts the
rights and obligations that the Group has retnined.

Contimiing involvement that takes the form of n guarantee over the tansferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carmying amount of the asset and the maximum amonnt of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

(This space has been left blank intentionally}
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{All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Impairment of financial assets

In necordance with Ind AS 109, the Group upplies expected credit Joss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
2} Financial assets that are measured al amortised cost e.g,, loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b} Available for sale financial assety

©) Lease reccivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or auother financial asset that result from fransactionis that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The Group follows ‘sirnplified approach’ for recagnition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables or contract revenue recejvables; and
- All lease receivables fesuliing from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognises impainnent loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs

at each reporting date, night
from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impaitment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group detenmines that whether there has been o significant increase in the credit risk since initial recopmition. If cradit

tisk has not increased significantly, 12-montl ECL is used to provide for impainnent loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. I, in a subsequent period, credit

quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recogaition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The 12-month ECL s g portion of the lifetime ECL which results
from defanlt events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
ECL is the differenice between ol contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash fows th
discounted at the original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

- All contractuat temns of the financial instrutment (including prepayment, extension, cail and similar options) over the expected life of the financi
life of the finaucial instrment cannot be estinated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credjt enhancements that are tutegral to the contractual terms

at the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortialls),

al instrument, However, in Fare cases when the expacted
instrument

As a practical expedient, the LTOUp uses a provision matrix to determine impainment loss allowance o portfolio of its trade receivables, The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the group estimates the following provision matrix at the reporting date:

0-15 days past 16-30 days | 31.60 days pastdue | 61-90 days past | 90-120 days past 120-180 dnys | Above 180 days

due past due due due past due past due
Trade receivables 2% | w% 20% 20% 20% 100% 100%
COD receivables (Open Shipment) Nit Nil Nil 50% 100% 100% 100%
€OD receivables (Delivered S if ) Nil ' 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Product Sellers (Debit Balances) | 100% 0% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Insurance Receivables Nil | i Nil Nil Nil Nil wo%_j

0-180 past 181-270 past 271-365 past Abeve 365 past
due due due due

Bank Receivables

25%, 30% 100%

ECL impairinent logs allowance (or reversal) recoguized dusing the period is recognized as income/ expense in the state
expenses’ in the P&L, The bal, sheet p ion for various financial Instraments is described beloy:
- Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the

balance sheet, The allowanee reduces the not carryiig amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allownnce from the gross carrying amount.

- Available for sale financial assets: Since financial assets are already reflected at fojr value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as
‘accurtulated impeirment amoynt’ in the OCL,

ment of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment foss, the Group combines fnancial instruments on the b

asis of shared credit risk charncteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable sipnifi in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis,

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCT) financinl assets, Le., fin

inf assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination,

(This space has been feft blank intentionaliy)
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Notes to consolidated financinl statements
(Al.amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition und measarement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financinl Habilities at fair value through profit or loss. loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.
All fimancial labilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables. net of directly atiributable transaction costs.
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafls and derivative financial instruments.

Stubsequent measwrement
The measucement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or oss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or Joss include financial liabilities held for trading and fi fal liabilities dest 4 upon initial recognition ns at fait value throngh profit or loss,
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchnsing in the near ti. This category also includes derivative financial instiments entered into by the
Grottp that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified ns held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instnonents.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for tradistg are recognised in the profit or loss.

Fi ial libilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or luss are designated as such at the initial date of recoguition, and only i€ the criterin in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses atwributable to changes i own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gaing/ loss are not subsequently transferved to P&L. However, the Group
tmay trausfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such Hability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any finaacial
Hiability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost nsing the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
ate derecognised as well as through the EIR atnortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium an acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.
Derecognition

A financial linbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial linbility is repiaced by another from the snme lender on
substantialy different serms, or the terms of an existing liability are substontially modified, such an exchange or modificntion is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recoguition of
a new lahility. The difference in the resg ive enrrying is recognised in the of profit or loss,

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a consolidated derivative, An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise wonld be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, comodity price. foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of @ non-financial variable
that the variable {s not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change i the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise

be required or a reclassification of a fi ial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a finncial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Group does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirewents
contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract, Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair vale if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss: These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instraments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group detennines chassification of financial assets and Hiabilities on initial recognition. After initial recogition, no reclassification is made for financial nssets which are equity instruments and
financial iabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments., a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business mode] for managing those asseis, Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the business mode! as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations.. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model ocenrs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operati if the Group r ifi
Brnncial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immcdiately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Gronp does not restate any previously recoguised gains, losses (including impairment gains or lasses) or interest,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated halance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recoguised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities sitnultaneously.

q. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks aud on hand and short-tenm deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to au insignificant risk of
chatiges in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cnsh and cash equivatents cousist of cash and short-term deposits, as defied above. net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Group’s cash management. i

)




Snapdeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to lidated fi in] st
(AN amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and ay stated otherwise)

2.3 Changes in g policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Group applied Ind AS. V15 for the first time. The nature and effact of the changes as a result of adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several othier amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact on the consolidated financial statemants of the Group. The Group has not early adopted
any standards or amendinents that have been issued but are not yet effective,

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28, 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS I8 Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions. to all revenne arising from contracis with its
customers. fnd AS 115 establishes a five-step model to aceount for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recogitised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be eutitied in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercize judgement, taking into consideration alf of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers, The
standard also specifies the ing for the § 1 costs of obtaini 5 a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilting a contract.

In addition, the standard qui ive disclosures. The Group adopted modified retrospective approach for Ind AS 113 in the current year and assessed that there is negligible impact from the
previous standard, accordingly the comparitives have not been retrospectively adjusted,

{Thix space has heen left blank intentionally)
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Suapdenl Private Limited {Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Notes to lidated B inl
{Allsmounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated othenwise)

&, Investment in subsidinries and gssocintes

o

Asat Asat
March 31,2019 March 31. 2018
Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in equily instruments (unguoted)
Investment in associntes:
474890 (March 31, 2018:474.890) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Tetia Media Private Lunited
Cost of acquisition (including yoodwilt of Rs5.7) 15.0 150
Less: Share of losses (3.3) (52)
Total 11.7 938
Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of Inv
- Tetra Media Private Limited (11.7) (9.8)
Aggregate nmount of unquoted investments - -
. _Finnncinl assets
Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 Plarch 31, 2018
Investments
Investments at fair value throngh profit & loss {Tully pnid)
Unquoted mutual funds
30,605 (March 31,2018 :Nil) units of Tata Liquid Munal Fund 9.0 -
Wil (Morch 31, 2018:756,203) units SBI Mutual Fund - 1853
Nil (March 3¢, 2018: 127.93,949) units of JCICL Prudential Mutual Fuud - 312
Nit (March 31, 2018: 108,098 ) units of Kotak Mutual Fund - 54
Nil (March 31, 2018: 200,00,000) units of DSP Black Rock Liquidity Fund - 202
Nil (March 31, 2018: 80,32,970) units L&T Mutal Fund - 232
Nil (March 31, 2018 127,527) units of Kotak Corporate Bond Fund- Direct-Growth - 297
Nil (March 31, 2018: 1,95,046) umnits of Axis Treasury Advantage Fund - Direct-Growth - 186
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 9.913) units of Tata Mutual Fund- Money Market Fund Direct Plan- Growth - 2.7
Nil (Masch 31, 2018: 8,623) units of Axis Liquid Fund - Direct-Growth -CFDG - 1.7
Nif (March 31,2018 209,00,000) units of HDFC Mutual Fund - 0.2
Total investments at fiair value throngh profit & loss 9.0 4242
Commercinl Paper/Bonds
Kotak Mahindra Investment Limited 49.5 230
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 49.6 32
Aditya Birla Finance Limited 50.0 -
Bajaj Finance Limited 24.9 -
Cholamandatam Investment and Finance Company Litnited 25.0 -
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 250 -
HDFC Limited 108.5 -
LIC Housiny Finance Limited 250 -
Makindea & Mahindra Limited 13.8 -
Tata Capital Finanve Services Limited 50.4 .
HDB Financial Services Limited . 70.1 20.1
Total investuents at fair valtte through profit & loss 491.5 66.9
Aguregate value of unquoted investiments 300.5 4911
Investments in other entities
Investment in prefercnce Instruments {unyuoted) at cost
4,152 (March 31, 2018: 4,152) 0.001% Preference shares of Rs. 100 each- fully paid-up in Nuvo Logistics Private Limited. 92.9 028
111 (March 31, 2018 1,111) 0.01% Compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in 0.6 0.6
Ymartorix Web Private Limited.
The Company shall have the right at any titne to convert all or some of the preference shares held by it into cqity shares (1
share per CCPS). Such shares, however are compulsorily convertible on 19th anniversary from the date of issue.
Inyestment in equity instruments (unysioted) at coxt
Investment in other equity instruments:
10 (March 31, 2018: 10) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Nuvo Louisties Private Limited. 0.2 0.2
Less: Provision for other than temporary dimisution in vahue of Investinents
- Smartprix Web Private Limited (0.6) (6.6)
. Nuvo Loyistics Private Limited {83.8) (83.8)
9.3 9.3
Total investnrents 509.8 2004

Current
Non-current




Soupdeal Private Limited (Fornterly known s Jasper Infotech Private Limited)

Notesto ¢ liduted fi il st
{All amounts in INR Crore, except per share dutz and ns stuted otherwise)
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Other financial nssets
Security deposits
Considered goad 480 345
Considered doubtfuf - 1.1
48.0 356
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits - a.b
48.0 345
Nen Current bunk balances
Deposits with remaining maturity of teore thun 2 months (nate 11) 14.2 19.1
Margin money deposit {note 11) 0.7 -
149 19.1
Advances recuverable in cash or kind
Conaidered pood 1722 1088
Considered doubtful 133.9 1542
326.1 263.0
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (1539) {134.2)
172.2 108.8
Imerest accrued on fised deposits 43.0 125
Restricted cash held in separate accounts * 294 304
Total other financinl ussets 3075 2053
Total Current 279.3 186.2
Total Non-curent 28.2 19.1
3075 2053

* Pussuant to the directives of the Reserve Bank of india, the Company reccived amoun in its nodal account towards all nansactions happening on jis portal through debit/ credit cards
and net banking. From such nodal aceount, the Company transters the Tespective amount to selterfeustomer. This balance lying in such nodal aceourt as at March 31, 2019 js disclosed
s Restricted Cash held iy ¥ inthe § inl stat

Investments at fair value through Profit & 1,oss (fully paid) reflect investiment inquoted und unquated equity securities and quoted debt securities (Refer note 32)

Break up of financiut assels curried at amortised cost:

Leans

Trade receivables (note 9) 14 7.6
Cash and cash equivalents (note 10) 144 §2.3
Other financial assets (note 6) 3075 2053
Total financial assets carried at nmortised cost 333.3 2932

(This space has been feft blank imemicnnﬂy)
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Notes to
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7. Prepayments
Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Considered good 10.2 82
Considered doubtil 2.5 -
12.7 8.2
Less: Provisien for deubtful advances 2.3 -
Totul prepayments 10.2 8.2
Carrent a7 82
Non-current 6.3 -
10.2 8.2
8. _Other assets
Asat Asut
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Advance income-tax 371 741
Less : Provision for Income Tax .1 -
37.0 741
Advance to employees 0.1 -
Balances with statutory/government authorities 2151 2302
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (170.8) {169.7)
434 50.5
Total other nssels 81.4 124:6
Current 44 505
Non-current 370 4.1
814 1246
9. _Trade receivables
Asnt Asat
March 31,2019 Murch 31,2018
Trade receivables
Trade receivables 114 16
Total trade receivables 114 7.6
Breakun for sceurity details:
Trade receivables
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - 00
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured L4 7.6
Trade Receivables which have significam increase in Credit Risk 226 238
Trade Receivables-credit imparied - -
34.0 3t
Imnairment Alowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Receivables which have siunificant increase in Credit Risk {22.6) (238)
(32.6) 238}
Total trade receivables 114 7.6
Current 1.4 76
Non-current - .
114 7.6

No trade ar other receivable are duz from directars or other ufticers of the company either severally or jointly with any ather person. Nor any trade

fitms ar private companies respectively in which auy director is a partner, a dirgcior of 2 member.

Teade receivables are non-interest bearing and are gencrally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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10._Cush and cash squivalent
Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Balances witli bariks.
- On current accounts 10.6 4.4
~ Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 38 779
Cheques drafts on hand B 0.0
Cash an hand 00 [111]

4.4 82.3

Cash at banks earns interest at flonting rates based on deily bank deposit rates. Short-tenn deposits are made for varymg periods of betw:

immediate cash requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
For the purpose of the siatement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the follawing:

Balances with banks:

—_
-

een one day and three months, depending on the

- On current sccounts 10.6 44
~ Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 38 719
Cheques/ drafts on haud - 0.0
Cash on hand 0.0 0.0
14.4 823
«_Buuk balances other than above
As ut Asat
March 31, 2019 March 34, 2018
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 69.8 202
Deposits with original maturity for tnose than 3 months but less than 12 months 1450 793
Margin money deposit™ 66.1 1743
2809 273.8
Less: disclosed under other non-current financial assets (nate 6) {14.9) {19.1)
Tatal bank balsitce ather than above 266.0 284.7
Cansidered wood 266.0 254.7
Considered doubtiul 0.0 -
Tatal Amaunt of Margin money deposit 266.0 2547
Less: Provision in respect for Margin money deposit {0.0) -
Total bank balance vther than nbove 2660 2547

* Murgin money deposits given as security :

Margin money deposit with a canrying amount of Rs 0.65 cr (March 31,2018 Rs 0.65 Cr) are subject to lien o seeure corporate credit card Limit from a bank,

Margin money deposit with 2 carrying amount of Rs 0.0] or (Mareh 31, 2018: Rs 0,01 Cr) is subjeet 1o lien for bank suarantee given to Income tax authority,

Margin money deposit with a carrying mnount of Rs 0.22 er (Mareh 31, 2018: Rs 0.25 Cr) is subject 1o lien for bank Luarantee given to VAT authority.
Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 0.75 ¢r {March 31,2018: Rs 0,75 er) is subject 1o lien for bank guarantee given ay

Margin money deposit with a canrying amount of Rs 1.05 cr (March 31,2018: Rs 10.75 cr) is subject to lien for bonk guarantee u
iven against borrowiny; facilities from CISCO.
ility taken from HDFC,

liqudator of E-Agility Solutions Private Limited .

Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs. 13.4 cr (March 3 L, 2018: 61.91 Cr) are subject 1o lien for bank guarantee
Matyin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 40.0 or (Marcl 31,2018: Rs 100.02 Cr) are suhject 1o lien for overdraft fac
Margin money deposit witha carrying amount of Rs 10.0 er (March 31, 2018: Nil) is subject to lien for bank suaratee given to

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

ainst business trave) agreements.
iven against services from India Post.
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12. Share Capital

As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Authorized share capital
$9,151,800 (March 31, 2018; 1,000,000) Equity Shares of Re. 1 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 1) each 3.9 0.1
20,000 (March 31, 2018: 20.000) compulsory converible ive series A pr shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,000 (March 3 1. 2018: 25.000) compulsory convertible cumulative series B preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,000 (March 31, 2018: 25.000) compulsory convertible cunulative series C preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,000 (March 31, 2018: 23,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series D preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.3 0.3
25,000 (March 31, 2018: 25,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series E preference shares of Rs, 100 cach 0.3 03
3,000 (March 31, 2018: 3,000) compulsory couvertible lative series E1 preft shares of Rs. 100 each 0.0 0.0
34,500 (March 31, 2018: 34,500) compulsory convertible lative series F prefe shares of Rs. 100 gach 0.3 03
80,000 (March 31, 2018: 80,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series G preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.8 0.8
20,000 (March 31, 2018: 20,000) compulsory convertible tative series H preft shares of Rs. 100 each 0.2 0.2
400,000 (March 31, 2018: 400,000) comy v convertible lative series | preference shares of Rs. 100 each 4.0 4.0
105,000 (March 31, 2018: 105,000) compulsory convertible lative series J preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.1 0.1
17.410 (March 31, 2018: 17410) compulsory convertible cumulative series J1 preference shares of Rs. 20 each 0.0 0.0
149 6.1
Issued Share Capital
2,464,823 (March 31, 2018:225,860) equity shares of Re. 1 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 1) each fully paid-up 02 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 16,132) compulsory convertible cumulative pnm’cipminﬁ series A preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018; 22,344) compuisory convertible fative participating series B pref; shiares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nl (March 31, 2018: 13,852) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series C preference shares of Rs. {0 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 15,749) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series D preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.2
Nil (March 31. 2018: 21.843) compulsory convertible fative particif series E preft shares of Rs, 100 each fully paid-up - 0.2
Nil (March 31, 2018: 2.068) compulsory convertible cunmlative participating series El preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 14,674) compulsory convertible lative participating series F prefi shares of Rs. 100 cach fuily paid-up - 0.1
Nil (March 31, 2018: 75,514) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series G preference shures of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.8
Nil (March 31, 2018: 11,780) compulsory convertible cumnlative participating series H preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.1
10,370 (March 31, 2018: 263,711) compulsory convestible lative participating series | prefe shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up 0.1 2.6
44,348 (March 31, 2018: 73,000) compulsory convertible eumulative participating series J preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 0.0 0.1
Nit (March 31, 2018: 17,410) compulsory convertible lative series J1 prefi shares of Rs. 20 each - 0.0
Total issued share capital 0.3 5.1
Subseribed & fully paid up shares
2,464,823 (March 31, 2018:225,860) equity shares of Re. | each fully paid-up 02 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 16,132) compulsory couvertible cumulative participating series A preference shares of Rs. 10 ench fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31. 2018: 22,344) compulsory convertible cumulative pasticipating series B preference shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up - 0.4
Nil (March 31, 2018: 13,852) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series C preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (March 31, 2018: 15,749) compulsary convertible lative participating series D preft shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.2
Nil (March 31, 2018; 21.843) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series E preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.2
Nil (March 31, 2018: 2,068) compulsory convettible lative participating scries E1 preft shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil (Mareh 31, 2018; 14.674) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series F preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.1
Nil (March 31, 2018: 75.514) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series (G preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 0.8
Nil {March 31.‘2018: 11.780) compulsory convertible [ative participating series H preft shares of Rs, 100 each fully paid-up - 0.1
Nil {March 31, 2018; 253,341) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series I preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up - 2.6
Nil (March 31, 2018: 28,652) compulsory tonvertible cumulative participating series J preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up - 0.0
Nil {March 31, 2018: 17.410) compulsory convertible lative series 11 pref: shares of Rs. 20 ench - 0.0
Total Subscribed nnd fully paid-up share capital 0.2 4.0
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{a) Reconcilintion of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

No. Rs. No. Rs.
At the beginning of the year 2,25,860 0.0 2,935,060 0.0
Conversion during the vear (refer note below) 22,38.963 02 - 0.0
Buy Back of shares - - (67.200) 0.0
Outstanding 2t the end of the year 24.64,823 0.2 2,25,860 0.0
Preference shares

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

No. Rs. No. Rs.
At the beginning of the vear
Compulsory convertible lative series A pref: shares of Rs 10 each 16,132 0.0 16,132 0.0
Compulsory convertibl lative series B pref shares of Rs 10 each 22,344 0.0 22344 0.0
Compulsory convertible cumulative series C preference shares 6f Rs 10 each 13,852 0.0 13,852 0.0
Compulsory convertible lative series D preference shares of Rs 100 each 15,749 0.2 15.749 0.2
Complsory convertible lative series E prefe shares of Rs 100 each 21,843 0.2 21.843 0.2
Compulsory convertible lative series E| pref shares of Rs 100 each 2,008 0.0 2.068 0.0
Compulsory convertible cumulative series F preference shares of Rs 100 each 14,674 0.1 14.674 0.1
Compulsory canvertible cumulative series G preference shares of Rs 100 each 75,514 0.8 75.514 0.8
Compulsory convertible lative series H pref shares of Rs [00 each 11,78¢ 0.1 11780 0.1
Compulsory convertiblé cumulitive serfes [ preference shares of Rs 100 each 253,341 26 2.53.341 2.6
Compulsory convertible cumulative series J preference shares of Rs 10 each 28.652 0.0 28,652 0.0
Compulsory convertible lative series J1 pre shares of Rs 20 each 17,410 0.0 17410 0.0

sonversion during the vear note b 2

C Isory convertibl Intive series A prefe shares of Rs 10 sach (16,132} {0.0) - B
Compulsory convertible Iative series B preference shares of Rs 10 each (22,344) 0.0} - -
Compulsory convertible cuwnulative series C preference shares of Rs 10 each {13,852) (0.0) - -
Compulsory canvertible cuimulative series D preference shares of Rs 100 each {15,749 {0.2) - -
‘Compulsory convertible cummilative series E preference shares of Rs 100 each (21,843) (0.2) - -
Campulsory convertible cumulative series E1 preference shares of Rs 100 each {2,068) {0.0) - -
Compulsory convertible lative geries F pref e shares of Rs 100 each (14,674) {0.1) - -
Compulsory couvertible cummilative series G preference shares of Rs 100 ench (75,514) {0.8) - -
Compulsory couvertible cumulative series H preference shares of Rs 100 each (11,780) o.hn - -
Compulsory convertible cumulative serjes [ preference shares of Rs 100 each (2,53.341) (2.6} - -
Ci Isory convertible Iative series J preference shares of Rs 10 each {28,652) {0.0) - -
Compulsory convertible enmulative series J1 preference shares of Rs 20 each (17.410) {0.0) - -
Outstanding at the end of the vear
Compulsory convertible lative serivs A prefi shares of Rs 10 each - - 16,132 0.0
Compulsory convertible cummulative series B preference shares of Rs 10 each - - 22344 0.0
Compulsory convertible cumulative Series C preference shares of Rs 10 vach - - 13,852 0.0
Compulsory convertible camulative series D preference shares of Rs 100 each - - 15,749 0.2
Co‘mpulsow convertible cumulative series £ prefersnce shares of Rs 100 each - - 21,843 0.2
Compulsory convertible cumulative series E1 preference shares of Rs 100 each - - 2,068 0.0
Compuisory convertible lative series F preference shares of Rs 100 each - - 14,674 0.1
Compulsory convertible comulative series G preference shares of Rs 100 each - - 75514 0.8
Compulsory convertible cumulative series H preference shares of Rs 100 each - - 11,780 .1
Compulsory convertible cumulative series I preference shares of Rs 100 ench - - 2,53.341 2.6
Compulsory convertible cunmulative series § preference shares of Rs 10 each . - 28,652 0.0
Compulsory convertible lative series J| fi shares of Rs 20 each - - 17410 0.0
Ouistanding ot the end o the vear - - 53350 10

The Company has during the year has undertaken the conversion of Series A, B, C. D, E, E1. F. G, H, L J & J1 compulsory convertible prefereuce shares into equity shares, pursuant 1o
the change in control in accordance with provisions of the Article of A iation, C. quently the emtire compulsory convertible preference shares have been converted into equity
shares.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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(b} Aggregate number of shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Particulars Narch 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31,2016 March 31,2015
Nos Nos Nos Nos
Equity shares bought back by the Company 67.200 - - -

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 8% shares in the Company

Particulars March 31, 2019 Narch 31,2018
Nos. “ Holding Nos. % Holding

Equity shares of Re. 1 each fully paid-up

Kunal Ball 1.07.739 4 4% 1,05,869 46.9%
Rohit Bansal 67,3529 2.7% 65459 20.0%
Nexus India Direct Investments II 2.35,100 9.5% - 0.0%
Ebay Singapore Services Pte Ltd 1,40,950 5.7% - 0.0%
Starfish I Pte. Ltd. 890,433 36.1% - 0.0%
B2 Professional Servicesm LLP 2,353,480 10.3% - 0.0%
Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan Board 49,872 2.0% 11,462 5.1%
Kenueth S Glass representing Angel Investment Venture Capital 27.440 1.19% 18.000 2.0%
Preference shares

Compulsory eonvertible cumulative preference shares

Starfish I Pte, Ltd. - 0.0% 1,59.971 33.3%
Wonderful Stars Pte. Ltd. - 0.0% 82,080 16.7%
Alibaba.com Sinzapore E-Commerce Private Limited - 0.0% 82.080 167%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members the above shareholdinyg represents legal ownerships of shares. Al the shareholders have legal ownership in
the shares.
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares for each class of preference shares in the Company

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Nos. 4 Holding Nos. % Holding_

Series A -~ Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up

NEA-IndoUS Venture Capital, LLC - 0.0% 10,362 64.2%

Starfish I Pte. Ltd. - 0.0% 4238 26,3%

Kenneth S Glass representing Angel Investment Venture Capital - 0.0% 863 5.3%

Series B - Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of R5 10 each fully paid-up

Nexus India Direct Investments 1 - 0.0% 16,190 72.5%
NEA-IndoUS Venture Capital, LLC - - 0.0% 4,367 19.5%
Starfish | Pte. Ltd. - 0.0% 1.787 8.0%
Series C - Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up

Starfish | Pte. Ltd. - 0.0% 4219 30.5%
NEA-IndoUS Venture Capital, LLC - 0.0% 3,214 23.2%
Nexus India Direet Investment H - 0.0% 3,480 25.1%
Bessenmer Venture Partners Trust - 0.0% 2,358 17.0%
Series D - Compulsory convertible cumulative prefercnee shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up

Ebay Singapore Services Pte Ltd - 0.0% 4,090 26.0%
Nexus India Direct Investinents 11 - 0.0% 2,980 13.9%
Inte] Capital Corporation - 0.0% 2,360 15.0%
NEA-IndoUS Venture Capital, LLC - 0.0% 1.612 10.2%
Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan Board - 0.0% 9444 0.0%
Lemmik Investments Limited - 0.0% 968 0.2%
Series E - Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-un

EBay Singapore Services Pte Limited - 0.0% 9,919 45.4%
Mexus Oppormunity Fund limited - 0.0% 2,671 12.2%
Wonderful Stars Pte. Ltd. - 0.0% 2.967 13.6%
Bessemer Venture Partners Trust - 0.0% 1.246 5.7%
Alibaba.com Sinpapore E-Commerce Private Limited - 0.0% 2,967 13.6%
Series EI - Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up

Kalaari Capital Parters 1L LLC - 0.0% 556 20.9%
Nexus India Direct Investnents 11 - 0.0% 371 17.9%
Bessemer Venture Parmers Trust - 0.0% Ky 17.9%
fnte! Capital Corporation - 0.0% 278 13.4%
Shali Mauritius Private Limited - 0.0% 185 8.9%
BaccaSuapdeal Mauriting Private Limited - 0.0% 185 8.9%
Series F - Compulsory convertible eumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up

Duneam Investments (Mauritius) Pte Ltd - 0.0% 4.402 30.0%
Myriad Oppertunities Master Fund Limited - 0.0% 3.155 21.5%
Aquila Investments | - 0.0% 2,201 15.0%
PI Opportunities Fund — I - 0.0% 2.201 15.0%
Pan Asia Opportunities Master Fund Led, - 0.0% 924 6.3%
BlackRock Intemational Opportunities Portfblio - 0.0% 749 5.t%
Series G - Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each fuily paid-up

Starfish 1 Pte, Ltd. - 0.0% 69,954 92.6%
Series H - Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up

Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan Board - 0.0% 2.523 Y21 4%
Sequoia Capitat India [H Lid 0.0% 1.386 11.8%
Valiant Mauriting Parters FDI Limited 0.0% 1.230 10.4%
Ru-Net South Asia 0.0% .18 9.5%
Aquila Investnents | (Mauritiug) Lid. 0.0% 1108 9.4%5
Kunal Shah 0.0% 1.030 8.7%
M L Tandon & Sons HUF 0.0% 734 6.2%
Kersiwood South Asia 6.0% 675 5.1%

Milestone Trusteeship Services Limited 0.0% 1.850 15.7%
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Series [« Compulsory convertible cumnulative preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up

Wonderful Stars Pte. Lud, - 0.0% A RK] 3L2%
Starfish I Pre. Lid, . 0.0% 79.113 31.2%
Alihaba.com Sinsapore E-Commerce Private Limited - 0.0% 79.113 31.2%

Serics J - Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up

Braother Fortune Appare] Pte, Lid. - 0.0% 20.205 70.5%
Clouse SA - 0.0% 8,440 29.5%
Series J1 - Combulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 20 each fully paid-up

Nexus Ventares I Linited - 0.0% 14,810 85.1%
Kunal Bahi - 0.0% 1,300 7.5%
Rolit Bansal - 0.0% 1.300 7.5%

Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option and Founders stock optian plau of the Company, please refer note 30 and 31 respectively.
For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of CCCPS, please rafer above, regarding terms of conversion/ redemption of CCCPS,

Shares.reserved for issue under loan agreement
For details of shares reserved for issue under the loan agreement with SVB India Finance Private Limited, a non banking finance Company please refer note 44.

(This space hay been lofi hlank Intentionallyy
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13. Other equity

Share premium Rs.
At April 01, 2017 11,024.8
Increase because of issuance of share capital -

Decrease due to transaction costs for issued share capital 0.0
At March 31,2018 11,024.8
Increase because of conversion during the year (refer note 12) 3.8
Decrease due to transaction costs for issued share capital 0.0
At March 31,2019 11.028.6

Share option schemes /Share base payment reserve

The Company has share option schemes under which options to subscribe for the Company’s shares have been yranted to certain executives and
employees.

The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employzes, including key
management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer note number 30.

Share based payments Rs.
At April 01, 2017 : 305.8
Add: Compensation options eranted during the year (22.6)
Less: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock options (1.3)
At March 31,2018 2759
Add: Compensation options granted during the year (1.4)
Less: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock options (2.5).
At March 31,2019 271.8

General Reserve
The Company recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to capital reserve.

General Reserve Rs.
At April 01,2017 0.1
Add: amount transferred for cost of vested employee stock options expired unexercised 15
At March 31,2018 7.6
Add: amount transferred for cost of vested employee stock options expired unexercised 2.5
At March 31,2019 10.1

Other reserves

Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
SBP reserve . 271.8 2751
General Reserve 10.1 1.6
Loss on transaction with NCI (168.0) (168.0).
Total other reserves 1139 115.3

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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14. Borrowings

Effective interest . As at As at
rate Maturity March 31,2019 _ March 31, 2018
%
Non-current borrowings
Term Loan
From financial institutions
. i 9.83% / 8.51% 12 equal quartery instalinents n

Secured term loan ffom financial institution 83%/8.51% equal quarterly instahne - 13.4
Total non-current borrowings - 13.4

Current borrowings

Current maturity of long term loans
0.83%/851% 12 equal quarterly instalments

Secured term loan from financial institution 13.4 29.7
Interest accrued and not due on secured term loan from financial
institution 0.2 0.6
Loan repayable vn demand {from bank)
Bank Overdraft (secured) FDrate + 0.5% On demand - 13.8
Total current berrowings 13.6 44.1
Current 13.6 4.1
Non Current - 13.4

Secured term loan from financial institution

During the year ended Mare) 3 1, 2016, the Company had obtainied term loan amounting Rs 30 Cr from Cisco Systems Capital (India) Private Limited af the interest
rate of 9.75% p.a., repayable in 12 equal quarterly instalnents and the same is secured by hypothecation of fixed assets of the Company to the extent of the loan
amount and has been entirely repaid by the Company.

Further during the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has obtained additional term loan amounting Rs 62 Cr from Cisco Systems Capital (India) Private
Limited at the interest rate of 9.83%/8.51%p.a., repayable in 12 equal quarterly instalments and the same is secured by hypothecation of fixed assets of the
Company to the extent of the loan mmount,

Bank Qverdraft {secured)
The bank overdrafis are secured by a portion of the Company's short-term deposits.
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The followiny tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recoguised in the income statement and the funded

plan:

Chauges in the present value of the defined benefit obliygation are, us follows

Rs.
Defined benefit obligation at April 01, 2017 9.0
Current Service cost 23
Initerest cost on henefit obligation 0.6
Benefits paid 1.2y
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture (0.3)
Actuasial {gains) / losses on obligation (1.8)
Defined benefit obligation at March 31,2018 8.6
Current Service cost 22
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.6
Benefits paid {0.0}
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture 0.0
Actuarial gninfless 0.7}
Defined benefit obligntion at March 31, 2019 18.1

Expenes recognised in the Other Compreliensive Income (Excluding tax) for the year ended March 31, 2012 and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Other Provisions
Asat As af
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for bonus E}.b 170
Provision for sales retum 3.6 28
Total 142 194
Current 14,1 19.0
Non-crrrent [1] -
14.2 190
Provision for bonus Provision for sales
. refurn
Asat April 01, 2017 19.3 13
Created during the year 23.0 20
Utitised (19.9) amn
Unused amaunt reversed (5:4) -
As at Murch 31,2018 17.0 2:.0
Created duriny the year 134 i6
Utitised (21.0) 2.0)
Unused amount reversed (0.8)
As at March 31.2019 8.6 5.6
Provision for bouts
A provision is recognised for the bonus payable to the employees on time propartion hasis over the period of service.
Provision for sales return
A provision is recoynised for the expected product returns subsequent to the period end based on historical experience.
. Gratnity and other post-employment benefit plans
Asat Asat
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Pravision for gratuity 10.1 8.6
Provision for compensated absences 6.0 46
16.1 13.2
Current 74 52
Nou-current 87 80
16.1 13.2
In d with applicable laws, the pany provides for gramity, 2 defined benefit retirement plan (“the Gratuity Plan") covering cligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides
for a lump sum payment io vested employees on retirement (subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death, ineapaci ion or ination of employ of
amounts that are based on salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date.

status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the

For the year ended March

For the yenr ended

i _ 31,2019 Dlurch 31, 2018
Gpeming amount recognized in OCI outside P&L account - -
Actuarial gain/{foss) on liabilities™ ()] (1.8}
Actuarial gain/(loss) on assels - -

{0.7) {1.8)
The principal actuarialt assumptions used in determining gratity benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

, Asut As at
March 31. 2019 Marveh 31, 2018

Discount rate 6.6%-1.05% 7.2%-7.6%
Saiary escalation rate 11.2%16% 11%%+16%
Withdrawal rate 25%-30% 21 1%-26%

—
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Due to its defined benefit plans, the pany is exg ! to following signi risk -

Chanve ju Discount Rate « A d in dise rate will i plan liability,

Salarv Rigk : The present value of the defined benetit plan liability is caleulated by reference to the future salaries of the plan patticipants. As such , an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plans liability,

Withdmwal Rate : A decrease in sithdrawal rate will increase plan liabiliyy.

Demoyrgphical Assumption. used :
A ption regulating fisture lity are based on published statistics and mortality table (IALM (2006-08).

Retirement Aue : The employees of the company are assumed to retire at the age of 58-60 years.

Sengitivity Analysis

March 31, 2019 Inpact {Absolnte)
10,1
Inerease discount rate by D.5% {0.2) [{I)]
Decrease discount rate by 0.5% 62 a0
Incréase salarv.intlation b 0.5% 0.2 {10
inflation by 0.5% {0.2) o

The Sensitivity Analysis have heen determined based on a method that extrapolated the impact of declined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable change in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

17. _Frade snd other paynbles

As at Asat
March 31, 2019 Murch 31, 2018

Trade payables
Trade payables 409.2 279.2

409.2 2792
Other payables
Payable to sellers 183.7 1225
Book overdrafts 035 -
Payable 1o creditors for capital goods 0.0 0.0
Statutory libilities payable 5.8 3.6
Accined salaries and benefits 0.7 ['X]
Lease equalisation reserve - 02

130.7 126.4

5§99.9 105.6
Bifurcation of above:
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer nots 306} 1.6 -
Totul vutstanding dues of creditors other than nicro and small enterprises 3983 2056

599.9 405.6
Terms and conditions of the above fi ial liabilities.
- Trude payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60-day terms os agreed.
- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of upto six months

18, _Other financial linbilities
As at As at
Dlarch 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Financial liabilities at fair viiue through profit or loss
Derivatives not designated s hedges
Embedded derivativey 0.4 .
Totabfinnneio liabilities at fuir value through profit or loss 0.4 -
Current 04 -
Non-curent - -
0.4 B

Embedded derivatives

The Company had in the finaneial year 2012-13 taken a tenn loan of Rs.8 cr from SVB which was entirely repaid in the saine year, As per the terms of such loan agreement, the lender
has a right to subscribe to 699 nos preference shaes (series D) amounting to Rs. 0.8 ¢r 1o be issued by the Company at SVB's option within a period of 7 vears from the issue date. The
embedded derivative has been separated and is carried at fair value through profit or loss,

Break up of financial linbilities carried st amortised cost

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Bonowings (non-current) (note 14) - 134
Barrowings (current) {note 14) 13.6 44,1
Trade and other payables (note 17) 1.6 405.6
Other financial liabilities (nate 18) ) 04 -

Total finuncial linbilities carried at amortised cost 15.6 463.1
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19, _Deferred revenne

Asat Asat
Marel 31, 2019 dlarch 31, 2018
As nt beginning 16.0 10.7
Deferred duriny the vear 1.7 16.0
Released to the statement of profit and loss {16.0) {10.7).
As at closing 41.7 16.0
Current 417 160
Non-cuirent - -
47.7 16.0
Revenues from praducts shipped are deferred till it is delivered to the ultiinate customers and i5 disclosed as deferred revenue.
20._Other linbilities
Asat Asat
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Advances from customers 9.7 61
9.7 6.1
Current 9.7 6.1
Non-current - -
9.7 6.1

(This space hay been Teft blunk intentionully)
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2L. Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Revenue from operations :
Revenue from marketing fees 2114 130:9
Other operating revenne 628.0 3246
Revenue from operations 839.4 455.5

22. Other income .

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Liahilities / provisions no longer required written #ack 55 4.0
Impairment allowsnec no longer required (net) 0. -

Other non-operating income 8.8 114
Total 14.5 2

Other non operating income primarily includes eredit card fees, courier lost income, penalty from sellers and other misc income,

23. Finance income
Particilars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Interest income on bank d T Commercial paper/Bonds 34.8 19.4
Interest incone on tax rafund 5.4 6.3
Net ynin on sale of current investuents 9.7 77
Mark to market gain on current investments 0.0 15.8
Unwinding of disconnt on financial assets at amortised cost L5 27
MTM gain on fair value of derivatives through profit and loss - 3.1
Total 714 55.0

24. Marketplace expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Freight and colfection charyes 340.0 1626
Product wrapping charges 6.9 17
Compensation expenses 12.6 455
Hosting charges 16.9 29.6
Content writing charges 1.4 L3
Software expenses 53 24.3
Marketing and business prometion expense 5154 118.5
Tota} 898.5 38%.6
25. Emplayee benefits expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Salary, wages and bonns 146.5 2155
Centribution to provident and other funds 3.7 33
Gratuity expense 2.3 23
Employee stock option scheme (1.4) (4.7
Staff welfare, recrui and fraining expe 1.3 2.1
Total 152.9 198.7

{This space has heen lefi blank intentinnadly)




Snandeal Private Limited (Formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited)
Nates to consolidated financial statements
Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise

26. Depreciation and amortisation expense
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Deprecintion of tangible assets (note 3) 18.0 8.6
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 4) 4.0 9.1
Total 22.0 47.7

27,

Finance expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Bank charges 0.1 0.2
Interest charges 2.3 50
Exchange differences (net) = 0.1 (0.9)
Tetal 2.5 4.3
28. Other expense
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Insurance [ 8.2
Sub-contracting expenses 6.5 12.8
Bad debts / advances written off 2.4 24.6
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (5.3 53.0)
Cowmunication charges 3.6 3.2
Legal and professional fees 5.7 1L?
Liguidation expense 0.1 -
Payment to auditor (Refer note A below) . 0.5 0.5
Power and fuel 1.6 2,1
Rates and taxes 0.2 0.7
Provision for dimunition in the valne of investment 1.9 1.8
Rent 8.9 13.8
Repair & maintenance:
Busilding 3.3 6.2
Plant & machinery 2.8 2.3
Others 0.2 0.3
TraveHing expenses t4 0.9
Misceilancous expenses 1.1 1.6
Provision for sales retumn 0.5 -
MTM loss on fair value of derivatives through profit and Joss 0.4 -
Total 316 378
A. Payment to auditor
For the year ended For he year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
As auditor:
Audit fee 04 0.4
Tax audit & Other fee 0.1 0.1
QOut of pocket expenses 0.0 0.0
Total 035 0.5
29, Extraordinary ltem
Particulars Faor the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
npairment of non current investment & other assets - 360
Briances with statutory/govermnent authoritics - 170.1
Legal & professional fee - 127
Impainment of property. plant and equipment and intugibles - 313

Total

250.1
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30. Employee stock option plan '

The group has following two share based payment schemes for its employees. The relev:
Jasper Infotech Private Limited

The Company provides share-based payment sch
option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant

a)

emes to employees of the Company

The shareholders of the Com
of'Rs. 10 each to the em
a scheme to the Board,

The Board in its meeting held on Februa
nos. equity shares of Rs. 10 each, with each such option conferrin
and conditions of such issue. The Company
August 12, 2014, among other things, to ing
fespectively. Later on in February 09, 2015
increased the number of equity shares reserve

As per the modified terms, all the option
unvested options in case of permanent inc
months from the date of jast working. Fu
holders are entitled 10 exercise their vested options in case of resignation / retirem
/ death within a period of 3 months trom the date of last working. However such y
beneficial to the employee. On October 6, 2015 ESOP Scheme was further modi

be;

The Company with unanimous consent of ai shareholders on Februry 25, 2019, increased Employee stoc

ESOP Scheme 2016 by addition of 87

The net compensation expense arising from equity s
given stack option to certain employees of its subsidiaries and the corresponding compe

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Lapsed during the year

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the vear

Quistanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the vear

Forfeited during the year

Lapsed during the year

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

The weighted average remaining contractua
share price at the date of exercise for stock
the end of the year was Re. | to Rs. 12,700

I itk for the stock options outstanding as at
aptions exercised during the period was Rs
(March 31, 2018: 1 1o 12,700).

The expected life of the stock is based on ¢
near zero volatility, in the absence of any

urrent expectations and is n
history, over volatility of listed

details of the scheme and grant are as bel

ry 7, 2011 had resolved to issue 10 employees und

ent/ permanent incapacity / death and u
modification did not have any impact on
fied in order to restate the definition of

remaining the same. Later on March 10, 2
ification increased the number of employee stock options that may be granted under the
of the Company of Re, 1/- each through tran

ettled share based payment transac

ot necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that m
comparable companies,

ant details of schemes and grants made there under are as follows:

its subsidiaries. During the year ended March 31, 2019, an emplovee stock

(VA

and

,223 nos equity shares
g, implementing and adminigtering such

o madified for ESOP 2016 whereas the option
nvested options in case of permanent incapacity
the fair value of the options or is not othenvise
he Investor Director and delegate the power to
d also to empower and delegate the authority to Chief Executive Officer 1o further
T of options reserved for issuance under both the plans combined together shal} be
017 with the unanimous consent of all the

sfer of 6,686 stock options cancelled under

k options from 111,890 to 198,890 that may granted under

.000 options excercisable into equity shares of the Company of INt | each/-,

tion is March 31, 2019 (1.4 cr) (March 31, 2018 Rs. (20.1). The Company has

nsation cost for the same is borne by the Company,
March 31,2019
No. of options Weighted average exercise price
66,191 2,443
46,293 1
8.100 1
664 i
1.03.720 1.560
57.258 2.824
Mareh 31,2018 i
No. of options Weighted average exercise price
84329 21751
24,219 1.0
41,305 5259
1,052 1.0
0 -
66,191 2,443
34.753 2,954

March 31, 2019 is 8.89 years
- Nil (March 31, 2018; Nil).

(March 31, 2018; 8.33 years). The weighted average
The range of exercige price for options outstanding at

ay occur. The Company has chosen to use a
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Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited

The Company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. The sharcholders of the Company, in their general meeting held on January 31, 2014 approved
the grant of ESOP exercisable into not more than 3,784 nos equity shares of Rs. 10 each to the employees and with each such option conferring a right upon the employee
to apply for one equity share of the Company. Granted the authority of designing, implementing an administering such a scheme to the Board.

During the year ended March 31, 2018, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) of the company is cancelled in lieu of the ESOP issued in Jasper Intotech Private Limited
(the holding company). The relevant details of the scheme and grant are as below.

As per the terms, all the option holders are entitled to exercise their vested options in case of resignation / retirement within 3 months from the last working day with the
company and unvested options shall stand cancelled with effect from date of resignation / retirement. In case of permanent incapaeity / death vested options can be
exercised by the option grantee or his nominee within 12 months from the date of termination or death and unvested options shalt stand cancelled with effect from date of
such termination / death. The Company has considered the fair value of equity shares for the purpose of ESOP accounting by using Binck-Scholes-option pricing model.
{*OPM’). ‘

The relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting period 0-4 years
Exercise period ' 5 years
Exercise price Rs 10
Contractual life 9 years
March 31, 2019
Weighted average

No. of options

exercise price
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year . ’ .

Granted during the year - R
Forteited during the year - ) -
Cancelled during the year . - -

Exercised during the year - R
QOutstanding at the end of the year . N

Exercisable at the end of the year - -

March 31, 2018
No. of options Wﬂghti’d pverage
exercise price
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,403 10
Granted during the year - -
Forfeited during the year - 10
Cancelled during the year 1,403 -
Exercised during the year - .
Qutstanding at the end of the year - -

Exercisable at the end of the year - -

On March 31, 2015 the Company had cancelled 535 vested stock options in lieu of cash to be paid amounting to Rs. 1.6 er. In lieu of cancellation the Company has paid
50% cash as on December 31, 2015 and remaining 50% was due to be paid as on December 31, 2016 subject to continuous employment of employees till
atorementioned dates.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Dividend yield (%) - 0%
Expected volatility - 0%
Risk-free interest rate - 7.78%~7.81%
Weighted average share price - 35~65

The expected life of the stock is based on cument expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may oceur. The Company has chosen o use a
near zero volatility, in the absence of any history, over volatility of listed comparable companies.

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the holding company has provided share based payment schemes to employees of all the Companies in the group including
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited. :
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31. Founder’s stock option plan

The Company had provided share-based payment scheme 10 its promote During the year ended March 31, 2019, Founder's Stock Option plan was in existence, The
relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting held on September 28, 2012 approved Founder's Stock Option Scheme 2012, wherein, it reserved 3,392 nos.of
equity shares for the benefjt of the promoters of the Company. On the same day with the unanimous consent of all the shareholders of the Company, 3,392 nos of options
with each such option conterring g ri ght upon the promoter to apply for one equity share of the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions of such issue, were
granted to promoters of the Company. Subsequently, 2120 vested tounder’s stock options and 126 unvested founder’s stock options were cancelied by the Board at their
meeting on April 29, 2014 and a total of 1,146 options remained outstanding equivalent to | 1,460 nos of options post considering the impact of share split we.f. July 23,
2015, The net compensation cxpense arising from equity settled share based payment transaction is Rs Nil (March 31, 20178 Nil).

The refevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting Period 0 year
Exercise Period 5 Years
Exercise Price Re |
Contractual life 3.5-10 Years

March 31, 2019

The details of activity under the 2012 Scheme js as follows: No. of options Weighted average eXercise price
Quistanding at the beginning of the vear 11,460 I
Granted during the period - .
Forfeited during the period - .
Cancelled during the period - .
Exercised during the period -

Outstanding at the end of the year 11,460 1

Exercisable at the end of the period 11.460 1

March 31, 2018
No. of options Weighted average exercise price

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 11.460 1.0
Granted during the year ) - .
Forfeited during the year - -
Cancelled during the period - .
Exercised during the vear -
OQutstanding at the end of the year 11.460 1.0

Exercisable at the end of the year 11.460 ]

The weighted average remaining contractual fife for the stock options outstanding as at Marcl, 31,2019 s 2.39 years (March 31, 2018:3.39 years). The range of exercise
price for options outstanding at the end of the Fearwas Re. | (March 31, 20¢ 8: Re. 1),

The Company has granted options pursuant to such plan in earlier year. However no options were granted under the plan during the year,

(This space has been left blank intentionaily)
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33

Financial rvisk management objectives and policies

The Group financial linbilities, ofther than derivatives. comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, The purpose of these ﬁnm:cin]AIinbililies is to finance & support its
operations. The Group principal financial assets include trade and other receivables. and cash and cash equivalents that derive direcely from its operations, Further the Company also holds
FVTPL investments,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Group management is supported by a financial advisory group that advises on financial risks and the approprinte
financial risk governance framework. The management assures that the Group financial risk nctivities are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and matiaged it accordance with the Group policies and risk objectives, All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by the teams that ave the
appropriate skills, experience and supervision. I accordance to the Group policy. no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks. whicl; are summarised below.

a) Market risk .
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate
tisk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, FVTPL in and

derivative finaucial instruments,
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections refate to the position as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

The: analyses exclude the impact of movenments in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other Ppost-reti obligations; provisions: and the non-financinl assets and

linbilities of foreign operations, The analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 35.

The following assmmptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the offect of the d changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial labiliti held at 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018 including the effect of hedye accounting,

i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilt 1 b af changes in market interest rates. There are no iuterest rate risks for tle

Company 1s the borrowings dong by the Company are at fixed rates.

ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreiga eurrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an expostire will flnctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The Company current does not licdgc any receivable or payable in foreign currency. Refer note 37.

Fareign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Groug loss
before ta is due to changes in the fir value of monetary assets and labilities including non-desiynated foreign currency derivatives and embedded derivatives. The Group exposure to foreign
currency changes for all other eurrencies is not material,

Sensitivity

Particulars Change in Effect on profit before
USD rate tax

March 31. 2019 3% -

March 312019 =3% -

March 31. 2018 4%| ~0.1

March 31 2018 4% 0.1

Particulars Change in Effect on profit before
EURO rate tax

March 31 2019 3% -0.0!

March 31, 2019 5% 0.0t

March 31,2018 4% Nil

March 31, 2018 . 4% Nil

i) Equity price risk
The Group non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities, The Company manages the equity price
risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions,

b} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instument Or customer contract, leading to & financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange ions and other fi ial
instrurnents. The Company otly deals with parties which has good credit rating worthness given by extemal rating agencies or bassd on groups internal assessurent,

Trade receivables and contract asset

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unjt subject to the Group blished policy. p Jures and control relating to custormer credit risk management. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored,

An imprirment noalysis is pertonned at each reporting date usinig a provision matrix to mensuge expected credit losses,

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outconte, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditionis and forecasts of future eeonomic conditions.. The maximun exposure to credit risk at the reporting date s the carrying value of each class of finaucial assets disclosed in Note 32,
The Company does not hold colfateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, ns its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and industries and opertate in largely independent markets,
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1 sta

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company trade Teceivables and contract asset usinyg provision watrix.

March 31, 2019 Financial Assets Trade receivables
Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total Tess than1 |Morethani [Total
year vear
Estimated total gross carrying amount at defanit 4332 28.2 4614 .4 26 34,0
ECL- simplified approach (153.9) - (153.9) - (22.6) (22.6)
Net carrying amount 279.3 28.2 3074 114 - 11.4
March 31,2018 Financial Assets Trade receivables
Less than 1 year Move than 1 year Total Less than 1 |[More than 1 Total
year year
Estimated total gross carrying amonnt at defanlt 340.4 19.1 359.5 7.6 238 313
ECL- simplificd approach (154.2) - (134.2) - {23.8) (23.8)
Net carrying amount 186.2 19.1 2053 7.6 - 7.6

Financial instrnments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and fi ial institutions is 1 by the Group treasury department in accordance with the Group policy. Investinents of surplns funds are made only
with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigued to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an awal basis. The
Yirits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make paymens.

The Group maximwm exposure 10 credit risk for the components of the hatance
maximum exposure relating to financial puarantees and financial derivative instruments is noted in note 32

sheet at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is the carrying amounts ag mentioned in Note 9. The Group
and the lquidity table below.

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract assets
Fmpairment allowauce measured as per simplified approach

Impairmént allowance as on 1 April 2017 (155.6)
Add/ (Jess): asset originated or required (22.4)
Impairment allowance as ont 31 March 2018 {178.0)
Add/ (less): asset oripinated or acquired 4.5
Impainnent allowance as on 31 March 2019 (176.5)

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will enconnter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure (o liquidity risk arises primarily from
imismatches of the naturities of financial assets and linbilities. The Company maintains a balance betwesn contimity of funding and flexibility.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Compauy financial liabilities based on contractual undiscowsted payments.

On demand Less than 1 year 108 > 3§ years Total
years
Year ended
31-Mar-19
Borrowings - 13.0 - - 136
Other financial Habilities - 11 - - 11
Trade and other pavables - 3733 2206 - 599.9
Year ended
31-Mar-18
Borrowings - 439 13.6 - 515
Trade and other pavables - 249.5 156.1 - 405.6

Other financial labilities - -

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when o number of counterpartigs are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same peographical region, or have economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractuni obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relntive sensitivity of the Company’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk. the Group policies

and procedures include spreific puidelines to focus on the maintenance of &
concentrations of credit risks are controlfed and managed accordingly.

diversified portfolio. ldentdfizd

(This space has been left hlank intentionally)
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d} Canital management :
For the purpose of the Company capital capital includes issued equity capital, converible preference shares, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the

equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintaing an efficient capital swncture and healthy capital ratios it order to
support its business and moximise sharcholder valus. The Company monitors capital using n gearing ratio, which is ner debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as
loans and borrowings less cash-and cnsh cquivalents, ;

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Borrowings 3.0 575
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 144 823
Net debt (A} 0.8) {24.8)
Equity Share Capital . 0.2 0.0
Equity comy of compulsory convertible lative participating preference - 4.0
shares

Ottier Equity G435, | 813.7
Total Capital (B) 645.5 817.7
Capital and net debt ¢ {A+B) 644.3 792.9
Gearing ratio (C/A) -0.1% -3.1%

It order to achieve this overall objective, the Group capital management, amongst other things, aims fo ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements,

Further there have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowinyg in the current year.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or pracesses for managing capital during the year ended Mareh 31, 2019 and March 3 1, 2018.
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34 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the yeat attributable to equity holders of the Cotpany by the weighted average number of Equity sharess outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit I(loss) atributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of Equity shares that wauld be issued on conversion of ail the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the incomme and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Loss from continuing operations for the year attributable 1o equity holders of the group {A) {187.6) (392.0)

Profit/ (loss) from discontinuing operations for the year attributable to equity holdess 1.0 (220.9)

of the group (B)

Weighted average number of equity shares in ealculating basic and diluted EPS (No.s) 16,24,445 2,25,860

Basic and diluted earing per equity share (Rs) from continuing operations (A/C) {1.154.8) (17.354.3)

Basic and diluted eaminy per equity share (Rs) from discontinuing operations (BIC) 6.2 (9.781.4)

35 Commi and conting
a. Leases

The Group's lzasing arrangeinents are in respect of operating teases for office premises. These leasing arrangement ranies from 12 months to 3 years. Some of the leases include a clause 10 enable
upward revision of the rental charge ona pericdical basis according to prevaiting market conditions.
The Company has puid Rs. 8.9 Cr (March 31, 2018: Rs. 13.8 Cr) during the year towards mmimum lease payinent.

Future minimum rentals payable under nof [lable operating leases are as follows:

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Within one year : 34 6.6
After ane year but not more than five years 5.0 7.8
Mote than five years - -
b, Commitments
At March 31, 2019, the Company lias commitments of’ Rs 0.15 net of advances ( Mareh 31, 2018 : Nil) relating to capital contracts.
c. Contingencies
Contineent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Dividend in arrears and not declared on convertible cumulative participating series A, B, C, D, E. EL,F, G.H,1,J and J1 preference shares - 0.0006
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts* 18.1 74

# Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts comprises oft

Rs.04 { March 31, 2018: Rs 0.3) represents claim made by the customers due to delivery related issues, which are contested by the Company and are pending in various District Consumer Redressal
Forums in Indin. The management does not expect these claims to succeed and accordingly no provision has been recognised in the financial statements.

Rs. 12.66 { March 31, 2018: Rs 1.6) represents claim made by Amway (pending before High Court) | Spacewood Furnitures Pvt. Ltd (Pending before high court),Oakley Inc. {Pending before high
court).

Nil { March 31, 2018: Rs 0.5) represents claim made by M/s Dream Merchaxts for a commercial dispute related sponsor of event for *Bangalore Fashion Weel” / ‘Bungalore International Fashion
Week’.

Rs 0.01 (March 31, 2018 : 0.06) represent the compoundinny fee 1o be paid in respect for legal meteorology matlers.

Rs. 5.0 (March 31, 2018: Rs 5.0} represents claim made by One 97 Communication limited, for trademark violitions and breach of data confidentiality which is contested by the Company and is
pending before the High Court, Delhi, The management does not expect this claim to succeed and accordingly no provision has been recognised in the finoncial statements.

£Thix space hus heen left blank inlentionally)
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36. Amounts due to micro and small enterprises under Miero, Small and Medjum £ prises Devel (MSMED) Act, 2006 aggregate o Rs. 1.6 Cr (March 31, 201§ NIL) based on the information
available with the Company-

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

a) The principal amount-and fhe interest tdue thereon remaining wnpaid to any supplier as at the end of ench accounting year L6 -

b} The amounit of interest paid by the-buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, alony with the amounts of the payment imade to 6.0 -
the supplier bevond the appointed day during sach accowning vear

) The amount of interest due pnd paynble for the period of delay in making payment (which bave been paid bus beyond the appointed day - -
during the ysar) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006,

d} The amount of interest geerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, 0.2 -

e} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, uniil such date when the interest dues ag above - -
are actually. paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as n deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act,
2006

37. Eurnings and expenditure in forsign curreney ( on acernal basis)

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Earninps:

Revenue from macketing fees 27 00
Software services income 1o 02
Total earning 3.7 0.2

Expenditure:

Adverti and publicity exy 3.6 3.9
Leyal and profussionat fues - ol
Confi /Business 1 i 0.1 0.1
Software expenses . 8.7 3Lt
Othars 0.3 -
Total expenses 12,7 352

{This space hax heen ojt hlenk intentionailyy
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38 Information about Business Segsments - Primary

The Group's operating businesses are aranised and managed separately according 1o the nature of products and setvices provided. with each seyment repr

products and serves different markets.

Marketing Services:

These services include establishing. developing. desigainy and conceptualizing direct marketing solutions through
other personal finance producis. It also includa muarketing and facilitating the sale of all kinds of home praducts. ga

market.

Commission and Other services:

web and non-web based platforms. prov
ods and services through telerision.

These include seller facilitation services. software services relating to supply chain

Segment nccounting policies
The Group prepires its sepuent i ion in it with the

Interzsegment transfers

Segment revenus, seument expenses and sepment results include \ransfirs between business szgments. Such transfers

services, Those are din

services.

policies adopted for prep

the idated financial of the Group.

are accounted for ol competitive wiarket prices charged 101

esenting a strategic business unit that offers different

iy digital distribution platform for leans credit cards and
inemet and other elecironic mode catering to the domestic

snalliliated customers for similar

Swumary of the Sepmental Information for the perind ended and as of Mareh 31,2019

Marketing servises  Other Services Inter segient Total
eliminations
Revenue from operations RI3K 257 - #39.5
Other jncome 135 (420 (Lo 143
Seyment expsnse {10830 240 [{3)) [ERINNAN
Segment result (2585.8) 1.6 Z3 (257.1)
Finnnce inceme TH4
Finance cosis 25
Incoms tax expense {1.3)
Share in protit ofassociate 19
Loss (rom discontinuini operaions (refer note 43) 1.0
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans (138
Total comprehenyive 10ss for the yeur, net of tax {185.8)
Assets_ ond liabilities position as at March 31,2019 are as follows:
Marketing services  Other Services Tntersggment Totut

climinations

Assets:
Sewment Assets 136l 315 (SN 1.346.9
Linbilities:
Segment Liabilities 6930 66 00 .6
Capital employed 0661 - 249 (45.7) 6433
Additignat disclosures:
Marketing services  Other Services Inter segment Total
iminations
Canital Expentiture during the vear 1.3 [} - 194
Deptecintion 217 0.3 - 20
Noncashitems (2.6} UE - 3.2)
Summary of the Segmentd Information for the period ended and as of March 31, 2018
Marketing services  Other Services Inter segment Total
elirminations
Revenue from operations 436.4 203 (n 4355
Other income 247 0.7 00 254
Segment expense (1.173.2) (13.3) 260.6 {239
Segmesnt result {714:8) 59 2655 (443.0)
Fuance income 35.0
Finance cosis @.3)
Income tax expense [{ED)
Share in profit of associate 13
Loss from discontmuing operatons {iefer Notg 43 ) (2209)
Re-mensurement gain on defined benefit plans 1.9
“Totnt comprehensive loss for the year, net af tax {61L.0)
Assets and Labilities position as at March 31y 2018 are as follows: .
Marketing services  Other Services Inter segment Total
eliminations
Assets:
Segment Assets 200.1 {2188) 1.335.)
Liahilities;
Seument Liabilities 513.7 €7 (D) 3174
Capital employed FETIN 1054 (217.8) ®17.7
Additional disclosures:
Marketing services  Other Services Inter segment Total
. _ eliminations
Capital ‘Ex_'p:ndnure during the year 03 104 R 0.7
Depreciation 472 us . 477
MNon cash items 163.1 (145.8) 24
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39 The lidated financial of the Jasper Infotech Private Limited includes subsidiaries listed in the table below:
. . P Comntry of % Equity Interest

Name Principal Activities incorporation March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

E-Agility Solutions Private Limited (till Feb 14, 2019) Trading India Nil 100%
Unicommerce e-Solutions Private Limited Software services India 100% 100%
Unicommerce Sellers Private Limited Software services India 100% 100%
Vulean Express Private Limited Loyistic senvices lnd‘in Nfl N.II
Freechatge Pavinent Technolowies Private Limited E~Waﬂ_ex and Payment lndfn N,I N}I
Accelyst- Solutions Private Limited Online recharge India Nit N.d
Snapdeal INC Research work India Nil Nitl

Entity with significaut influence oyer the gronp

Starfish I Pte. Ltd owns 36.1% of the Equity shares in Jasper Infotech Private Limited (31 March 2018: 33.3%).

40. Stntutory gronp information
As at und for the year ended March 31, 2019
Name of the entity Net assets, i.e., total assets mints total Share of profit or loss Share of Other comprehensive income
linbilities
As % of consolidated Amount As % of consolidated Amount Ax % of consolidated Anoust
net assets profit or loss Other comprehensive
income
Sunapdeal Private Limited 83.8% 540.6 101.6% (189.6) 123.4% 1.0
(Formerly known as Jnsper Infotech Private Limited)
Subsidiaries {Indian}
Vulcan Express Private Limnited 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0
Freecharge Payment Technalogies Private Limited 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0
Aceelyst Solutions Private Limiter! 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0
E-Agility Solutions Private Limited 0.0% 0.0 {0.5%) 10 0.0% 0.0
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited 16.2% 104.7 (1.9%) 2.0 {23.4%) {0.2)
Unicommerce Selfer Solutions Private Limited 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% a0
Subsidiaries {Foreign)
Snapdenl INC 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0
Minority Iiterests in all subsidiaries 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 4.0
Total 100% 645.3 e {186.6) 100%, .
As at and for the venr ended Darch 31, 2018
Nanie of the entity Net assets, Le., total assets minus fotn) Share of profit or loss Share of Other comprehensive income
tiabilities :
As % of consolidated Amount As % of consolidated Amount As % of consolidated Amount
net assets profit or loss Other comprehensive
income
Snapdeal Private Limited 78.3% 640,8 65.0% (397.8) 93.8% 18
(Formerly known as Jasner Infotech Private Limited)
Subsidiaries Indinn)
Vulean Express Private Limited 0.0% 0.0 26.6% (162 8) 6.2% 0.1
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Liniited 0.0% 0.0 34% (20.9) 0.0% 0.0
Accelyst Solutions Private Limited 0.0% 0.0 3.5% {21.2) 0.0% 0.0
E-Agility Solutions Private Limited 9 1% 74.0 2.6% (15.7) 0.0% 0.0
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited 12.6% 102.9 (1.0%) 58 0.0% 0.0
Unicommerce Seller Sofutions Private Limited 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0
Subsidiaries {Foreign}
Snandent INC 0.0% 0.1% (0.3) 0.0% 0.0
Minority Interests in alf subsidiaries 0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.0
Total 180% 817.7 100%, {612.9) 160%, 19
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48

42

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars of unhedyed foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date:
Particulars

Amount

Unhedged foreign currency payable

Unhedged foreign currency receivable

No derivative is taken by the Company to hedye these foreign currency payables and receivables,
Related Party disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship

0.61 (USD .01 @ closing rate of | USD = Rs 69.71)
(March 31, 2018 1.20(USD 0.01 4! closing rateof 1 USD = Rs 65.04)

0.10 (Euro 0.001 @ closing rate of | Euro = Rs 80.14)
{March 31, 2018; Nil (Euro 0.01 @ closing rate of 1 Euro = Rs 80.62)

0.61 (USD .0t @ closing rate of t USD =Rs 69.71)
{March 31, 2018: Nil (USD 0,01 @ closing rate of 1 USD = Rs 63.04}

Names of related parties with whom transactions have taken place duriag the period

Key management personnel Kunal Bahl (Director)
Rohit Kumar Bansal {Director)
Vikas Bhasin {Chief Financial Officer w.ef April 19.2018)

Roshni Tandon (Company Secretary w.e.f March 9, 2018)

Anup Vikal (Chief Financial Officer) (upto November 09, 2017)
Rajiv Mangla (Chief Technology Officer upto December 15,2017}

Jayant Sood (Chicf Customer Experience Officer upto February 02, 2018)
Sachin Gupta (Company Secretary upto January 12.20 18}

Ererprises for whom reporting entity is an associate Starfish [ Pte. Ltd

Related party transactions

The followiny table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year/period:

From April 1, 2018 to March 31,2019

From April 1,2017 to March 31, 2018

Assoriates Joint Venture | Key managentent Associntes Jaint Venture Key
personnet managenent
personnel
Provision for bonus - - 6.4 - - 335
Salary, bonus and contribution to PF* - - 16.9 - - 19.1

 Note: The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits. as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the

Company as a whole,
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43 Pursuant to a share purchase agreement entered ta sell its wholly owned subsidiaries Aceelyst Solutions Private Limited , Freecharge Payment Solutions Private Limited (together ky
83 “Preccharge™) and Viadean Express Private Limited ; the Group has sold its entire stake in Freecharge on October 06, 2017 and Vulcan on February 02, 2018 + the Company has

10Wn

liquidated its wholly ovwned sunsidiary Snapdea) INC on February 26, 2018. Further. the Company has filed for liquidation of its wholly owned subsidiary E-Agility Solutions Private

Limited and received liquidation proceeds of Rs 75,1 cr.,
Profit/Loss for the discontinued aperations is as follows:

Particulars For theyear ended  For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Revenue from opemtions - 433
Other income - 7/2
Finance income 1.6 _6.3
Total income . 1.6 37.5
Expenses
Fulfillment expense - 1395
Employee benefits expense - 67.6
Marketings and Business promotion expense - (3.4)
Technology & content expense - 16‘!
Depreciation and amortisation expense . - 125
Finance costs 0.0 3.7
Dther expenses 0.1 424
Totat expense (0.1) 278.4
Profit/(Loss) for the year from discontinued operations before Income tax expense 17 (220.9)
Income tax expense 0.7 -
Profit/(Loss) for the year from discontinued operations operations L0 {220,9

44 The Company had in the financial year 2012-13 taken a terin loan of Rs 8 er from SVB which was entirely repaid in the same year. As per the terms of such loan, the lender has a right to

subseribe to 699 no.s of series D preference shares now converted into equity of the Company amounting to Rs 0.8 cr to be issued by the Company at SVB's option within a perio
years from the issue date,

da
A

subsiclinriies,

4

N

d of 7

During the current year. the company has changed the classification of the investments held in Unicommerce e-Solutions Private Limited, from assets held for snle to Investments in

During the financial year 2015-2016, the Company had issued up to 17,000 warrants to Bennett, C oleman & Co. Ltd. (BCCL), convertible into Series J prefersnce shares of Rs. 10 /-

each, now converted into equity. During the year he Company aflotted 15,368 share wartants to BCCL as per warrant stbscription agreement dated Jan 23, 2046, at 0 warrant price of
Rs. 16,592.92 /- per wartant aggregating to Rs. 25.5 Cr as warrar snbseription amount. The warrants carries an expiration term of 66 months from date of allotment and are exercisable
at Rs. 149,336.23 /- per warrant, The warrants that are not exercised by the holder on or before the expiry date shalt lapse and shail be void and of no further force ur effect, The warrant

subscription amount is the consideration for issuance of the warrants shall not be refundable under any circumstances irrespective of whether the warrants are exercised or not.
The Company has made the payment of Rs. 25.5 Cr to BCCL as an interest free seeurity deposit in consideration for the line of credit provided by BCCL towards the release

of the

advertisement by the Company. Pursuant to the advertisement agreement entered with BCCL, the Company has entered into the long-term credit facility up to an aggregate amounting to
Rs. 2535 Cr, Wherens the Company shalt make the down payment to BCCL or the refevant media entity, the agreed percentage 1o the value of the advertisement released. the balance

payable (net of dows payment) as the case may be, of the value of advertisement relensed shall constitute a part of and be counted towards the Un-utifised credit amount, The L
Credit shall be available to the Cowmpany from BCCL shall cuntittue to be so available for a period of 3 {three) years, further extended to | (one) year, hence the balance payable to
the services of Rs, 234,7 Cr sendered by BCCL ar the relevan media entity been part of ling of credit has classified under Trade and Other payables.

4

2

ine of
wards

During the current year, the Company has allotted 99 share warrants to Hindustan Media Ventures Limited (HT), as per warrant subscription agreement dated February 16, 2019, ar

warrant price of Rs, 13,00,000 /- Per warrant aggregating to Rs 14.8 cr as warrant subscription amount, The warrants carries an expiration term of 84 months from date of allotment and
are exercisable at Rs, 13,500,000 /- per warrant. The warrants that are not exercised by the holder on or before the expiry date shall lapse and shall be void and of e further force or

effect. The warrant subscription amount is the consideration for issuance of the warrants shall not be refundable under any circumsiances irrespective of whother the warran
exercised or not.

S are

The Company has made the payment of Rs. 14.8 Cr 10 HT a5 an interest free seeurity deposit in consideration for the lue of eredit provided by HT towards the release of the
advertisement by the Company. Pursuant to the advertisement agresment entered with HT. the Company has entered into the long-term credit facility up to an aggregats amounting to Rs,
148.5 Cr, Whereas the Company shall make the down payment to HT or the relevant media entity, the agreed percentage to the value of the advertisement released, the balance payable
(net of down payment) as the case may be, of the value of advertisement released shall constitute 2 part of and be counted towards the Un-utilised eredit amount, The Line of Credit shall
be available to the Company from HT shall continue to be so available for a period of 7 (seven) years, hence the balance payable towards the services of Rs. 7 Crrendered by HT or the

relevant media entity been part of line of credit has classified under Trade and Other payables.

4

e

India,

(This spuce hux been efi blemk intenttonallyy

The Company has changed its name from Jasper Infotech Private Limited to Snapdeal Private Limited w.e.f March 20, 2019 approved by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
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The Group has adopted indAS 115 on Revenue from Contracts with Customiers,
are oot completed as at the date of initial application and comparative information is not restated in the statement of profit
material impact on the recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial statements/results.

contract

usinyg the modified retrospective approach. The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts
and loss, The adoption of the standard did not have any

that

Particulars Asat As af]
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Trade Receivables 14 7.6

Contract Liabilities 593 238

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on tenms of 30 to 90 days and are conditioned to be recovered purely

considered to be Nil.

Contract Liabilities includes deferred revenue and advance from customers.

Other disclosure as specified under IdAS 115 are not required to be made as
expected duration of one year or fess.

Contract linbilitics are primarily from deferred revenue and customer advance for which services
are recognized evenly over the period, being performance obligation of the Group.

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

a matter of practical expedient, since the performance ebligation is part of contract that has

on passage of time. Hence contract assets have been

an original

are yet 10 be rendered on the reporting date either in full ot in parts, Contract liabilities

March 31,2019
238

Particulars
“Amount included in contract labilities ot the begnining of the year

March 31, 2018
3.8

Right of refund linbilities

Particulars Agat As at]
March 31, 2019 March 31. 2018
Arising from rights of return 134 6.3
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50 Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), issued but not effective :
(i) Ind AS 116 Lanses
Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leages, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recogmition, measu pr \tion and disclosure of leases and requires kessees to account for all leases under a single
on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes twa recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of “low-value” assets (€.,
personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or Jess). At the comumencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments {i.¢.. the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the leass term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recoguise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset,
The Group intends to adopt these standards from | April 2019. Upon adoption the Group expects that there would not be any material change other than disclosure and presentation. A
reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of lnd AS 116 on the financial statements will only be possible once the impl ion project has been completed.

(ii) Appendix C to Ind AS (2 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation add the ting for i taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically
addresses the following:

« Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

« The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

« How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losscs, unused tax credits and tax rates

« How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or inore other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. In determining the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, an entity might consider, for example, (a) how it
prepares its income tax filings and supports tax treatinents; or (b) how the entity expects the taxation authority to make its examination and sesclve issues that might arise from that
examination, ’

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2019, but certain transition relicfs are available. The Group will apply the interpretation from its
effective date. L

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment. curtailment or settlement oceurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendrment, curtailmentor settlement oeeurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to:

+ Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailinent or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event.

» Determine siet interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using: the net defined benefit Tiability (asser) reflecting the benefits offered
under the plan and the plan assets after that event: and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain of loss on setlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan 1 curtailment or settlement. Any change in that effect, excl fing amounts included in the net interest, is
recognised in othier comprehensive incoime.
The amendments apply to plan i s, curtail or settl ts ocourring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after | April 2019,
These amendments will apply only to any future plan amendments. curtailmonts, or scttlements of the Group.

51 There are no subsequent events to report after balance sheet date.

52 Previous year figures have been reprouped / reclissified, where necessary. © conform to this vear's classitication.
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